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RATIONALE OF PREPARATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
The preparation of this annual report has been guided by Section 28 of the BRS Act 2015 which requires 
ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�ɽɁ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉ�ƃȶ�ƃȶȶʍƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽ�ǹɁɨ�ǉƃƺȃ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ƃȶǁ�ɰʍƹȴȈɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƃȶȶʍƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�:ƃƹ-
inet Secretary for onward transmission to the National Assembly three months after the end of the year 
to which it relates.

ěȃǉ�ƃȶȶʍƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽ�ɰȃɁʍȢǁ�ƺɁȶɽƃȈȶӗ� ӯƃӰ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ� ӯƹӰ�ƃ�ǁǉɰƺɨȈɥɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�
ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ� ӯƺӰ�ɰʍƺȃ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ɰɽƃɽȈɰɽȈƺƃȢ� ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�ȴƃʰ�ƺɁȶɰȈǁǉɨ�ƃɥɥɨɁɥɨȈƃɽǉ�
ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ӯǁӰ�ɽȃǉ�Ȉȴɥƃƺɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ǉʯǉɨƺȈɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ�Ɂɨ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ӯǉӰ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁǼɨǉɰɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ʥǉȢǹƃɨǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӗ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁȈȶǼ�ȴƃɽɽǉɨɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽ-
ȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ȃɁʍɰȈȶǼӗ�Ȉȶɰʍɨƃȶƺǉӗ�ɰƃǹǉɽʰ�ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȶǁȈɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ӯǹӰ�ɽȃǉ�Ǽǉȶǁǉɨӗ�ɨǉǼȈɁȶƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�
ǉɽȃȶȈƺ�ǁȈʤǉɨɰȈɽʰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ƃȶǁ�ӯǼӰ�ƃȶʰ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�
the Board considers necessary. The Report should be published and publicized as advised by the board. 
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�:Ā�¶� � �ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�Ɂǹ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ��ƺƺɁʍȶɽƃȶɽɰ�Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃ
�:Č� � �ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�Ɂǹ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ČǉƺɨǉɽƃɨȈǉɰ
ICT   Information Communication Technology
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LSK   Law Society of Kenya
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MTEF   Mid-Term Expenditure Framework
ÝĄ�� � ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ
OSHA   Occupational Safety and Health Administration
PBB   Programme Based Budgets
PFM   Public Finance Management
PPAD  Public Procurement & Asset Disposal Act
PPR  Program Performance Review
PSC  Public Service Commission
SCAC   State Corporation Advisory Committee
SAGA  Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies
Č¸Ý� � Čɽƃɽǉ�¸ƃʥ�Ýǹˎƺǉ
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CHAPTER 1
KEY ENTITY INFORMATION & MANAGEMENT

A. Background information
The Business Registration Service (BRS) is established by the Business Registration Service 
�ƺɽ�ÇɁӝіњ�Ɂǹ�їѕіњӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�Ȉɰ�ƃ�ČǉȴȈӸ�ʍɽɁȶɁȴɁʍɰ�ƃǼǉȶƺʰ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�
General and Department of Justice which is represented by the Attorney General at Cabinet 
level who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction. BRS is domiciled in 
316 Upper hill Chambers, 17th Floor, Nairobi, Kenya.

B. Principal Activities
Business Registration Service is established by an Act of Parliament and derives its author-
ity and accountability from the Business Registration Act, 2015. The entity is wholly owned 
by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The Business Registration Service’ 
principal activity is generally implementation of policies, laws and other matters relating 
ɽɁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰӗ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥɰ�ƃȶǁ�ˎɨȴɰӗ�ȈȶǁȈʤȈǁʍƃȢɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ƺƃɨɨʰȈȶǼ�
on business under a business name, insolvency, hire purchase and the movable collateral 
registry.

I. VISION
Doing business made easier.

II. MISSION
To provide quality business support services that are responsive to our customers through-
out their business life cycle.

III. MANDATE
The Business Registration Service (BRS) is a State Corporation established under the Busi-
ness Registration Service Act, 2015. The mandate of the Service is to administer laws relating 
to the incorporation, registration, operation and management of companies, partnerships 
ƃȶǁ�ˎɨȴɰӝ��ȶ�ƺɁȶȶǉƺɽȈɁȶ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃȈɰӗ�9ĄČ�Ȉɰ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽɁӖ
ӯƃӰ� :ƃɨɨʰ�Ɂʍɽ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ʤƃɨȈɁʍɰ�ƃƺɽɰ�ǼɁʤǉɨȶǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ
ӯƹӰ� ÃƃȈȶɽƃȈȶ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨɰӗ�ǁƃɽƃ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰ�Ɂȶ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ƺƃɨɨȈǉǁ�Ɂʍɽ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ
(c) Implement relevant policies and guidelines and provide Cabinet Secretary with  
 necessary information to guide the formulation of policy and amendment of 
� ǉʯȈɰɽȈȶǼ�ɥɁȢȈƺʰ�ƃȶǁ�ǼʍȈǁǉȢȈȶǉɰӢ
ӯǁӰ� :ƃɨɨʰ�Ɂʍɽ�ɨǉɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ƃȶǁ�ǁȈɰɰǉȴȈȶƃɽǉ�ɨǉɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ˎȶǁȈȶǼɰ�Ȉȶ�ˎǉȢǁɰ�ƺɁʤǉɨǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɨǉȢ� �
 evant laws through seminars, workshops, publications and to recommend to   
� ɽȃǉ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶʰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉȴǉȶɽ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�ȢƃʥɰӢ
ӯǉӰ� :ɁȢȢƃƹɁɨƃɽǉ�ʥȈɽȃ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ɰɽƃɽǉ�ƃǼǉȶƺȈǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉ�ǁȈɰƺȃƃɨǼǉ�Ɂǹ�Ȉɽɰ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰӢ
ӯǹӰ� :ȃƃɨǼǉɰ�ǹǉǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ƃȶʰ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ƃȶǁ
(g) Performs such other functions as may be necessary under the Business Regis  
 tration Service Act.

IV.  STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
I. To review and develop legislation, policies, guidelines to enhance ease of doing   
� ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰӢ
��ӝ� ěɁ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉ�ƃƺƺǉɰɰȈƹȢǉӗ�ɨǉȢȈƃƹȢǉ�ƃȶǁ�ȈȶȶɁʤƃɽȈʤǉ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӢ
���ӝ� ěɁ�ɥɨɁȴɁɽǉ�ɽɨƃȶɰɥƃɨǉȶƺʰ�Ȉȶ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ɁʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥӢ
�řӝ� Kȶȃƃȶƺǉ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�Ȉȶ�ɨǉɰɁȢʍɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰӢ
řӝ� Kȶȃƃȶƺǉ�ȈȶɰɽȈɽʍɽȈɁȶƃȢ�ƺƃɥƃƺȈɽʰӢ�ƃȶǁ
VI. To create a corporate brand that enhances the visibility of the products and   
 services of the organization.

1
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C. Key Management
Business Registration Service day-to-day management is under the following key organs: 

• Board of Directors
• �ƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨӣ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ
• Members of the management from various departments and units

• Company registry
• ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ
• Movable Property Security Rights & Hire Purchase registries
• Legal Research and Compliance 
• Corporate Services 
• ICT
• Supply chain 
• Internal Audit  

 
D.      Fiduciary Management
ěȃǉ�ȟǉʰ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ɥǉɨɰɁȶȶǉȢ�ʥȃɁ�ȃǉȢǁ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ǉȶǁǉǁ�јѕɽȃ�°ʍȶǉ�
їѕїї�ƃȶǁ�ʥȃɁ�ȃƃǁ�ǁȈɨǉƺɽ�ˎǁʍƺȈƃɨʰ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ʥǉɨǉӖ�

NO. DESIGNATION NAME

1. Director General Mr. Kenneth Gathuma HSC

2. Head of Corporate Services Mr. Jones Otuke

3 ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ� Mr. Mark Gakuru HSC

4 Registrar of Companies Ms. Joyce Koech

5 Head of Legal, Research &Compliance Ms Doris Wambugu

6 Head of ICT  Mr. Moses Mnawe

7 Head of Finance Mr. Erastus K. Mbalu

8 Head of Human Resource & Administration Mr. Yusuf Saleh

9 Head of MPSR & Hire Purchase Ms Shighadi Mwakio, HSC

10 Head of Procurement Mr. Idy Pembere

11 Corporation Secretary Ms. Elizabeth Macharia

12 Head of Internal Audit Mr. William M. Njeru

E. Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

i. Business Registration Service committees
The Board has established the following four standing Committees to which it has delegat-
ed key responsibilities. Each Committee meets at least four times a year under the terms of 
reference approved by the Board. 
ěȃǉ�ȴƃȈȶ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉɰ�ƃɨǉ�ƃɰ�ǹɁȢȢɁʥɰӢ�

ii. The Audit and Governance Committee
ěȃǉ�ɥɨȈȶƺȈɥƃȢ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�ƺɁȶ-
sidering the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control system, conducting annual 
review of the terms of reference of all the Committees and the board charter. The Commit-
tee is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

iii. The Human Resource and Finance Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Committee are to consider, advise and make appropri-
ate recommendations to the Board on all aspects of human resource management strat-
egy including policy and procedures, track and review the performance of staff members, 
ƺɁȶɰȈǁǉɨ�ƃȶȶʍƃȢ�ƺƃɥȈɽƃȢӗ�ȈȶƺɁȴǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉʯɥǉȶǁȈɽʍɨǉ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽɰ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨ-
mance against budget and plans. 
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iv. The Compliance and Risk Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Committee are to ensure implementation of effective 
processes and systems of risk management, track and maintain a risk register that ensures 
that mitigating processes and actions have been put in place for high-risk items and ensur-
ing complete, timely, accurate and accessible risk disclosure to stakeholders. 

v. The Technical and strategy Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Committee are to oversee the successful implementa-
ɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ɥȢƃȶӗ� ɨǉʤȈǉʥ�ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�ƺȃƃȶǼǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȴǉɨǼȈȶǼ� ɽɨǉȶǁɰ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ�ɁɨǼƃȶȈ-
zation’s operating environment and evaluate suggested changes in strategic direction to 
ensure the provision of proper registration services. 

F. Headquarters
     316 Upper hill Chambers, 17th Floor,
     P.O. Box 30404-00100,
     Nairobi, Kenya

G. Contacts
     Telephone: +254 11 112 7000
      E-mail: eo@brs.go.ke
      Website: www.brs.go.ke

H. Bank
     Kenya Commercial Bank LTD.
     Branch:  KCB MOI AVENUE-4001 
     Account No.: 1184110735
     Telephone: (254) 20244939
     FAX: 20244939
     Website: www.kcb.go.ke

I. Independent Auditors
Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ʍǁȈɽɁɨ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ
Anniversary Towers, University Way 
P.O. Box 30084
GPO  00100
Nairobi, Kenya

J. Principal Legal Advisers
The Attorney General
Čɽƃɽǉ�¸ƃʥ�Ýǹˎƺǉ
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
NAIROBI, Kenya
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Born in 1949, Justice (Rtd) Erastus Githinji has over 40 years’ experience 
in the application and interpretation of the law 

He has served as a Magistrate in various ranks for over 10 years during 
ʥȃȈƺȃ�ȃǉ�ʥƃɰ�ȃǉƃǁ�Ɂǹ�ˎʤǉ�ȴƃǼȈɰɽɨƃɽǉɰԇ�:Ɂʍɨɽ� ɰɽƃɽȈɁȶɰӝ� ěȃǉ� °ʍǁǼǉ�ȃƃɰ�
served as a Puisne Judge of the High Court for over 15 years and as a 
Judge in the Court of Appeal for over 16 years. In the court of Appeal, 
he served as Acting President of the Court, Head of the Civil Division 
and Presiding Judge Court of Appeal Mombasa (Malindi), Kisumu and 
Eldoret.

In his tenure as a Judge, Justice Githinji, has been a member and later 
Chairperson of Judicial Code of Conduct and Ethics Committee which 
ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ� ɽȃǉ� ƺʍɨɨǉȶɽ� ƺɁǁǉ� ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ� ǉȶɽȈɨǉ� °ʍǁȈƺȈƃɨʰӢ� ȢɁȶǼɰɽƃȶǁȈȶǼ�
member of the Council of Legal Education and a Board Member of 
Judiciary Training Institute (now Academy.)

The Judge has attended various local and international courses for 
ɥɨɁǹǉɰɰȈɁȶƃȢ� ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ� ƃȶǁ� ɁƹɽƃȈȶǉǁ� ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ� Ȉȶ� :ɁȴɥǉɽȈɽȈɁȶ�
Ȣƃʥ�ǹɁɨ�ƃǁȚʍǁȈƺƃɽɁɨɰӗ��ȢɽǉɨȶƃɽȈʤǉ�AȈɰɥʍɽǉ�ĄǉɰɁȢʍɽȈɁȶ�ӯ�AĄӰӢ�ĄǉǹʍǼǉǉ�ȢƃʥӢ�
KȶʤȈɨɁȶȴǉȶɽƃȢ�ȢƃʥӢ��ʍȴƃȶ�ĄȈǼȃɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�{ȢɁƹƃȢ�KƺɁȶɁȴʰ�ƃȶǁ�Ɂɽȃǉɨɰӝ�

He is a recipient of two National Honors: 
• Elder of the Order of Burning Spear (EBS) in 2012.
• Chief of the Order of the Burning Spear (CBS) in 2019

He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of Nairobi and is 
an advocate of the High Court of Kenya

Ms. Njeri Wachira, MBS is currently the Deputy Solicitor General and 
�ǉƃǁӗ�ɽȃǉ��ȶɽǉɨȶƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ�̧ ƃʥ�AȈʤȈɰȈɁȶ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ�
and Department of Justice.

Čȃǉ�Ȉɰ�ƃ�ɰǉƃɰɁȶǉǁ��ǁʤɁƺƃɽǉ�ʥȈɽȃ�ǉʯɽǉȶɰȈʤǉ�ǉʯɥǉɨȈǉȶƺǉ�ʥɁɨȟȈȶǼ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎ ǉȢǁ�
of Public International Law. She possesses experience as a Legal Advisor 
to the Government in negotiating, drafting, vetting and interpreting 
local and international treaties and agreements. She is responsible for 
handling all matters on Mutual Legal Assistance pursuant to the Mutual 
Legal Assistance Act of 2011 which appoints the Attorney-General as 
the Central Authority. She is also responsible for the coordination of the 
legal team, both external counsel and in-house counsel that represent 
the Republic of Kenya in all International Arbitration or Litigation 
matters. Njeri has been an Alternate Director to the Solicitor-General on 
various Boards of Directors including, the Business Registration Service, 
Capital Markets Authority, Constituencies Development Fund, National 
Environmental Management Authority, Kenya Ports Authority, Kenya 
Pipeline Company Ltd, Kenya Railways Corporation, South Nyanza Sugar 
Company, and the Betting Control and Licensing Board.

Njeri has also served as the Head of Legal and Corporate Affairs at Seven 
Seas Technologies Group which covered the Group Companies in Kenya, 
Rwanda, Zimbabwe, Nigeria and Portugal.

She has also been assigned by the Commonwealth Secretariat to 
work for a period of two years as a Legal Expert with the East African 

2THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Justice (Rtd)
Erastus Githinji 

CBS EBS LL.B. (UON)
CHAIRPERSON

Ms. Njeri Wachira
ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

TO THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL 
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Ms. Shella Sheikh 
MEMBER

Ms. Catherine Musakali, OGW
MEMBER

Community Secretariat in Arusha, Tanzania where she was tasked with 
implementing the Treaty for the Establishment of the East African 
:ɁȴȴʍȶȈɽʰӗ�ƹʰ�ǁɨƃǹɽȈȶǼ�ĀɨɁɽɁƺɁȢɰ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ěɨǉƃɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ʤƃɨȈɁʍɰ�ȢǉǼȈɰȢƃɽȈɁȶӢ�
as well as approximation of Partner States Municipal Laws relating to 
ˎȶƃȶƺǉӗ�Ȉȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽӗ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ƺɁȴȴǉɨƺȈƃȢ�Ȣƃʥɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�K�:�ƺɁȶɽǉʯɽӝ

As part of her CSR, Njeri has served as a Board Member and Founding 
Director of Tomorrow’s Child Initiative, an NGO registered in Kenya 
whose vision is to have a society where children and women have 
unfettered access to opportunities, which allow them to live in dignity 
because their rights are respected and upheld.

Njeri is married and is a mother of two children. She enjoys reading 
books, travelling and playing golf. 

Born on 11th November 1961, Ms. Shella Sheikh holds a Bachelor of Laws 
Degree from the University of London and previously with a Bachelor 
of Arts in Economics from the University of Nairobi. She is an advocate 
Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� �ȈǼȃ� :Ɂʍɨɽ� Ɂǹ� ¶ǉȶʰƃ� ƃȶǁ� ȃƃɰ� ƹǉǉȶ� Ȉȶ� ɥɨƃƺɽȈƺǉ� ǹɁɨ� Ɂʤǉɨ� ˎǹɽǉǉȶ�
years. Shella previously trained and worked for K.H Osmond Advocates 
alongside the Managing Partner. 

In 2002, Shella ventured out to establish her own private practice. 

She served as a board member of Business Registration Service from 
4th January 2016 to 3rd January 2019.She was reappointed as a board 
member for a period of 3 years with effect from 3rd May 2019.

Born on 1st April 1969, Ms. Catherine Musakali is an Advocate of the High 
:Ɂʍɨɽ�Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�yǉȢȢɁʥ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�Ɂǹ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ČǉƺɨǉɽƃɨȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�
Kenya. 

:ƃɽȃǉɨȈȶǉ� Ȉɰ� ɽȃǉ�yɁʍȶǁǉɨ�Ɂǹ�AɁɨȈɁȶ��ɰɰɁƺȈƃɽǉɰ�¸¸Āӗ�ƃ�ˎɨȴ�ɰɥǉƺȈƃȢȈ˃ȈȶǼ�
in governance matters and commercial legal consultancies. Prior to 
founding Dorion Associates, Catherine worked for Kenya Shell Limited 
(Now Vivo Energy Kenya Limited) as their Company Secretary and Head 
Ɂǹ�¸ǉǼƃȢ�ǹɁɨ�Ɂʤǉɨ�ˎǹɽǉǉȶ�ӯіњӰ�ʰǉƃɨɰӗ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ�ɰȃǉ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�
Legal Functions of Shell operations in Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania, Sudan, 
Eritrea, Ethiopia, Morocco, Egypt and Tunisia. She has worked for shell 
in the United Kingdom during which period she specialized in Mergers 
and Acquisitions and other commercial transactions as well as being 
the Legal Focal Point for all Contracting and Procurement matters for 
its businesses in the 23 Countries in Africa.  

Before this she set up and managed the Legal department of UAP 
Provincial Insurance Limited during which period she represented her 
employer in the Industry body, the Association of Kenya Insurers (AKI).

Catherine was, until May 2014, the Chairperson of the Institute of 
:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ�ČǉƺɨǉɽƃɨȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃ�ӯ�:ĀČ¶Ӱ�ƃȶǁ�ȃƃɰ�ƃȢɰɁ�ɰǉɨʤǉǁ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�
Chair of its Education and Professional Development Committee as well 
as the Legislation and Corporate Governance Committee. She also sat 
on the Council of the Corporate Secretaries International Association, 
which is a global body bringing together governance professionals. 
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She is a founder and Chairperson of The Women on Boards Network 
and is currently the Company Secretary of a number of Companies and 
sits on various Boards including those in the public and private sectors. 
She has previously served as a Director at Nairobi Securities Exchange, 
Association of Kenya Insurers (AKI) and was at one time the Chairperson 
of Kenya Seed Company Limited.

She also serves as a member of the Capital Markets 10-year Master 
Plan Implementation Committee.  Catherine has been the Chief 
Judge, Corporate Governance, FiRe Awards and is a trained Corporate 
Governance Trainer, Governance Auditor and Board Evaluator and has 
developed policies on governance for a number of institutions. She also 
consults for the IFC.

Catherine holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree and a Master of Laws Degree 
from the University of Nairobi, a Higher National Diploma in Law (Kenya), 
ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽǉ�Ȉȶ�ČǉƺʍɨȈɽȈǉɰ�ƃȶǁ��ȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉƺʍɨȈɽȈǉɰ�
and Investment Institute (London).

:ƃɽȃǉɨȈȶǉ� ʥƃɰ� ˎɨɰɽ� ƃɥɥɁȈȶɽǉǁ� ɽɁ� ɽȃǉ� 9Ɂƃɨǁ� Ɂȶ� їȶǁ� ÝƺɽɁƹǉɨӗїѕіќ�
retired in October 2020 and reappointed for a period of three (3) years 
commencing 15th December 2020.

She chairs the Audit and Governance Committee. 

  Mr. Brian Omwenga 
MEMBER

Mr. Faraj Mansur 
MEMBER

Born on 30th November 1981, Mr. Brian Omwenga is a Computer Science 
doctoral candidate and part-time lecturer at the University of Nairobi, 
School of Computing and Informatics. He holds a Graduate Degree in 
Engineering Systems, Technology and Policy from the Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology (MIT). 

He was the Lead Enterprise Architect for the Kenya Government ICT and 
Enterprise Architecture. He has previously worked for PwC, Microsoft, 
and Nokia Research Africa. He has been credited as a respected African 
inventor with several publications and software patents. He is the 
founding chair of the Tech-Innovators SACCO of Kenya and also chaired 
the Software and Systems Engineering technical committee at the 
Kenya Bureau of Standards.

�ǉ�ʥƃɰ�ˎɨɰɽ�ƃɥɥɁȈȶɽǉǁ�ƃɰ�ƃ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨ�Ɂȶ�јɨǁ�
May 2019 and Chairs the Technical and Strategy Committee. 

Born on 24th October 1970, Mr. Faraj Mansur is a Serial Techpreneur with 
over 20 years’ experience in East African Tech Ecosystem.

He is a builder of high-performance teams and a natural leader, mentor, 
and a motivator who thrives in environments requiring a high-level 
strategist and a big-picture thinker.

Faraj had an illustrious career in blue-chip tech companies like UUNET, 
then one of the largest Corporate Internet Service Provider and one of 
the early Tier 1 networks.

Since 2005 he has co-founded a number of award-winning technology 
ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ěǉƺȃƹȈ˃�{ɨɁʍɥӝ�ěȃǉ�ˎɨȴɰ�ƃɨǉ� Ȉȶ�Čʰɰɽǉȴ� �ȶɽǉǼɨƃɽȈɁȶӗ�
eCommerce (B2B & B2C), Business Technology Solutions & Fintech.
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Mr. John Mwendwa, OGW
 (Representative of the Permanent Secre-
tary, Business Reforms &Transformation 

MEMBER

 Ms. Josephine Waruguru 
Macharia-Kanyi 

(Alternate to the Cabinet Secretary, 
National Treasury) 

MEMBER

Born on 17th July 1966, Ms. Josephine Waruguru Kanyi is a Senior Deputy 
Director in the National Treasury Budget Fiscal and Economic affairs in 
the Department of Intergovernmental Fiscal relations. 

She holds a Bachelor’s Degree and Master’s Degree in Economics from 
University of Nairobi. 

She has served in the ministry of Planning and National Development 
from 1991 to 1994, Ministry of Research and Technology (1994-1998) 
Ministry of Finance 1998-2010 as head of Intergovernmental Fiscal 
Relations and Business Regulation Reform Units. 

She served as Chief Economist in National Treasury from 2010-2016. 
She has attended Courses on Fiscal Decentralization and Financial 
management and Tax Policy Analysis and Revenue forecasting at 
the Harvard University USA &Macro Economic Diagnostics at the IMF 
institute in USA.

She also serves in Kenya Hotel Properties Ltd Company and has also 
previously served in KIPPRA Board, Kenya Vehicles Manufacturers 
Board and LATIF Advisory Board. 

Čȃǉ� ʥƃɰ� ˎɨɰɽ� ƃɥɥɁȈȶɽǉǁ� ƃɰ� 9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ� ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ� 9Ɂƃɨǁ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨ� Ɂȶ�
10th May 2017. 

Born on 17th Jan 1983, John is the Acting Secretary/ Director 
General Department of Business Reforms & Transformation (Ease 
of Doing Business) in the Ministry of East African Community & 
Regional Development. He is responsible for the development and 
implementation of the Business reforms and transformation agenda 
across Government. 

Prior to his current role, he served as the Director of Portfolio 
Management in the Ministry of Industry, Trade and Cooperatives from 
2015 to July 2018 where he was also the Chief of Staff for the Cabinet 
Secretary.

His earlier career in Banking saw him serve in various roles of the Barclays 
Group in strategy and executive management in Kenya and South 
Africa from 2007 to 2013. John has a Masters of Commerce Degree in 
Finance from Strathmore University and Bachelor of Commerce Degree 
in Finance from Kenyatta University. He is a member of the Academy of 
Accounting and Financial Studies of Canada (AAFSJ). 

He was appointed as Business Registration Board member on 25th 
March 2020.

Born on 4th April 1980, Mr. Kenneth Gathuma is an Advocate of the 
High Court of Kenya who has legal advisory skills developed through 
providing legal advice to government ministries and state-owned 
corporations for 12 years. 

Until his appointment as the Director-General in March 2020, Mr. 
Gathuma was the Acting Director General of BRS and formerly served as 
Aǉɥʍɽʰ��ǉƃǁ�Ɂǹ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ěɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�
General & Department of Justice where large Government development 
projects were arranged and concluded.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of Nairobi.

Mr. Kenneth Gathuma, HSC
DIRECTOR GENERAL
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 Ms. Elizabeth Macharia 
CORPORATION SECRETARY

Born on 10thJuly 1987, Ms. Elizabeth Macharia is the Corporation 
Secretary of the Business Registration Service. 

She is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya with 11 years of experience, 
ƃ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�Čǉƺɨǉɽƃɨʰ�ʥȈɽȃ�Ɂʤǉɨ�ѝ�ʰǉƃɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉʯɥǉɨȈǉȶƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�:ɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉ�
Governance Auditor. 

She is responsible for providing secretarial services to the Board and 
advising on corporate governance. 

She is a member of the Law Society of Kenya, East African Law Society, 
:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ� �ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ� Ɂǹ� ĀʍƹȢȈƺ� ČǉƺɨǉɽƃɨȈǉɰ� ƃȶǁ� :ȃƃɨɽǉɨǉǁ� �ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ� Ɂǹ�
Arbitrators. 

She holds a Masters of Law in International trade and Investments 
from the University of Nairobi, Bachelor Degree in Law from Catholic 
University, of Eastern Africa, a Post Graduate Diploma in Law from 
Kenya School of Law.
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Ms. Joyce Koech is the Registrar of Companies and her mandate is to 
oversee the overall coordination and management of the Companies 
Registry at the Service in line with Companies Act, 2015. 

She is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya with over 8 years’ ex-
perience. She holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of 
ÇƃȈɨɁƹȈӗ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ�Čǉƺɨǉɽƃɨʰӝ�:ʍɨɨǉȶɽȢʰӗ�ɰȃǉ�Ȉɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨɽƃȟȈȶǼ�
Master’s Degree in Arts at the University of Nairobi.

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
Ms. Joyce Koech

Mr. Kenneth Gathuma is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya who 
has legal advisory skills developed through providing legal advice to 
government ministries and state-owned corporations for 12 years. 

Until his appointment as the Director-General in March 2020, Mr Gath-
uma was the Acting Director General of BRS and formerly served as 
Aǉɥʍɽʰ��ǉƃǁ�Ɂǹ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ěɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�
General & Department of Justice where large Government development 
projects were arranged and concluded.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of Nairobi.

Ãɨӝ�Ãƃɨȟ�{ƃȟʍɨʍ�Ȉɰ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ƃȶǁ�ȃȈɰ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ�Ȉɰ�ɽɁ�Ɂʤǉɨɰǉǉ�
the overall coordination and management of the Insolvency function at 
the Service and as such a regulator in Insolvency practice in Kenya in line 
with Section 701 of the Insolvency Act,2015.

He holds a Master of Laws degree in Laws (LLM) from the University of 
Nairobi. He is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya with over 19 years 
of legal and administrative experience in the private and public sectors.

3SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kenneth Gathuma, HSC
DIRECTOR GENERAL

Mr. Mark Gakuru HSC 
OFFICIAL RECEIVER
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Ms. Doris Wambugu is the Director, Legal Compliance and Research of 
the Business Registration Service. Her mandate is to oversee the overall 
coordination and management of the Legal, Compliance and Research 
function at the Service. 

She is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya with over 16 years of expe-
rience in the private and public sector in the areas of legal, compliance 
and research. She holds a Master’s degree in Strategic Management 
from Daystar University and a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the Univer-
sity of Nairobi. She is also a member of the Law Society of Kenya.

Ms. Doris Wambugu
DIRECTOR LEGAL

RESEARCH & COMPLIANCE

Mr. Jones Otuke is the Director, Corporate Services and his mandate is 
to oversee the overall coordination and management of the Corporate 
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ� ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶ� ƃɽ� ɽȃǉ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӗ� ɽȃƃɽ� ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉӢ��ʍȴƃȶ�ĄǉɰɁʍɨƺǉ�Ãƃȶ-
agement and Administration Division, Finance and Accounts Division, 
Corporate Strategy Unit and Corporate Communication Unit.

He holds a Masters of Business Administration, a Bachelor of Business 
ÃƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ӯ�ƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺǉӰ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ��ƺƺɁʍȶ-
ɽƃȶɽ�ӯ:Ā�¶Ӱӝ��ǉ�Ȉɰ�ƃ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ��ƺƺɁʍȶɽƃȶɽ�
of Kenya (ICPAK). Mr. Otuke has previously served in various public sec-
ɽɁɨ� ȈȶɰɽȈɽʍɽȈɁȶɰ� Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɨǉƃɰ�Ɂǹ�ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼӗ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�
administration.

Mr. Moses Mnawe is the Director, Information Communication Tech-
nology. His mandate is to oversee the overall formulation and imple-
mentation of the Services ICT strategy, development of the Information 
technology and Communication systems and management of the ICT 
security at the Service. 

He is an innovative ICT leader with a broad band of experience and ex-
tensive knowledge in cross-functional ICT domains, with over 14 years 
working experience and has held senior management roles in both pri-
vate and public sector. 

He is a member of the Association of Computer Practitioners Kenya 
(ACPK), Computer society of Kenya (CSK), Information system Audit 
and Control Association (ISACA) as well as Information Communication 
Technology Association of Kenya (ICTAK).

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Information Sys-
tems, a Master’s of science degree in Information Technology Manage-
ment from the University of Nairobi. 

Mr.Jones Otuke 
DIRECTOR

CORPORATE SERVICES

Mr. Moses Mnawe 
 DIRECTOR ICT
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Ms. Shighadi Mwakio is a Deputy Registrar, MPSR at the Business Regis-
tration Service. She is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya with over 
5 years’ experience in Commercial Law and Legislative Drafting. She has 
been instrumental in the various legislative reforms under the Business 
Registration Service that led to the improvement of Kenya’s standing in 
the World Bank Doing Business Ranking in Protecting Minority Investors 
Indicator, Getting Credit Indicator and Resolving Insolvency Indicator. 

She was involved in the development of the Movable Property Security 
ĄȈǼȃɽɰ�ĄǉǼʍȢƃɽȈɁȶɰӗ�їѕіќӗ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ӯ9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ��ȶǹɁɨȴƃ-
tion) Regulations, 2020 and the draft Partnership (Limited Partnerships) 
Regulations, 2020. She has been instrumental in the Secured Transac-
tion Legislative Reform process in Kenya from 2017. She is a member of 
the Task Force on National Risk Assessment on Money Laundering and 
Terrorism Financing and also sits in the Ease of doing business Transfor-
mation Team that has been responsible for the improvement of Kenya’s 
standing in the World Bank Doing Business Ranking.

Ms. Elizabeth Macharia is the Corporation Secretary of the Business 
Registration Service. She is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya with 
Ɂʤǉɨ�ѝ�ʰǉƃɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉʯɥǉɨȈǉȶƺǉӗ�ƃ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�Čǉƺɨǉɽƃɨʰ�ʥȈɽȃ�Ɂʤǉɨ�њ�ʰǉƃɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉʯ-
perience and a Corporate Governance Auditor. She is responsible for 
providing secretarial services to the Board and advising on corporate 
governance. She is a member of the Law Society of Kenya, East African 
¸ƃʥ�ČɁƺȈǉɽʰӗ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ��ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ�ČǉƺɨǉɽƃɨȈǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�:ȃƃɨɽǉɨǉǁ��ȶɰɽȈ-
tute of Arbitrators. 

She holds a Bachelor Degree in Law from Catholic University, of Eastern 
Africa, a Post Graduate Diploma in Law from Kenya School of Law and 
is currently undertaking a Masters in Law from the University of Nairobi.

DEPUTY REGISTRAR MPSR
Ms. Shighadi Mwakio HSC 

 CORPORATION SECRETARY
Ms. Elizabeth Macharia

Mr. Yusuf Saleh is the Deputy Director, Human Resource Management 
and Administration. His mandate is the overall coordination and man-
agement of the Human Resource Management and Administration 
function at the Service. 

He is an innovative HR leader and organizational culture and branding 
specialist with over 10 years working experience and has held senior ex-
ecutive roles. He is a full member of the Institute of Human Resources 
Management (IHRM) Kenya and serves as a member of the continuing 
professional development (CPD) and membership Committee of IHRM. 
Previously, he has served as a member of the Association of Common-
ʥǉƃȢɽȃ�ĩȶȈʤǉɨɰȈɽȈǉɰ�ӯ�:ĩӰ��Ą�Ȉȶ��K�ČɽǉǉɨȈȶǼ�ƺɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ˎɨɰɽ�ɨǉ-
ǼȈɁȶƃȢ�ȢȈƃȈɰɁȶ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨ�ǹɁɨ�Kƃɰɽǉɨȶ��ǹɨȈƺƃӝ�

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business Admin-
istration, a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the United 
States International University Africa (USIU). Currently, Yusuf is a doctoral 
candidate specializing in Strategic Management.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
HR&ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Yusuf Saleh
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OVERVIEW OF BRS PERFORMANCE 2021/22

2,189 10,403 30,303 118,157

977.18 million

57 30,280 133,02310,784
COMPANIES FACING FINANCIAL
DISTRESS RECORDED BY THE
OFFICIAL RECEIVER IN FY 2021/22

NO OF APPLICATIONS RECEIVED
FOR BUSINESS STRIKE OFF IN
FY 2021/22

MPSR NOTICES IN THE
MONTH OF JUNE

MPSR NOTICES
IN Q4

MPSR NOTICES REGISTERED
BETWEEN IN FY 2021/22

NUMBER OF BUSINESS
ENTITIES REGISTERED
IN FY 2021/22

NUMBER OF BUSINESS
ENTITIES REGISTERED
IN JUNE 2022

NUMBER OF BUSINESS
ENTITIES REGISTERED
IN Q4

37.8% 16.61% 92.88%36.1%
BUSINESS ENTITIES
LINKED BY JUNE 2022

PERCENTAGE OF PC
IMPLEMENTED BY Q4

% OF PRIVATE COMPANIES 
WHO BE COMPLIANT BY 
JUNE 2022

PERCENTAGE OF 
STRATEGY IMPLEMENTED 
IN 1ST YEAR

59.15% 50% 68%58%
CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION

SATISFACTION WITH
ICT SERVICES

EMPLOYEE
SATISFACTION

SATISFACTION WITH
WORK ENVIRONMENT

1.49 1.37 1.551.31
NEW BUSINESS
DENSITY FOR 
KENYA 2018

NEW BUSINESS 
DENSITY
FOR KENYA 2020

NEW BUSINESS 
DENSITY
FOR KENYA 2017

NEW BUSINESS 
DENSITY
FOR KENYA 2019

1,898.79 Billion 84.59 Million
Value of Credit Advanced

Through MPSR
Amount of Revenue Collected

in the Month of June 2022

Revenue Collected

229.1 Million
Revenue Collected
in Quarter 4



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022
14

BRS new location
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�Ȉɰ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉ��ȶȶʍƃȢ�ĄǉɥɁɨɽ�ǹɁɨ�ǉƃƺȃ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ƃȶǁ�ɰʍƹȴȈɽ�
the Annual Report to the Cabinet Secretary for onward transmission to the National Assembly three 
months after the end of the year to which it relates (Section 28 of the BRS Act 2015). The report provides 
an account of the undertakings of the Service relating to the FY 2021/22. During the year under re-
view, the Service executed its mandate in line with the Strategic Plan and the Performance Contracting 
guidelines. All the activities undertaken were geared towards achievements of the strategic goals of the 
service. The report has also been prepared in line with the three (3) strategic focus areas as outlined in 
the BRS Strategic Plan.

In the year under review, on ease of doing business, the Service registered 133, 023 business entities 
comprising of 85, 592 business names, 46, 215 private companies, 82 public companies, 196 foreign 
companies, 490 companies limited by guarantee and 448 limited liability partnerships. A total of 140,717 
applications were made during the year under review and the Service was able to register 133,023 rep-
ɨǉɰǉȶɽȈȶǼ�ўљӝњјՐ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰӝӗ�ěȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨ�ɰƃʥ�јќӝѝՐ�Ɂǹ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ� ȢȈȶȟǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�јћӝіՐ�Ɂǹ�
private companies declared BOI status. On facilitation of credit, a total of Kshs 1.898 trillion credit was 
ǹƃƺȈȢȈɽƃɽǉǁ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ÃĀČĄ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƺȢɁɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨӝ�ěȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨ�ɰƃʥӗ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁȈȶǼ�
њќ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ʥȈɽȃ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ǁȈɰɽɨǉɰɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɰɁʍǼȃɽ�ȢȈɧʍƃɽȈɁȶ�ɥɨɁƺǉǉǁȈȶǼɰ�ӯјњ�ȃƃǁ�ɥǉɽȈɽȈɁȶɰ�ǹɁɨ�ȢȈɧʍȈǁƃ-
tions, 20 sought administration proceedings and 2 were put under receivership). In recognition of the 
revolving needs, the Service undertook reforms to support businesses by, actively engaging stakeholders 
Ȉȶ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ� �ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ӯ�ȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽӰ�ĄǉǼʍȢƃɽȈɁȶɰӗ�їѕїї�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɰǉǉȟɰ�ɽɁ�
promote transparency in public procurement. 

To promote Service delivery, corporate visibility and strategic partnerships, BRS customized the service 
delivery charter into Swahili, braille and Kenya sign language to include people with disabilities, estab-
lished a modern call center with an IP PABX designed to meet industry standards and best practices- 
with the capability ability to handle calls and provide solutions to the clients in their areas of concern, 
annual score of 94% on resolution of public complaints and awareness creation and undertook a cus-
tomer satisfaction survey where the satisfaction level of the customers who took the survey stood at 
59.15%. The Service also planted 600 trees under environmental initiatives under the ESG programme. 
On corporate visibility, the service developed and rolled a news corporate identity. This entailed brand-
ing of the new BRS premises and procurement of branded merchandize.  to enhance awareness and 
recognition. A number of partnerships were established such as the KIPPRA –BRS, Partnership with GIZ 
Ɂȶ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ��ɨɽȈˎƺȈƃȢ��ȶɽǉȢȢȈǼǉȶɽ�ɥɁʥǉɨǉǁ�ƺȃƃɽƹɁɽӗ�ĀƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�{�Ź�Ɂȶ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�
Information Disclosure for Companies Registered in Kenya, Partnership with IFC on Business Process 
ĄǉӸǉȶǼȈȶǉǉɨȈȶǼ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӗ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ƃȶǁ��Ȉɨǉ�Āʍɨƺȃƃɰǉ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӝ�

The Service continued to strengthen its institutional capacity during the year under review. A total of 
ǉȈǼȃɽ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ɨǉƺɨʍȈɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉ�ɽȃǉ�ȶǉǉǁǉǁ�ɥɨɁǁʍƺɽȈʤȈɽʰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ǉʯǉƺʍɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ�ƺɁʍ-
pled with numerous capacity building initiatives including conferences, trainings and workshops meant 
to build the employees skills and competencies. The Service offered 7 internships opportunities to the 
youth, provided medical insurance scheme to the employees and initiated culture change manage-
ȴǉȶɽ�ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰӝ�ěȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�ɰʍƺƺǉɰɰǹʍȢȢʰ�ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽǉǁ�ћѕՐ�Ɂǹ�Ȉɽɰ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ʍȶȈɽɰ�ɽɁ�јіћ�ĩɥɥǉɨ��ȈȢȢ�ƺȃƃȴƹǉɨɰ�ɽɁ�
provide quality service delivery to the public. The Service cascaded the corporate strategy into workable 
departmental strategies, on boarded more modules into the existing ERP, acquired new ICT infrastruc-
ture and provided online platforms for provision of quicker service delivery and timely response to our 
customers.  

Despite the said achievements, the service faced several setbacks and challenges such as the incon-
sistencies in the legal framework, inadequate budgetary allocation, inadequate ICT infrastructure and 
lack of a disaster recovery and continuity plan. Going forward, the service will continuously review the 
legal framework administered by the Service, diversify revenue sources, prioritize automation of services, 
invest in ICT and digital infrastructure to enhance service delivery and prioritize a BRS disaster recovery 
solution and plan among other activities aimed at addressing the challenges.
 



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022
16

i. VISION
Doing business made easier

ii. MISSION
To provide quality business support services that are responsive

to our customers throughout their business life cycle.

iii. MANDATE
The Business Registration Service (BRS) is a State Corporation established under the 
Business Registration Service Act, 2015. The mandate of the Service is to 
administer laws relating to the incorporation, registration, operation and management 
Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰӗ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥɰ�ƃȶǁ�ˎɨȴɰӝ��ȶ�ƺɁȶȶǉƺɽȈɁȶ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃȈɰӗ�9ĄČ�Ȉɰ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽɁӖ

a) Carry out registrations required under the various acts governed by the 
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ

b) Maintain registers, data and records on registrations carried out by the 
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ

c) Implement relevant policies and guidelines and provide Cabinet Secretary 
with necessary information to guide the formulation of policy and 
ƃȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ǉʯȈɰɽȈȶǼ�ɥɁȢȈƺʰ�ƃȶǁ�ǼʍȈǁǉȢȈȶǉɰӢ

d) :ƃɨɨʰ�Ɂʍɽ�ɨǉɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ƃȶǁ�ǁȈɰɰǉȴȈȶƃɽǉ�ɨǉɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ˎȶǁȈȶǼɰ�Ȉȶ�ˎǉȢǁɰ�ƺɁʤǉɨǉǁ�
by relevant laws through seminars, workshops, publications and to 
ɨǉƺɁȴȴǉȶǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶʰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉȴǉȶɽ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�ȢƃʥɰӢ

e) Collaborate with other state agencies for effective discharge of its 
ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰӢ

f) :ȃƃɨǼǉɰ�ǹǉǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ƃȶʰ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ƃȶǁ

g) Performs such other functions as may be necessary under the Business 
Registration Service Act.
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Justice (RTD) Erastus Githinji, CBS, EBS
Chairperson, Board of Directors, Business Registration Service

4CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It is my pleasure to present on behalf oh the Board of Directors of the Business 
Registration Service (the “Service”) the Annual Report and Financial State-
ment for the year ending 30th June 2022. The Service maintained a good per-
formance despite the challenges and risks associated with an election year. 

During the year under review, the Service designed a new Logo which has 3 
icons representing the core mandate of the Service which is the Company 
ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӗ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨӗ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȢȢƃɽǉɨƃȢ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӝ

BRS relocated from Sheria House to 316 Upper Hill Chambers. All the depart-
ments and units except Company registry and the Collateral Registry were 
ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽǉǁ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨӝ

AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ� їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ� ɽȃǉ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ƺɁȢȢǉƺɽǉǁ� ƃ� ɽɁɽƃȢ� Ɂǹ� ¶ɰȃɰ�
977,186,438 which was a drop from Kshs 1,091,800,124 collected in FY 2020/21 
ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽȈȶǼ�ƃ�ǁǉƺɨǉƃɰǉ�Ɂǹ�іѕӝњՐ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨǉʤȈɁʍɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ʥȃɁɰǉ�ɨǉʤ-
enue was attributed to the impact of COVID 19 and the operationalization of 
ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ӯ9ÝӰ�ĄǉǼʍȢƃɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�їѕїѕӝ�

ěȃǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ� їѕїіӣїї�ȴƃɨȟǉǁ� ɽȃǉ� ˎɨɰɽ� ʰǉƃɨ� Ɂǹ� ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽƃɽȈɁȶ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�
Strategic Plan. The Strategic plan was cascaded into an annual corporate 
work plan and implemented in line with the available budget. The Service 
implemented 16.6% out of the expected level of 20% by 30th June 2022.

The Service coordinated the signing of performance contract for the period FY 
2021/22 and implemented 90.7% of the activities stated in the performance 
contract and was scheduled for evaluation in the month of September 2022.

ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉɰ�ɽɁ�ȢǉʤǉɨƃǼǉ�Ɂȶ��:ě�ɽɁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӗ�ǉǹˎ-
ciency of internal operations, engagement with stakeholders as well as the 
general public. During the period under review. The ICT department devel-
oped 2 new systems (the Master list and the Task Management System) for 
ɽȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽɁ�ǹƃƺȈȢȈɽƃɽǉ�ɧʍȈƺȟǉɨӗ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉӗ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ɥɨɁʤȈɰȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ

The Master list is being used to clean up and develop a consolidated index of 
all registered entities. The resultant list is intended to be used to automate 
the name search functions by leveraging on emerging technologies such as 
ƃɨɽȈˎƺȈƃȢ�ȈȶɽǉȢȢȈǼǉȶƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȢƃɰɽȈƺ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃӝ

The task management system is an information management system devel-
Ɂɥǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƃʍɽɁȴƃɽǉ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽӝ��ɽɰ�ɁƹȚǉƺɽȈʤǉ�Ȉɰ�
ɽɁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉȶǉɰɰ�Ȉȶ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰȈȶǼ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ɨǉɧʍǉɰɽɰ�
from investigative agencies. It has helped supervisors monitor tasks assigned 
ƃȶǁ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉȈɨ�ɽǉƃȴ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�Ȉɰɰʍǉǁ�Ɂʤǉɨ�њѕѕѕ�Ɂǹˎ-
cial search reports from the system during the reporting period.

AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ� їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ� ɽȃǉ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ� ɽɁ� ǉʯǉƺʍɽǉ� Ȉɽɰ�
mandate on registration of businesses, registration of movable security rights, 
resolution of insolvency and supervision of Hire Purchase practice in Kenya. 
The Service recorded some notable progress and achievements during the 
period under review.

During the year under review, a total of 121,350 creditors advanced credit 
to borrowers using movable properties as collateral and a total of 140,717 
applications were made for registration of new businesses while the Service 
ʥƃɰ�ƃƹȢǉ�ɽɁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨ�ƃ�ɽɁɽƃȢ�Ɂǹ�іјїӗ�ўѝі�ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ�ȈȶǁȈƺƃɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ȢǉʤǉȢ�Ɂǹ�
94.5%. 

AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
year 2021/2022, the 
Service collected 
a total of Kshs 
977,186,438 which 
was a drop from 
Kshs 1,091,800,124 
collected in FY 
2020/21 representing 
a decrease of 
10.5% from the 
ɥɨǉʤȈɁʍɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
year whose revenue 
was attributed 
to the impact of 
COVID 19 and the 
operationalization 
Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�
Ownership (BO) 
Regulations of 2020. 
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ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ�ʥȈɽȃ�Ȉɽɰ�ȢǉǼȈɰȢƃɽȈʤǉ�ɨǉǹɁɨȴɰ�ƃǼǉȶǁƃ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ��ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶӰ�
(Amendment) Regulations, 2022. The regulation seeks to promote transparency in public procurement 
ƹʰ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨȈȶǼӗ�ƃ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶʰ�ɽɁ�ǁȈɰƺȢɁɰǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ƹǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ɁʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁƺʍɨȈȶǼ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰӗ�ʥȃǉɨǉ�
the company participates in public procurement and assets disposal under the Public Procurement 
and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 and to the contracting authority, where the company participates in a 
public private partnership arrangement under the Public Private Partnership Act, 2013. 

BRS developed a compliance management program (“CMP”) to help internal and external stakeholders 
to abide by and comply with the legal framework. This program was meant to provide a systematic 
approach in enhancing compliance with legal provisions. The CMP was used to track compliance rate of 
the Service on different statutory requirements. BRS had a compliance level of 96%. 

ěȃǉ�ɁɨǼƃȶȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ�ƹǉǼƃȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ʥȈɽȃ�їњ�ɨȈɰȟɰӝ�:ʍɨɨǉȶɽȢʰӗ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ȃƃɰ�ɨǉǁʍƺǉǁ�Ȉɽɰ�ȃȈǼȃ�ɨȈɰȟɰ�
from 10 to 6, its medium risks from 15 to 12. The remaining 7 out of 25 risks have now moved to the lower 
category. 

AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїїӗ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ�ƃȶ��ȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ�ĀɁȢȈƺʰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ�ƃȶ�
Ȉȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ�ǹɨƃȴǉʥɁɨȟ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ǹʍȶǁɰ�ȃǉȢǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƹǉȢɁȶǼ�ɽɁ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�Ɂɨ�ȈȶǁȈ-
viduals undergoing insolvency processes under the Insolvency Act. The policy provides an operating 
ǼʍȈǁƃȶƺǉ�ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ�ƃǁȴȈȶȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨԇɰ� Ȉȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ�ɥɁɨɽǹɁȢȈɁ� Ȉȶ�Ɂɨǁǉɨ�ɽɁ�ȴƃȈȶɽƃȈȶ�ƃ�
high-quality, low-risk portfolio, complying with the applicable laws, regulations and in line with prudent 
standards and best practices that comply with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(“IPSAS”).

AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨӗ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�Ȉȶ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ǁȈɨǉƺɽɁɨƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ��:ě�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ�ƃȶ��:ě��ɰɰǉɽ�
ĄǉǼȈɰɽǉɨ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�Ȉɰ�ȴǉƃȶɽ�ɽɁ�ȟǉǉɥ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰ�Ɂǹ�ƃȢȢ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉɰɽƃɽǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�Ąǉ-
ceiver was made the liquidator. By the end of the year, a total of 408 scans had been done representing 
ўѕՐ�Ɂǹ�ƃȢȢ�ɥƃɥǉɨ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰƺƃȶɰ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ɽȈɽȢǉɰ�ǁǉǉǁɰӗ�ȢɁǼƹɁɁȟɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰȃƃɨǉ�ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽǉɰӝ

During the period under review, the Service in partnership with National Council for Persons with Dis-
abilities (NCPWD) translated the Service Charter into braille and Kenya Sign Language. The Charter was 
also translated into Swahili to reach a larger audience. The Charter was also transcribed into an audio 
visual to help reach most of the people with disabilities. The Service made a big step in modernizing the 
customer service Centre. 

The Service rolled out phase 1 of the Call Centre Design, Operation and Optimization Plan by acquiring 
PABX IP-Telephone equipment installation works & relevant software application. During the Financial 
Year 2021/2022, the Service in collaboration with the Kenya Forest Service (KFS) adopted a half a hectare 
of degraded forest in Ngong Road Forest for reforestation, protection, conservation and maintenance 
for a period of 3 years. The Service planted six hundred [No.600] tree seedlings. The initiative was in line 
with supporting national efforts of achieving and maintaining at least 10% national forest cover and 
creating climate-resilient communities through restoration and protection of forest watersheds, and 
the creation of sustainable livelihoods for communities in Kenya.

ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǹƃƺǉɰ�ȴƃȚɁɨ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ƺȃƃȢȢǉȶǼǉɰ�ǁʍǉ�ɽɁ�Ȉȶƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽƃɨʰ�ƃȢȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶӝ�ěȃǉ�ɥɨɁȶɁʍȶƺǉ-
ȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�9ĄČ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ɰǉɥƃɨƃɽǉ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�ǹʍȢȢʰӸːǉǁǼǉǁ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽȃƃɽ�9ĄČ�ƃƺɧʍȈɨǉ�ƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ�Ȉȶǹɨƃ-
ɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉӗ�ɰɽƃǹǹӗ�ƃȶǁ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ȴƃɽǉɨȈƃȢɰ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ȶǉʥ�Ɂǹˎƺǉӝ��ȢȢ�ɽȃǉɰǉ�ɨǉɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�ƃɨǉ�ƺƃɥȈɽƃȢ�ȈȶɽǉȶɰȈʤǉӗ�ƃȶǁ�
the amount of budgetary allocation has not been adequate for BRS. As a result, some of the strategic 
interventions have not been implemented as planned such as recruitment of the full establishment 
ɰɽƃǹˎȶǼ�ȢǉʤǉȢӝ�ěȃǉ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽƃɨʰ�ƺɁȶɰɽɨƃȈȶɽɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƃȢɰɁ�ɨǉɰʍȢɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�Ȉȶƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ��:ě�Ȉȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉ�ɽɁ�ɰʍɥɥɁɨɽ�
digital service delivery. 

The Service will continue to implement its strategies and plan to completely digitize all its operations 
and records.  

I extend my gratitude to the Attorney General Justice (Rtd) Paul Kariuki Kihara, the Solicitor General, 
Mr. Kennedy N. Ogeto for the invaluable support they have accorded the Service during the reporting 
period. 

I wish to appreciate the Board of Directors who transacted during the period under review, including 
my predecessor, Ms. Carol Musyoka, for their esteemed contribution towards the achievements of the 
organization and for supporting me in providing leadership to the Service.

……………………………........................................................................………..
Justice (RTD) Erastus Githinji, CBS, EBS
Chairperson, Board of Directors
Business Registration Service
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5REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL 
Introduction
On behalf of the management and staff of BRS, I wish to acknowledge 
and appreciate the invaluable support and guidance of the Honourable 
Attorney General, the Solicitor General and the esteemed members of the 
Board of Directors and the great efforts which has contributed towards the 
ƃƺȃȈǉʤǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ƃ�ɰʍƺƺǉɰɰǹʍȢ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїї�ӯԄyťԅӰӝ���ƃȢɰɁ�ƃɥɥɨǉƺȈƃɽǉ�
the customers and citizens whom we serve, for the support and understanding 
ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉʰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ǼȈʤǉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ʥǉ�ƺɁȴȴȈɽ�ɽɁ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍɁʍɰȢʰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�ɽɁ�ȴǉǉɽ�
their expectations because customer centricity is the focus of the Service.

Relocation and Rebranding of Business Registration 
Service 
Since our operationalization in 2016, the Business Registration Service has 
experienced tremendous growth in stature. We have become a reliable 
government agency in offering services to the citizenry. 

Our journey started with a vision of making doing business in Kenya easier. 
The purpose being to provide quality business support services that are 
responsive to our customers throughout their business cycle. The focus has 
always been Customer Centricity. 

Today, we are bigger and better, our BRS family consists of highly trained and 
talented individuals who have over the years demonstrated their zeal to serve 
the public.  

During the FY 2021/2022 we reached a point where we were able to create 
our brand in order to better communicate the breadth of expertise that BRS 
ɽɨʍȢʰ�ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƃȢȈǼȶ�ʥȈɽȃ�Ɂʍɨ�ɨǉˎȶǉǁ�ʤƃȢʍǉ�ɥɨɁɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ʤȈɰȈɁȶӝ��ȶ�
the FY 2021/2022, we were excited and proud to announce our new branding 
and logo to our stakeholders and the public. 

This new brand of the Service was launched during the partial and phased 
ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ� Ɂǹ� Ɂʍɨ� Ýǹˎƺǉɰ� ɽɁ� іќɽȃ� yȢɁɁɨӗ� јіћ� ĩɥɥǉɨ� �ȈȢȢ� :ȃƃȴƹǉɨɰӗ� їȶǁ�
ÇǼɁȶǼ��ʤǉȶʍǉӝ��ɽ�ȴƃɨȟɰ�ɽȃǉ�ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�ȴȈȢǉɰɽɁȶǉ�Ȉȶ�Ɂʍɨ�ȚɁʍɨȶǉʰ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�ȶǉʥ�
opportunity to serve better.

Performance 

1. Financial Performance
In the FY 2021/2022, the Service collected revenue amounting to the 
Kshs. 977,186,438.24. This is a decline from the revenue collected in the 
FY 2020/2021, of Kshs. 1,091,453,814. The variance is owing to the fact that 
in the FY 2020/2021 the Service introduced a requirement for companies 
ɽɁ�ǁȈɰƺȢɁɰǉ�ɽȃǉȈɨ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ��ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƃȢɰɁ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉǁ�
companies to comply with other statutory requirements thus the revenue 
collected was much higher. Although there is a decline in revenue 
collection, the difference is not huge, and the Service’s efforts were good 
considering this was an election year, which is usually characterized by 
lower business investments and transactions. 
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See graph as shown below;

2. Institutional Performance 
AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�9ĄČ� ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽǉǁ�ʤƃɨȈɁʍɰ�ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ� ɽɁ� Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉ�Ɂʍɨ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ� Ȉȶ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
delivery- 

a. The Service transitioned all manual services to the online platform as well as discontinued 
all manual payment in agility of the service to adjust to physical service provision challenges 
posed by COVID. 

b. The Service improved the link a business process by deploying a two-step process allowing 
users to edit the application from front end. 

c. Conducted awareness campaigns on the use of movable assets to access credit which led 
to a record of a total of Kshs 1.898 trillion used to advance by creditors using movable prop-
erties as collateral.

d. :ȢɁɰǉǁ�іїљ�ˎȢǉɰӗ�Ɂʤǉɨ�ƃȶǁ�ƃƹɁʤǉ�ɽȃǉ�іѕѕ�ɽƃɨǼǉɽɰ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ɽȃǉ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�Ȉȶ��ȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ƃɰ�
well as successfully overturned taxation decision awarding 250M as legal fees.

e. The Service Introduced into law provisions on pre-insolvency moratorium and regulations.
f. The Service deployed an AI-based conversational Chatbot to facilitate clarity of potential 

enquiries posed to the Service.
g. The Service recruited staff members and enhanced its human resource capacity to enhance 

ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ
h. ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺƃȴǉ�ʍɥ�ʥȈɽȃ� ɽȃǉ�ƃȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽɰ� ɽɁ� ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ� ӯ9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ� �ȶ-

formation) Regulations, 2022 to broaden the scope on who can access the BO information. 
i. The Service sent out compliance notices on BO disclosure that led to over 70,000 compa-

nies complying with disclosure requirements. 

Future Outlook 
The Service will continue to improve its online platform and will work towards the complete 
digitization of its records to enhance service delivery and quality control of our processes. As well, 
ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�Ɂǹ�ˎ ȶƃȢȈɰƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĀɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ĄǉӸǉȶǼȈȶǉǉɨȈȶǼ�Ȉɰ�ǉʯɥǉƺɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ƺɁȴɥȢǉɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�
FY 2022/2023 and this will be particularly impactful to our stakeholders.

Customer Centricity is Key and following a request by the public the Service will implement a plan 
for regional visits by staff as part reaching out to the customer and uphold the values and strategies. 
We shall be acting in collaboration with our stakeholders to ensure that the efforts are focussed on 
the most effective outcomes with the resources that will be deployed. 

The Service during this FY embarked on a digitization of BRS records process with the assistance of 
the International Finance Corporation’s (IFC) Creating Markets Advisory (CMA) initiative and by the 
end of the FY 2021/2022 the Service developed a guiding framework to mitigate and avert future data 
quality problems within the service. Further, the Service began a process of acquiring an Electronic 
Document and Records Management System (EDRMS) whose prototype was developed and is 
undergoing testing. It is anticipated that the system will help the Companies Registry to digitize one 
million records during the pilot period.

Kenneth Gathuma HSC
Director General
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STATEMENT OF BUSINESS REGISTRATION SERVICE PERFOMANCE
 AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2021/2022
ČǉƺɽȈɁȶ�ѝі�ӯїӰ�ӯǹӰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ĀʍƹȢȈƺ�yȈȶƃȶƺǉ�ÃƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ��ƺɽӗ�їѕії�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉɰ�ɽȃƃɽӗ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ǉƃƺȃ�ˎ ȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�h ǉƃɨӗ�ɽȃǉ�
ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨ�ʥȃǉȶ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨȈȶǼ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉƃƺȃ�ÇƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�Ȉȶ�ƃƺƺɁɨǁƃȶƺǉ�
with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a 
statement of the national government entity’s performance against predetermined objectives.

Business Registration Service has 3 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the current Strategic 
Plan for the FY 2021/22- FY 2025/26. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows: 

1. Ease of Doing Business
2. Service Delivery, Corporate Visibility and Strategic Collaborations
3. Institutional Capacity

BRS develops its annual work plans based on the above 3 pillars/Themes/Issues. Assessment of the Board’s 
performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Service achieved its performance 
targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its 3 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Strategic 
Pillar/
Theme/
Issues

Objective Key Performance 
Indicators Activities Achievements

A) Ease 
of Doing 
Business

1. To promote  
ease of doing 
business

• No of business 
entities registered

• No of MPSR initial 
notices 

• No of MPSR 
Searches done

• HP licenses issued
• Number of 

legal reforms 
undertaken on 
ease of doing 
business 

• No of Insolvent 
ˎȢǉɰ�ƺȢɁɰǉǁ

• Percentage of 
linked Business 
entities 

• Level of Bo 
compliance

• Undertake automation of 
registry processes

• Undertake registration of 
business entities

• Automate at least 2 
manual processes 

• Promoting transparency in 
business ownership

• Development of Insolvency 
Investment Policy

• Development compliance 
management program

• Development of an Online 
Platform for Lodgement of 
Manual Applications

• ČȈȴɥȢȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�¸ȈȶȟӸ
a-Business Process

• Create awareness on 
9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ɁʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�

• Develop Master List of all 
registered entities 

• Conduct workshops to 
train and foster integration 
of the BRS system with key 
stakeholders such as TIMS, 
WHRC, SASRA,

• Inspection of Hire Purchase 
companies in the regions

• Issue Hire-purchase 
licenses 

• AȈǼȈɽȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�
Receivers Records

• Development of an Asset 
Register

• 133,023 business 
entities registered

• 118,157 MPSR notices 
registered 

• 23,154 MPSR searches 
done

• 36 HP licenses issued 
• 9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�

Information) 
(Amendment) 
Regulations, 2022

• 120 dormant 
�ȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ˎȢǉɰ�ƺȢɁɰǉǁ

• 36.1% of private 
companies BO 
complaint

• 37.8% of the business 
entities linked

6
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B) Service 
delivery, 
corporate 
image and 
collaborations 

2. To 
enhance user 
experience, 
awareness, 
and 
stakeholder 
collaborations

• Level of customer 
satisfaction 

• Number 
collaborations

• Awareness level of 
BRS mandate (%) 
in the population

• Transcription of BRS 
Customer Service Charter

• Resolution of Customer 
Complaints 

• Communication on social 
media

• Modernization of the 
Customer Service Centre

• Development of BRS Logo 

• Branding Initiatives

• Stakeholder Engagement 
and Collaboration

• 59.15%. of customers 
ɰƃɽȈɰˎǉǁ

•  4 collaborations made
• 58% level of awareness 

of the BRS mandate
• Complaint resolution 

rate of 84.23% was 
attained.

• A total of 21,839 
engagements, 368,948 
impressions, 1,594 
posts and 1,275 new 
followers across all the 
social media platforms

• PABX IP-Telephone 
equipment acquired 
and installed 

• six hundred [No.600] 
tree seedlings planted 
through CRS

• short animated 
explainer videos on 
Registration of Private 
Limited Companies 
and Filing of Annual 
Returns,

• 300 Customer Service 
Charter disseminated 

c) Institutional 
capacity 

3. To 
strengthen 
institutional 
capacity 
for BRS to 
deliver on its 
mandate 

• Staff turnover (%)
• Employee 

satisfaction index 
(%)

• Average corporate 
performance 
appraisal rating 
(%)

• Revenue 
collected (Ksh.

• Compliance level 
on AGPO 

• Compliance level 
on BKBK

• System uptime 
(%)

• ICT User 
     satisfaction
     index (%)

• No of policy 
briefs/reports 
disseminated

• Recruitment
• Capacity Building and 

Training 
• Facilitation of an Internship 

Programme
• establishment of employee 

welfare schemes
• ĄǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�9ĄČ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɰ
• Undertaking of MTEF 

Budget Process and 
Resource bidding exercise

• collection of Revenue for 
services offered by the 
Service

• Promotion of Local Goods 
and Services (BKBK)

• Asset Management & 
Valuation

• Development of Research 
Strategy

• Monitoring 
implementation of the 
Strategic plan

• Development of 
Departmental Strategies

• Development and 
implementation of the BRS 
Performance Contracting

• Provision of Statistical 
Support

• Implementation of 
Performance Contract

• Enterprise Resource 
Planning system 

• Acquisition of ICT 
equipment 

• 0% staff turnover
• 111 staff members 

trained on various 
courses and 
competencies

• 7 graduate interns 
offered internship 
opportunities

• 60% of relocation 
done

•  Kshs 977,186,438 
revenue collected 

• Asset register 
developed and 
updated 

• 68% satisfaction with 
ICT Services

• ERP implemented
• 4 surveys done
• Ýǹˎƺǉ�ǹʍɨȶȈɽʍɨǉ�

acquired

BRS Strategic Plan is implemented through Annual Work Plans (AWPs) where the strategic view and 
aspirations are broken down into departmental work plans. The Service incorporated the Performance 
Contracts commitments into work plan and linked budgeting to the annual work planning and 
performance contracting. The performance contract commitments were thus aligned to the 
organization’s strategic initiatives and strategies and prioritized during budgeting process and progress 
tracked on quarterly basis and the submitted to the PSPMMU in line with the PC guidelines. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Business Registration Service Board is established pursuant to Section 5 of the Business Registration 
Service Act 2015. The Board comprises the Chairperson, four (4) independent Board members, the 
Solicitor General, Principal Secretaries to the National Treasury and the Ministry for the time responsible 
ǹɁɨ�ȴƃɽɽǉɨɰ� ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ� ɽɁ� ɽɨƃǁǉӝ� ěȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ� Ȉɰ� ƃȶ� ǉʯӸɁǹˎƺȈɁ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁӝ� ěȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�
brings together members from different professional backgrounds with diverse skills, competencies 
ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȴɥȢȈǉɰ�ƹɨɁƃǁȢʰ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȶɰɽȈɽʍɽȈɁȶƃȢ�Ǽǉȶǁǉɨ�ƹƃȢƃȶƺǉ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɰ�ɰȃɁʥȶ�ƹǉȢɁʥӢ

Figure 1: Board Gender Representation

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and oversight of the Service. The function of 
the Board includes:

i. yɁɨȴʍȢƃɽǉ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ
ii. ǉȶɰʍɨǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴɰ�Ȉɽɰ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰӢ
iii. ȴɁȶȈɽɁɨ�ƃȶǁ�ǉʤƃȢʍƃɽǉ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ
iv. ƃɥɥɁȈȶɽӗ�ɽɨƃȈȶӗ�ǁȈɰƺȈɥȢȈȶǉ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉȴɁʤǉ�ȴǉȴƹǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ
v. ǉɰɽƃƹȢȈɰȃ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽɰ�ʥȈɽȃȈȶ� ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ƃȢȢɁƺƃɽǉ� ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ� ɽɁ� ɰʍƺȃ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽɰӢ�

and
vi. perform such other functions as prescribed by this Act or any other written law.

The Boards Key Achievements during the Financial Year 2021/2022 were:

i. ĄǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ȶǉʥ�ɥɨǉȴȈɰǉɰӢ
ii. ěȃǉ�ɨǉƺɨʍȈɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��:ě�AǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽӢ
iii. �ɥɥɨɁʤǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍɁʍɰȢʰ�ȴɁȶȈɽɁɨǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉԇɰ�9ʍǁǼǉɽӗ�ŚɁɨȟ�ɥȢƃȶ�ƃȶǁ�ĀɨɁƺʍɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ɥȢƃȶӢ
iv. �ȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉԇɰ�ĀǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽɨƃƺɽ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�Aǉ-

ɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�°ʍɰɽȈƺǉӢ
v. Implemented and monitored the Service’s Strategic Plan 
vi. The Board approved various policies including but not limited to Board Code of Conduct, the 

Research Policy, the Board Succession Policy, the internal Audit Manual, the Succession Plan-
ning Tracker among others.

The Board is committed to ensuring the Service’s obligations, roles and responsibilities are discharged 
through its corporate governance practices. The Board of Directors carries out its responsibilities with 
impartiality, honesty, transparency, professionalism, care and due diligence and at all times act in good 
faith to the best interest of the public. The Board is committed to ensuring that the highest level of 
integrity is sustained in the Service’s operations. 

7
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The Board strives for consensus in decision making and conducts informed decision making in 
the establishment of the organization’s strategic direction and monitoring of the organization’s 
performance. The Board comprises eight members appointed on term of three (3) years eligible for 
reappointment for a one further term.

The term of Service of Ms. Shella Sheikh and Mr. Brian Omwenga expired on 2nd May 2022 and the term 
of service for Mr. Brian Omwenga was renewed with effect from 3rd May 2022.

The term of service of Ms. Carol Musyoka as Chairperson ended on 6th October 2021 and the term of 
service of Mr. James Mureu ended on 28th October 2021. 

Justice (Rtd) Erastus Githinji was appointed as the Chairperson of the Board on 6th October 2021 and Mr. 
Faraj Mansur was appointed as a Board member on 28th October 2021. The two attended an induction 
training organized by the State Corporation Advisory Board in November 2021.

During the period under review, the Board attended two trainings on corporate governance and public 
ˎȶƃȶƺǉ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽӝ

ěȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�ȃƃɰ�ǹɁʍɨ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉɰ�ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺƃȢȢʰӖ

1. �ʍǁȈɽ�ƃȶǁ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶƃȶƺǉ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉӢ
2. ěȃǉ�ěǉƺȃȶȈƺƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼʰ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉӢ
3. �ʍȴƃȶ�ĄǉɰɁʍɨƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�yȈȶƃȶƺǉ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉӢ�ƃȶǁ
4. Compliance and Risk Committee.

ěȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�ȃƃɰ�ƃ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�:ȃƃɨɽǉɨ�ƃȶǁ�ǉƃƺȃ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƃ� ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺ�:ɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǉӝ� ěȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�
ǁȈɰƺȢɁɰǉɰ�ƺɁȶːȈƺɽ�Ɂǹ�Ȉȶɽǉɨǉɰɽ�ƹǉǹɁɨǉ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȴȴǉȶƺǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ǉƃƺȃ�ƹɁƃɨǁ�ȴǉǉɽȈȶǼӝ

The Board with the facilitation of the State Corporation Advisory Committee (‘SCAC’) an evaluation for 
the performance of the Board, and its individual Board members including the Director General. The 
Board obtained a score of 96.67% 

Board Attendance 
The Board meets at least once every quarter. The number of meetings held by the Board and its 
committees are as shown below with each member attendance: -

Members are entitled to a board sitting allowance in accordance with Circular No. OP/SCAC.1/9 dated 
19th November 2019 issued by the State Corporations Advisory Committee. 

Table; Board Members and Attendance of Meetings
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Justice (Rtd) 
Erastus Githinji 

Chairperson
From 6th October 
2021 to date

N/A N/A N/A N/A 3/3 10

Ms Carol 
Musyoka

Chairperson
Up to 6th October 
2021

N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 1

Mr Brian 
Omwenga

Chairperson 
Technical and 
Strategy

6/6 5/5 1 /1 N/A 6/6 3
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Mr. James 
Ndung’u 
Mureu

Chair Human 
Resource and 
Finance
Up to 28 October 
2021

N/A N/A 3/3 2/2 4/4 1

Mr. Faraj 
Mansur 

Chair Human 
Resource and 
Finance
From 10th 
February 2022

1/1 N/A 1/1 1/1 2/2 4

Ms. Shella 
Sheikh 

Chair Compliance 
and Risk

6/6 2/2 5/5 4/4 6/6 3

Ms. Catherine 
Musakali    

Chair Audit and 
Governance 

6/6 5/5 N/A N/A 7/7 5

Ms. Njeri 
Wachira

Member 4/4 N/A 3/3 3/3 7/7 3

Ms. Josephine 
Waruguru 
Macharia-
Kanyi

Member 1/1 4/4 5/5 4/4 7/7 5

Mr. John 
Mwendwa

Member 5/5 3/3 N/A N/A 6/6 2

Code of Conduct
The Business Registration Service continues to observe and implement the provisions of the Mwongozo 
Code of Governance. The Code binds both the Board Members and staff who join the Service. 

Risk Management
Risk management has been integrated into day-to-day operations across all departments. This 
guarantees that risks are managed optimally and comply with the approved policies and tenets of 
good corporate governance. In the year under review, the Service continued to implement mitigation 
ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈǉɰ�ɽɁ�ǉȶɰʍɨǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ɨȈɰȟ�ȢǉʤǉȢɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ȴȈȶȈȴȈ˃ǉǁӝ��ɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȴȴǉȶƺǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�
їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ȃƃǁ�їњ�ɨȈɰȟɰӗ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ȃƃǁ�іњ�ɨȈɰȟɰӝ�

The Risk Management Procedures and Registers were reviewed and aligned to the Enterprise Risk 
Management Policy. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SECTION A

Operational and Financial Performance
The Business Registration Service (BRS) was established by the Business Registration Service Act No.15 
of 2015. At cabinet level, the Service is represented by the Attorney General who is responsible for the 
general policy.� ěȃǉ� ɁɨǼƃȶȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ� ȃƃɰ� ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ� ɽɁ� ƺƃɨɨʰ� Ɂʍɽ� Ȉɽɰ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ� ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽȢʰ� ǁǉɰɥȈɽǉ� ȢȈȴȈɽǉǁ�
resources. Revenue collection continues to increase due to digitization of services on E- citizen platform.

The Service received Kshs. 444,650,000 recurrent grants from the Government to implement its 
programmes for the year under review.

SECTION B
Compliance with statutory requirements
Business Registration Service continues to comply with all statutory requirements and it does not have 
any major non-compliance to report. 

SECTION C
Key projects and investment decisions the entity is planning/implementing 
Business Registration Service is mainly funded by the National Treasury, and it receives a one-line 
Budget. There are no key projects and investments decisions the entity is undertaking at the moment.

SECTION D
Major risks facing the entity
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ�ǉʯɥɁɰǉ�Ȉɽ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ʤƃɨȈǉɽʰ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨȈɰȟɰӗ�ǹɁɨ�ǉʯƃȴɥȢǉ�ȢȈɧʍȈǁȈɽʰ�ɨȈɰȟӝ�
The Service overall risk management Programme focuses on the unpredictability of the economy and 
ɰǉǉȟɰ�ɽɁ�ȴȈȶȈȴȈ˃ǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ƃǁʤǉɨɰǉ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽɰ�Ɂȶ�Ȉɽɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӝ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
ɨǉǼʍȢƃɨȢʰ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥɰ�Ȉɽɰ�ɨȈɰȟ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴɰ�ɽɁ�ɨǉːǉƺɽ�ƺȃƃȶǼǉɰ�Ȉȶ�ȴƃɨȟǉɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȴǉɨǼȈȶǼ�
best practices. Risk management is carried out by the management under the supervision the Board of 
AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ���ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ�ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɁʤǉɨƃȢȢ�ɨȈɰȟ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽӗ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ�ƺɁʤǉɨȈȶǼ�ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺ�
areas such as liquidity risk and credit risk.

SECTION E
ÃƃɽǉɨȈƃȢ�ƃɨɨǉƃɨɰ�Ȉȶ�ɰɽƃɽʍɽɁɨʰӣˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɁƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶɰ
Business Registration Service did not have any active loans and generally it does not have any outstanding 
ƹȈȢȢɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ɥɨǉʤȈɁʍɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁɰӝ�

SECTION F
ěȃǉ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰԇɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɨɁƹȈɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰǉɨȈɁʍɰ�ǼɁʤǉɨȶƃȶƺǉ�Ȉɰɰʍǉɰ
Business Registration Service has a strong corporate governance structure and internal controls. The 
corporate governance is spearheaded by the Board of Directors.

SECTION G
i) Review of the economy
The data from the Quarterly Economic and Budgetary Review report by the National Treasury for Q4 
FY 2021/22 showed that the Kenyan economy demonstrated remarkable resilience to the COVID-19 
shock and expanded by 7.5 percent in 2021, a much stronger level from a contraction of 0.3 percent in 
2020. This economic recovery was mainly supported by the recovery in the service and industry sectors 
despite the subdued performance in the agricultural sector.

According to the report, the Private sector credit improved to a growth of 12.3 percent in the 12 months to 
June 2022 compared to a growth of 7.7 percent in the year to June 2021. This was supported by increased 
credit demand following improved economic activities. Strong credit growth was observed in the 
following sectors: mining, transport and communication, manufacturing, business services, agriculture, 
trade and building and construction. All economic sectors registered positive credit growth rates. The 

8
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Credit Guarantee Scheme for the vulnerable Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), continues to 
ǁǉӸɨȈɰȟ�ȢǉȶǁȈȶǼ�ƹʰ�ƺɁȴȴǉɨƺȈƃȢ�ƹƃȶȟɰ�ȃǉȶƺǉ�ɨǉȴƃȈȶɰ�ƺɨȈɽȈƺƃȢ�ɽɁ�ȈȶƺɨǉƃɰȈȶǼ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ː Ɂʥ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨȈʤƃɽǉ�ɰǉƺɽɁɨӝ 

Ýȶ�ˎɰƺƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӗ� ɽȃǉ� ɽɁɽƃȢ� ɨǉʤǉȶʍǉ�ƺɁȢȢǉƺɽǉǁ� ȈȶƺȢʍǁȈȶǼ��Ӹ�Ӹ��ƃȴɁʍȶɽǉǁ� ɽɁ�¶ɰȃɰӝ�їӗіўўӝѝ�ƹȈȢȢȈɁȶ�
against a target of Kshs. 2,192.0 billion. The total revenue collected from other streams apart from taxes, 
duties and investment amounted to Kshs 49.309 billion. Out of this BRS raised a total of Kshs 977.18 
million representing a total of 1.98 %. 

The growth was largely attributed to the improved operating business environment and targeted 
economic stimulus interventions by the Government. Among the economic recovery strategy initiatives 
listed, BRS played a big role in a number of ways

i. The initiative enhances resource mobilization to ensure sustainable funding of development 
programmes, Business Registration Service collected revenue amounting to Kshs 977.18 million.

ii. On the initiative to support the role of the private sector to enhance its role in economic devel-
opment by enhancing credit access by MSMEs through the Credit Guarantee Scheme. Business 
registration seeks to initiative measures aimed at increasing the uptake of credit through use 
Ɂǹ�ȴɁʤƃƹȢǉ�ɥɨɁɥǉɨɽȈǉɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ʍɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ÃɁʤƃƹȢǉ�ɥɨɁɥǉɨɽʰ��ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉɰ�ɨǉȶɽ�Ɂȶ�ȢƃȶǁӣƹʍȈȢǁȈȶǼɰӗ�ˎȶǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�
forfeitures, other taxes, loan interest receipts reimbursements and other fund contributions, 
fees, and miscellaneous revenue.

iii. �ȢȢɁʥɰ�ɽȃǉ�ÃČÃKɰ�ʥȃɁ�ȴƃʰ�ȶɁɽ�ȃƃʤǉ�ˎʯǉǁ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�ƺɁȢȢƃɽǉɨƃȢɰ�ɽɁ�ƃƺƺǉɰɰ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ɽɁɁӝ�
iv. On the initiative to upscale investment in ICT and digital infrastructure in order to facilitate 

ǉӸƺɁȴȴǉɨƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰ�Ɂǹ�ɥʍƹȢȈƺ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƃǁɁɥɽǉǁ�ƃ�ȶʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ��:ě�ɰɁȢʍ-
tions to improve delivery of services such as adoption of a lodgment platform for manual ser-
vices, adoption of a chatbot, acquisition of PABX IP-Telephone equipment installation works & 
ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�ɰɁǹɽʥƃɨǉ�ƃɥɥȢȈƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�KĄĀ�ɽɁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽȢʰ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ�

v. Another initiative on promotion of local production processes and domestic supply value 
chains to increase resilience of the economy to global supply chain shocks. The Service seeks to 
stream line supply chain processes and increase the amount of procurement awards towards 
local goods and services.

vi. The other initiative relevant to the Service is the initiative which seeks to implement various 
policy, legal and institutional reforms and strengthen monitoring and evaluation systems with 
ʍȢɽȈȴƃɽǉ�ǼɁƃȢ�Ɂǹ�ǉȶȃƃȶƺȈȶǼ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ɥʍƹȢȈƺ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ȃƃɰ�ƃȶ�ǉȢƃƹɁɨƃɽǉ�
framework on undertaking continuous review of legal, policy and regulatory framework on ease 
of doing business to facilitate business activities in the economy. Also, the Service has estab-
lished and seeks to strengthen the monitoring and evaluation function to ensure smooth im-
plementation of the services to the public.

ii) Review of the Sector
The Service plays a role in the Governance, Justice, Law and Order (GJLO) sector especially on 
governance of the registration services. The sub-sector contributes to the sector especially on promotion 
of governance, justice and law through provision of advisory and management of legal matters. 
BRS contributes to the sector through provision of the legal services on registration of business and 
ƃǁȴȈȶȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�Ȣƃʥɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰӗ�ˎɨȴɰӗ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰӗ�ȴɁʤƃƹȢǉ�ɥɨɁɥǉɨɽʰ�ČǉƺʍɨȈɽʰ�
Rights registries, Hire Purchase registries and insolvency matters. 

The Service contributes to the sector through the implementation of strategies under the KRA 1 strategic 
objective 1 of the sub-sector plan which seeks to provide quality legal services to the government and 
public. The Service implements initiatives aimed at enhancing Registration services under strategy 
number 11 through execution of the business laws and the functions listed in the BRS Act of 2015. Over 
the last the last 5 years since FY 2017/18 to FY 2021/22, The Service has played the role of the sector 
on provision of legal services by registering 611,867 business entities, registering 544,260 MPSR initial 
ȶɁɽȈƺǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ȢɁƃȶɰ�ɰǉƺʍɨǉǁ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ʍɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ÃɁʤƃƹȢǉ�ĀɨɁɥǉɨɽȈǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȃǉȢɥǉǁ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�Ȉȶ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ǁȈɰɽɨǉɰɰ�
through enhanced mechanism of the insolvency practice in the country.

iii) Future developments and any other information considered relevant to 
ɽȃǉ�ʍɰǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӝ

Going forward, The Service seeks to leverage on ICT based solutions to improve processes and services 
Ɂǹǹǉɨǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӝ�¶ǉʰ�ƃȴɁȶǼ�ɽȃǉȴ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ɰʍȈɽƃƹȢǉ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɽɁ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉ�
services to the public, implement a robust record management system to enhance the quality and 
ȈȶɽǉǼɨȈɽʰ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰӗ� ȴɁǁǉɨȶȈ˃ǉ� ɽȃǉ� ƺƃȢȢ� :ǉȶɽɨǉ� ƃȶǁ� ǉɧʍȈɥ� ɽȃǉ� ƺǉȶɽǉɨ� ʥȈɽȃ� ȴɁɨǉ� ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ� �:ě�
solutions, implement self-service options, digitize all records, fully automate all the manual process 
through the continuous BPR program, integrate internal registries for ease of service delivery, fast track 
implementation of link a business process, develop new products for MPSR to enhance credit access, 
enhance the resolution of insolvency matters through automation and implementation of ERP within 
the Service among other projects. 
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CHAPTER 2
PERFORMANCE AND ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE FY 2021/22

Introduction
AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ�ɽɁ�ǉʯǉƺʍɽǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ�Ɂȶ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�
businesses, registration of movable security rights, resolution of insolvency and supervision of Hire 
Purchase practice in Kenya. The Service recorded some notable progress and achievements during the 
year under review.

The Performance and achievements of the Service presented in this section is in line with the strategic 
ɥȢƃȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ȃƃɰ�ɽȃɨǉǉ�ȴƃȈȶ�ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ǹɁƺʍɰ�ƃɨǉƃɰ�ȶƃȴǉȢʰӢ�Kƃɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ǁɁȈȶǼ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰӗ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
delivery and Corporate visibility and Institutional capacity building.

Ease of Doing Business 
Business Registration and Support Services

Number of Businesses Registered 
During the FY 2021/22, the Service registered a total of 133,023 business entities. This comprised of 
85,592 Business Names, 46,215 Private Companies, 82 Public Companies, 196 Foreign Companies, 490 
CLGs and 448 LLPs. 

Table 2:1 Number of Businesses Registered 2021/22

Type Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Grand 
Total

Business 
Names

11,125 6,860 7,200 6,819 6,333 5,691 7,274 7,794 6,888 5,474 7,151 6,983 85,592

Private 
companies

5,790 3,953 3,825 3,505 3,436 3,549 3,797 3,878 4,093 3,008 3,680 3,701 46,215

Public 
Companies

7 9 6 6 5 7 9 11 1 4 6 11 82

Foreign 
Companies

25 15 14 15 17 14 28 11 12 12 15 18 196

Companies 
Limited by 
Guarantee 
(CLGs)

52 26 37 44 21 44 67 40 48 36 38 37 490

Limited 
Liability 
Partnerships 
(LLPs)

39 30 42 34 36 44 32 39 46 33 39 34 448

Total Entities 
Registered

17,038 10,893 11,124 10,423 9,848 9,349 11,207 11,773 11,088 8,567 10,929 10,784 133,023

A comparison with previous years shows that the number of businesses registered annually kept 
increasing over the years from FY 2016/17 to FY 2021/22. Although there was a drop in the number of 
businesses registered the overall trend for the last 5 years has been increasing indicating annual growth 
in businesses registered.
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Figure 1: 2 Number of Businesses Registered 2021/22

Total number of Business Entities in the Register
Total business entities registered as of 30th June 2022 is 2,022,168 of which 66.7% (1,348,040) are business 
names followed by private companies accounting for 32.6% (659,506). The least type of business 
registered include the Foreign Companies (0.11%) and LLPs (0.13%).

Table 2:2Total number of Business Entities in the Register FY 2021/22

Type of Entities Figures %

Total to date-Business Names 1,348,040 66.7%

Total to date-Private companies 659,506 32.6%

Total to date-Companies Limited by Guarantee (CLGs) 5,254 0.3%

Total to date-Public Companies 4,364 0.2%

Total to date-Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) 2,722 0.13%

Total to date-Foreign Companies 2,282 0.11%

Grand Total to date 2,022,168 100.0%
 
Business Linking Process
Link-a-Business is a data clean-up process that is currently ongoing at the Business Registration Service 
ӯ9ĄČӰ�ǹɁɨ�ʍȶʤǉɨȈˎǉǁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰǉɰ�ӯɽȃɁɰǉ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ�ƹǉǹɁɨǉ�Aǉƺǉȴƹǉɨ�їѕіћӰӝ�ěȃǉ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ƃȈȴɰ�ƃɽ�
updating all the business entities information. From the data showed that 37.8% of the business entities 
had been linked by June 2022. The data shows that during the FY 2021/22, the proportion of linked 
business entities rose from 33.4% in July to 37.8% by end of the FY 2021/22 representing a 4.4% increase. 
This is a major milestone considering that the process is done voluntarily by the business owners.
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Graphical Representation of trend in linking of businesses

Figure 1: 3 Graphical Representation of trend in linking of businesses

A breakdown of the linking process among different business entities shows that by the end of the FY 
2021/22, 99.3% of the LLPs were linked, 91.0% of the CLGs and 50.8% of the Private Companies. The least 
linked type of business included Foreign Companies at 23.0%, Public Companies 24.4% and Business 
Names at 31.4%. The Service remains committed to ensure all businesses are linked.

Table 2:3: A Breakdown of The Linking Process Among Different Business Entities

Type of Business Entity Total Entities 
Registered

Total Business 
Entities Linked

% of Businesses 
linked

Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) 2,722 2,703 99.3%

Companies Limited by Guarantee (CLGs) 2,282 2,077 91.0%

Private companies 659,506 334,873 50.8%

Business Names 1,348,040 423,116 31.4%

Public Companies 4,364 1,066 24.4%

Foreign Companies 5,254 1,206 23.0%

Grand Total 2,022,168 765,041 37.8%

9Ý��9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ��ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�
As of June 2022, 36.1% (237,813) of the private companies had declared their BOI status. A trend line 
shows a sudden increase from August to the month of September and the following months. The 
sudden increase is associated with the onboarding of casuals who assisted in clearing the backlog in 
the company registry thereby enabling a faster processing of BO applications faster.

Table 2:4: Tabular Representation of the BOI Compliance over the months

Values Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Private 
companies 
registered 
to date

620,567 622,936 626,540 630,187 634,147 637,131 641,236 644,915 648,913 651,923 655,604 659,506

Total Private 
companies 
which have 
declared 
their BO

170,819 176,057 192,596 198,456 204,445 208,655 214,319 219,251 224,458 228,462 233,002 237,813

Percentage 
of 
compliance 
with BO

27.5% 28.3% 30.7% 31.5% 32.2% 32.7% 33.4% 34.0% 34.6% 35.0% 35.5% 36.1%

33.40%
33.70%

34.20%
34.60%

35.10%
35.50%

36.00%
36.40%

36.80%
37.00%

37.40%
37.80%

31.00%

32.00%

33.00%

34.00%

35.00%

36.00%

37.00%

38.00%

39.00%

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Cumulative Percentage of Linked Business Entities for the Period July 2021 to June 2022 



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022
32

Graphical Representation of the BOI Compliance over the months

Figure 1: 4 Graphical Representation of the BOI Compliance over the months

Number of Applications for Business Dissolutions
The Companies Registry received a total of 2,189 business applications for strike off by the end of June 
2022. A comparison with previous year shows that the applications for strike off had declined signaling 
some form of resilience of the Kenyan businesses. 

Graphical representation of Monthly Applications for Dissolutions up to the month of June in 
FY2021/22

 Figure 1: 5 Graphical representation of Monthly Applications for Dissolutions up to the month of 
June in FY2021/22

Çʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ��ɥɥȢȈƺƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ʤɰ�Çʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ӯĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰӰ
In FY 2021/22, a total of 140,717 applications were made for registration of new businesses while the 
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ʥƃɰ�ƃƹȢǉ�ɽɁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨ�ƃ�ɽɁɽƃȢ�Ɂǹ�іјїӗ�ўѝі�ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ�ȈȶǁȈƺƃɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ȢǉʤǉȢ�Ɂǹ�ўљӝњՐӝ�yʍɨɽȃǉɨӗ�ɽȃǉ�
average applications made per month was 11,726 and the service was registering at an average rate of 
11,085. This may indicate that the Service is not able to cope with the applications coming if the level 

27.50% 28.30%
30.70% 31.50% 32.20% 32.70% 33.40% 34.00% 34.60% 35.00% 35.50% 36.10%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Compliance with the Beneˎcial Ownership Information Regulations in FY 2021/2022

139
162

176

138
120

172

368

294
266

229 226
250

290

211
193

179

146 163 145

184 181
158 151

188

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Application for dissolution of companies over the months 
Between july 2021 - June 2022  

FY 2020/2021 FY 2021/2022



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

33

of registration is sustained. This could probably be addressed through increased capacity to handle 
incoming applications by either increasing the staff numbers and increasing the level of digitization’s 
to make most of the processes automated to save on time taken.

»ƃƞǪƭ�ѾӸҁӸ�rȀǵȻǍǪɡ�¥ƭǆǒȮȻȦƃȻǒȀǵ�/ǅ˴ƟǒƭǵƟɡ

Values Applications Registered Variance % registered 

July 12,817 17,038 4,221 132.93%

Aug 12,203 10,893 -1,310 89.26%

Sep 12,264 11,124 -1,140 90.70%

Oct 10,963 10,423 -540 95.07%

Nov 12,110 9,848 -2,262 81.32%

Dec 9,118 9,349 231 102.53%

Jan 13,328 11,207 -2,121 84.09%

Feb 12,280 11,773 -507 95.87%

March 12,307 11,088 -1,219 90.10%

April 9,334 8,567 -767 91.78%

May 11,846 10,929 -917 92.26%

June 12,147 10,784 -1,363 88.78%

Grand Total 140,717 133,023 -7,694 94.53%

Development of an Online Platform for Lodgement of Manual Applications
In the month of September 2021, The Business Registration Service (BRS) transitioned to an online 
lodgment platform on manual.brs.go.ke for all manual services to enhance service delivery and improve 
ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǁȈɰƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ�ʍɰǉ�Ɂǹ�9ĄČ�ɥƃʰƹȈȢȢ�ƃȶǁ�9ƃȶȟǉɨɰ�:ȃǉɧʍǉ�ɰȈȶƺǉ�ɽȃǉ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�ʥƃɰ�ȴƃǁǉ�
in such a way to prompt payments through several online payment options provided. 

ČȈȴɥȢȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�¸ȈȶȟӸƃӸ9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĀɨɁƺǉɰɰ
Link-a-Business is a data clean-up process that is currently ongoing at the Business Registration Service 
ӯ9ĄČӰ� ǹɁɨ� ʍȶʤǉɨȈˎǉǁ� ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ� ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰǉɰ� ӯɽȃɁɰǉ� ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ� ƹǉǹɁɨǉ� Aǉƺǉȴƹǉɨ� їѕіћӰӝ� AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� yť�
їѕїіӣїїӗ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ʥƃɰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ɽʥɁӸɰɽǉɥ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƃȢȢɁʥɰ�ɽȃǉ�ʤǉɨȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ʤƃȢȈǁƃɽȈɁȶ�
of the information provided. The system was enhanced to allow users to amend/input the registration 
number, the company name, the share structure details (value of shares, category, etc.) directors/
shareholders, and residential address. The Company registry also developed a simple user guide manual 
for reference to users pertaining the upgrade.

Development of a Master list of all Registered companies 
To enhance effectiveness in the control and custody of the business entities registered under the 
Companies Act, 2015 and the Companies Act, Cap. 486 Laws of Kenya (now repealed), the registry 
developed a master list with key business details and by end of the year the overall processing of 
updating the list was 80% complete. The types of businesses had been details updated in the master 
list as shown:

i. Foreign companies - 100% (both review and approval)
ii. Public Companies - 100% (both review and approval)
iii. Business Names - 31% reviewed not yet approved
iv. LLPS - 100% (both review and approval)
v. Private Limited Companies - 92% reviewed and approved
vi. CLGs - 95% both reviewed and approved
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MPSR and Hire Purchase Registry 

Registration of Security Interest Notices and Regulation of the Hire Purchase
A total of 118,157 MPSR notices were registered and 23, 154 MPSR searches conducted during the FY 
2021/22. This represents a 15.1% percentage increase in notices from 102, 637 and 24.1% increase in 
searches recorded in the previous year. 

Table 2:1 6: Registration of Security Interest Notices and Regulation of the Hire Purchase

FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22

MPSR Initial Notices 101,718 120,380 101,368 102,637 118,157

MPSR Searches 3,990 17,165 14,003 18,665 23,154

During the same period a total of 36 Hire Purchases licenses were issued to HP merchants. The Service 
also inspected HP businesses in 4 regions to enhance compliance and ensure that the practice is done 
in line with the law.

Value of Credit Per Creditor Advanced using Movable Properties as Collaterals (Kshs 
Billions)
During the period under review, a total of Kshs 1.898 trillion was advanced by creditors using movable 
properties as collateral. A total of Kshs 1.02 trillion was advanced by foreign companies and corporations 
and a total of Kshs 822.40 billion by local companies. 

Table 2:7: Value of Credit Per Creditor Advanced using Movable Properties as Collaterals (Kshs 
Billions)

Month Alien Citizen Foreign 
company

Foreign 
unincorporated

Foreigner Local 
company

Local unincor
porated

Grand 
Total

July - 1.5875 10.6874 47.2054 0.0106 0.1269 - 59.6178

Aug 0.0002 7.1862 133.8244 413.9844 0.0091 0.1667 - 555.1709

Sep 0.0510 2.7029 29.7539 52.2647 0.0035 0.1074 - 84.8833

Oct 0.0145 0.6181 9.6249 - 0.0102 36.0213 0.1589 46.4479

Nov 0.0071 3.6767 3.6958 - 0.0072 59.7523 1.0822 68.2213

Dec 0.0096 8.6220 54.7838 - 0.0011 82.5307 0.1445 146.0917

Jan 0.0064 4.2235 4.3960 - 0.0307 45.3692 0.0769 54.1027

Feb 0.0033 1.4789 21.9640 - 0.0236 113.0614 5.8542 142.3854

Mar 0.0152 1.2559 180.6644 - 0.0007 367.6857 0.2455 549.8675

April 0.0206 1.3983 0.0274 - 0.0011 5.7021 0.1664 7.3158

May 0.0065 6.6244 56.2783 - 0.0036 77.2688 0.2584 140.4400

June 0.0174 3.7060 5.7738 - - 34.6059 0.1464 44.2495

Grand 
Total

0.1517 43.0804 511.4741 513.4544 0.1014 822.3986 8.1334 1,898.794

Number of Creditors who gave credit using Movable Property Collaterals
During the year under review, a total of 121,350 creditors advanced credit to borrowers using movable 
ɥɨɁɥǉɨɽȈǉɰ�ƃɰ�ƺɁȢȢƃɽǉɨƃȢӝ�ěȃǉ�ˎǼʍɨǉɰ�ɰȃɁʥ�ɽȃƃɽ�ȴɁɰɽ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽɁɨɰ�ƃǁʤƃȶƺǉǁ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�Ȉȶ�Ăі�ƃɽ�јїӗќњј�ƃȶǁ�Ăљ�ƃɽ�
31,068. The least number of creditors who advanced credit were in Q2 at 28,271. 
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Table 2:8: Tabular Representation of Quarterly Number of Creditors who gave credit using 
Movable Property collaterals

Type 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Grand Total

Alien 22 18 7 19 66

Citizen 1,661 1,393 1,056 1,213 5,323

Foreign company 40 56 29 32 157

Foreign unincorporated 30,519 - - - 30,519

Foreigner 45 19 121 3 188

Local company 466 26,017 27,028 28,445 81,956

Local unincorporated 768 1,017 1,356 3,141

Grand Total 32,753 28,271 29,258 31,068 121,350

Sensitization and Public Awareness Campaign
The MPSR registry continues to increase the level of awareness among the stakeholders and the public. 
During the period under review, a total of 523 people were sensitized on MPSR and Credit Guarantee 
scheme as shown:

• 9 staff from Maisha Bora SACCO on 24th August, 2021 
• 86 participants from Kenya Private Sector Association (KEPSA) on 21st September, 2021 
• 59 from Kenya Copyright Board (KECOBO) on 28th September, 2021
• 30 from 7 banks sensitised on Credit Guarantee scheme
• 78 from SACCOs in Meru on the 18th November, 2021 and Eldoret on the 30th November, 2021
• 261 sensitized during sensitization sessions held in Mombasa for SACCOs on the 3rd 

December,2021, Kenya Bankers Association on the 6th -9th December, 2021, Nairobi (SACCOs) on 
14th December, 2021 and in Nyeri (SACCOs) on 16th December, 2021.

Legal Services and Regulatory Reforms
�ȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ĄǉǼʍȢƃɽȈɁȶɰ�
AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїїӗ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ�ʥȈɽȃ�ȢǉǼȈɰȢƃɽȈʤǉ�ɨǉǹɁɨȴɰ�ƃǼǉȶǁƃ�ʥȃǉɨǉƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�
Ownership Information) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022 were formulated and gazetted. The 
Regulations seeks to promote transparency in public procurement by requiring, a company to disclose 
Ȉɽɰ�ƹǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ɁʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁƺʍɨȈȶǼ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�ʥȃǉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶʰ�ɥƃɨɽȈƺȈɥƃɽǉɰ�Ȉȶ�ɥʍƹȢȈƺ�
procurement and assets disposal under the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 and to 
the contracting authority, when the company participates in a public private partnership arrangement 
under the Public Private Partnership Act, 2013.

Contract management 
The Directorate of Legal Compliance & Research developed a contract register to track implementation 
of contracts against set requirements. This has enabled BRS to ensure that all parties meet their 
contractual obligations under each awarded contract- and reduce the risk of non-compliance. The 
contract register also enables preparation of quarterly contract implementation reports. During the 
period under review, the Department assisted the Service in drafting Sixteen (16) contracts One contract 
was completed and closed while Fifteen are on schedule.

Safeguarding BRS legal interests
BRS administers seven (7) different statutes under its mandate and is often faced with legal disputes 
arising from the actions taken in the course of their administration.  In the FY 2021/22, the Directorate 
of Legal Compliance & Research rendered legal opinions on different subject matter, represented BRS 
in court and closed 36 cases in favour of BRS thereby safeguarding the Service against the associated 
liability risks. Majority of the disputes are actions against the Registrar of Companies, concerning 
decisions and actions taken in the course of maintenance of company records. 

Compliance & Risk Management 
Implementation of compliance management program 
During the period under review, BRS continued with implementation of its compliance management 
program to help internal and external stakeholders to abide and comply with the legal framework. This 
program enables a systematic approach to promoting and enhancing compliance with legal provisions. 
The Compliance Management Program was used to assess BRS compliance levels on different statutory 
requirements. BRS had a compliance level of 96%.
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Enterprise Risk Management 
BRS implements an enterprise approach to risk management guided by the ERM Policy Framework 
ƃǁɁɥɽǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�Ɂȶ�іјɽȃ�°ʍȢʰӗ�їѕїїӝ�ěȃǉ�ǹɨƃȴǉʥɁɨȟ�ǉȶƃƹȢǉɰ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍɁʍɰ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶӗ�ƃɰɰǉɰɰȴǉȶɽ�
and mitigation of risks that BRS faces as it pursues its strategic objectives. 

AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥӗ�їњ�ɨȈɰȟɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ƃɰ�ȃƃʤȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ɽɁ�ƃǹǹǉƺɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƃƺȃȈǉʤǉȴǉȶɽ�
of BRS strategic and operational objectives. Mitigation plans were put in place and implemented to 
manage the risks and reduce their future occurrence and potential impact to the Service. At the end 
of the period under review, mitigation measures had been effective in reducing the risks that require 
attention from 25 to 18.

Legal risk {LCR (S) 02}
This is the risk that, as BRS pursues its strategic objectives, its activities and engagements with clients 
and other stakeholders become subjects of legal disputes and result in legal liabilities and obligations. 
During the period under review, BRS legal risk was high as there were 7 cases against the Service with 
ƃ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ǉʯɥɁɰʍɨǉ�Ɂǹ�¶ɰȃɰӝ�іӗіќљӗјўѕӗјќћӝќўӝ�ěȃǉ�¸ǉǼƃȢ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�Ȉɰ�ƃƺɽȈʤǉȢʰ�ȴȈɽȈǼƃɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶǁ�
managing the risk and has implemented different strategies including representing the Service in court 
ƃȶǁ�ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽȈȶǼ�ƃ�ɨɁƹʍɰɽ�ƺɁȴɥȢȈƃȶƺǉ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ɥɨɁǼɨƃȴȴǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�ǉȶƃƹȢǉɰ�ǉƃɨȢʰ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ծ�
mitigation of the factors that cause disputes to arise.

ICT Systems risk {ICT (0) 01} 
9ĄČ� ɨǉȢȈǉɰ�ȃǉƃʤȈȢʰ� Ɂȶ� �:ě� Ȉȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉ� ɽɁ� ǉȶȃƃȶƺǉ�ƃƺƺǉɰɰ� ɽɁ� ƃȶǁ� Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰ�
of core services. One of the potential risks associated with this strategy is Infrastructure breakdown, 
ʍȶƃʤƃȈȢƃƹȈȢȈɽʰӗ� ʥǉƃȟȶǉɰɰǉɰ� Ȉȶ� ǁǉɰȈǼȶ� ƃȶǁ� ƺɁȶˎǼʍɨƃɽȈɁȶӗ� ȈȶƺɁȴɥƃɽȈƹȈȢȈɽʰ� Ȉɰɰʍǉɰӗ� Ɂɨ� ɰʰɰɽǉȴ� ɰʍɥɥɁɨɽ�
challenges. 

During the period under review, ICT system risk was high and there were recurrent incidents where 
some of the ICT infrastructure such as network and e-mail systems kept failing and had recurring issues 
of downtime as a result. Operating on shared network and having minimal control of some of the 
ɰʰɰɽǉȴɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ƃɰ�ȟǉʰ�ɨȈɰȟ�ǁɨȈʤǉɨɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ȈȶɽǉɨʤǉȶɽȈɁȶӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�Ȉɰ�ȴȈɽȈǼƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽȃȈɰ�ɨȈɰȟ�
through different strategies and has acquired its own network which it has control over and is able to 
maintain. Weekly system back-ups and regular system vulnerability assessments are carried out. Plans 
have been put in place to establish a disaster recovery site, and 2 servers were procured to host the ERP 
system. There is also an on-going Business Process Re-engineering project which is expected to address 
ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�ǁǉɰȈǼȶ�ʥǉƃȟȶǉɰɰǉɰӝ�

 Strategy implementation risk {CP(S) 01} 
Strategy implementation risk is the potential risk that the strategies adopted by BRS will fail or that they 
will not be fully implemented. The key risk drivers are uncertainties around resourcing of the strategic 
plan initiatives, inadequate cascading of the strategic plan and employee skills gaps in some of the areas 
covered by the strategic plan.  BRS implemented different strategies which led to a reduction in the risk 
from High to Low.  Resource mobilization had yielded additional funds to support strategic initiatives 
and cascading of the Plan through departmental strategies had commenced. Work plans had also been 
developed and were being implemented and performance management systems including the annual 
performance contract indicators and appraisal tools had been aligned with the Plan. Monthly tracking 
and monitoring of the status of implementation was taking place and reporting was being done on a 
ɧʍƃɨɽǉɨȢʰ�ƹƃɰȈɰӝ��9ʰ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɨǉʤȈǉʥӗ�ƃɥɥɨɁʯȈȴƃɽǉȢʰ�ѝѕՐ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎɨɰɽ�ʰǉƃɨԇɰ�ȈȶȈɽȈƃɽȈʤǉɰ�
had been implemented.

Culture risk {HR (S) 05}
Ýȶǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈǉɰ�ɰǉɽ�Ɂʍɽ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ĀȢƃȶ�Ȉɰ�ԄɽɁ�ǉȶɽɨǉȶƺȃ�ƃ�ȶǉʥ�ƺʍȢɽʍɨǉ�ƃɽ�9ĄČԅ�
in order to transform BRS services into customer-centrist services. Culture risk can occur when there 
is misalignment between BRS’s vision, mission, core-values and its systems, processes and employees. 
At the beginning of the FY 2020/21, this risk was assessed as a MEDIUM risk and plans were put in 
ɥȢƃƺǉ� ɽɁ� ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽ� ɰǉʤǉɨƃȢ�ȴȈɽȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ� ȈȶȈɽȈƃɽȈʤǉɰ� ȈȶƺȢʍǁȈȶǼӖ� ƃɰɰǉɰɰȈȶǼ� 9ĄČ� ƺʍȢɽʍɨǉӗ� ǁǉˎȶȈȶǼ� ǁǉɰȈɨǉǁ�
cultural attributes and developing and institutionalizing a culture programme in order to mitigate the 
risk.  During the period, an employee & customer satisfaction survey was conducted to assess culture 
strengths and gaps and have a starting point for a BRS culture programme. The results of the survey 
ǉȶƃƹȢǉǁ�ɽȃǉ� ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ǁǉɰȈɨǉǁ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�ƺʍȢɽʍɨƃȢ�ƃɽɽɨȈƹʍɽǉɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ʥǉɨǉ� ȈȶƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉǁ� ȈȶɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�
performance management system to enable their measurement.
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Data risk {ICT (O) 02}
BRS generates, receives, processes and stores different types of data in the course of executing its 
mandate. The capability to manage, protect and secure its data assets is of strategic importance to 
the Service and its stakeholders and different measures were put in place during the period under 
review to achieve this and minimize the risk that can lead to compliance issues and loss of reputation. 
Some of the measures that were commenced include formulation of a data strategy, ICT strategy and 
records management strategy. The records management strategy was completed and approved and 
Ȉɰ�ƺʍɨɨǉȶɽȢʰ�ƹǉȈȶǼ�ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽǉǁӝ�ÇɁ�ȈȶƺȈǁǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ǁƃɽƃ�ƹɨǉƃƺȃ�ʥƃɰ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ�ƃȶǁ�ɥƃɰɽ�
incidents were being investigated in liaison with the investigative agencies. To mitigate the likelihood 
of future recurrence, regular audits to detect control gaps were being carried out and employees were 
sensitized on cyber security issues to increase data security consciousness. Data security systems were 
also being implemented including multiple factor authentication processes, installation of encryption 
ɰɁǹɽʥƃɨǉ�ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ˎɨǉʥƃȢȢɰӝӨ

Data and Records Management
Digitization of BRS records
The digitization of BRS records is being done through International Finance Corporation’s (IFC) 
Creating Markets Advisory (CMA) initiative. The initiative supports governments to improve the business 
environment for domestic and foreign investors.  One of the programs is Kenya Competitiveness and 
Enhancement Program (KCEP) which is supporting the Service to enhance the system, design and 
execute data clean-up activities that seeks to eliminate the current shortcomings and gaps of the data 
sets owned by BRS. 

ěȃǉ�ǁƃɽƃ� ƺȢǉƃȶɰȈȶǼ�ʥɁɨȟ�ʥƃɰ�ǁȈʤȈǁǉǁ� ȈȶɽɁ� ɽȃɨǉǉ�ɥȃƃɰǉɰӢ� ɥȃƃɰǉ� Ɂȶǉ� ǹɁƺʍɰǉɰ� Ɂȶ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�
ǼʍȈǁȈȶǼ�ǹɨƃȴǉʥɁɨȟ�ɽɁ�ȴȈɽȈǼƃɽǉ�ƃȶǁ�ƃʤǉɨɽ�ǹʍɽʍɨǉ�ǁƃɽƃ�ɧʍƃȢȈɽʰ�ɥɨɁƹȢǉȴɰ�ʥȈɽȃȈȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉӢ�ɥȃƃɰǉ�ɽʥɁ�
on acquisition of Electronic Document and Records Management System (EDRMS) and phase three on 
piloting a digitization instance of the physical records using the newly deployed EDRMS. 
By the end of the year, phase one of the project had been completed and phase two was on course 
where a prototype had been acquired and was undergoing testing. It is anticipated that the system will 
help the Company registry to digitize one million records during the pilot period.

Resolution of Insolvency Matters
Čʍȴȴƃɨʰ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�yȈǼʍɨǉɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�°ʍȢʰ�їѕїі�ɽɁ�°ʍȶǉ�їѕїї
ěȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ӯÝĄӰ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰ�ɰȃɁʥɰ�іѝ�ƃɥɥȢȈƺƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ɥɨƃƺɽȈɽȈɁȶǉɨɰ�ȴƃǁǉ�ƃɥɥȢȈƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�
renew their licenses. 11 persons applied to be declared bankrupt whereas 35 petitions for liquidation 
ƹʰ� ƺɁʍɨɽ� ʥǉɨǉ� ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ� ƹʰ� ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ� ɨǉƺǉȈʤǉɨӝ� yʍɨɽȃǉɨ� іі� ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ� ɰɁʍǼȃɽ� ʤɁȢʍȶɽƃɨʰ� ȢȈɧʍȈǁƃɽȈɁȶӗ� ў�
sought administration through court and 11 administrations by directly appointing their liquidators. 
ěȃǉ�ǁƃɽƃ�ɰȃɁʥɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ƃɰ�ƃɽ�°ʍȶǉ�їѕїїӗ�њќ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ȃƃǁ�ǹƃƺǉǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ƺȃƃȢȢǉȶǼǉɰ�ӯјњ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɥǉɽȈɽȈɁȶɰ�ǹɁɨ�
liquidations, 20 administrations and 2 under receivership).

»ƃƞǪƭ�ѾӸ҅Ӹ�­ɃǳǳƃȦɡ�Ȁǅ��ǅ˴ƟǒƃǪ�¥ƭƟƭǒɚƭȦ�FǒǆɃȦƭȮ�ǅȦȀǳ�cɃǪɡ�ѾѼѾѽ�ȻȀ�cɃǵƭ�ѾѼѾѾ

Type of Record Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Grand 
Total

Application & renewal 
for insolvency 
practitioners’ licence

2 4 1 0 0 1 3 2 1 3 1 0 18

Bankruptcy order 
application (debtor’s 
application)

1 0 2 0 1 3 0 2 0 2 0 0 11

Bankruptcy order 
application (creditors’ 
petition)

0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 5

Application for no asset 
procedure

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Application for 
individual voluntary 
arrangements

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Application for summary 
instalment order

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Petitions for liquidation 
of companies by court

2 7 1 2 6 2 2 3 6 2 0 2 35
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Application for company 
voluntary arrangements

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Companies under 
voluntary liquidation

1 0 2 1 0 3 0 0 0 1 3 0 11

Application for 
administration by court

4 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

Administration by Direct 
Appointment

5 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 1 11

Companies under 
administrative 
receivership

0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2

Development of Investment Policy
AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� yť� їѕїіӣїїӗ� ɽȃǉ� Ýǹˎƺǉ� Ɂǹ� ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ� ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ� ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ� ƃȶ� �ȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ� ɥɁȢȈƺʰ� ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ� ƃȶ�
Ȉȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ� ǹɨƃȴǉʥɁɨȟ� ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ� ǹʍȶǁɰ� ȃǉȢǁ� ƹʰ� ɽȃǉ� ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ� ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ� ʥȃȈƺȃ� ƹǉȢɁȶǼ� ɽɁ� ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ� Ɂɨ�
individuals undergoing insolvency processes under the Insolvency Act. The policy provides an operating 
ǼʍȈǁƃȶƺǉ�ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ�ƃǁȴȈȶȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨԇɰ� Ȉȶʤǉɰɽȴǉȶɽ�ɥɁɨɽǹɁȢȈɁ� Ȉȶ�Ɂɨǁǉɨ�ɽɁ�ȴƃȈȶɽƃȈȶ�ƃ�
high-quality, low-risk portfolio, complying with the applicable laws, regulations and in line with prudent 
standards and best practices that comply with the International Financial Reporting standards (IFRS).

:ȢɁɰʍɨǉ�Ɂǹ�AɁɨȴƃȶɽ��ȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ˎȢǉɰ
AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� yť� їѕїіӣїїӗ� ɽȃǉ� ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ� ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ� ƺȢɁɰǉǁ� ƃ� ɽɁɽƃȢ� Ɂǹ� іїѕ� ǁɁɨȴƃȶɽ� ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ȴƃɽɽǉɨɰӝ� ěȃȈɰ�
ɨǉǁʍƺǉǁ� ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽȢʰ� ɽȃǉ� ʍȶɰɁȢʤǉǁ� ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ȴƃɽɽǉɨɰ� ƺɁʍȶɽɨʰ� ʥȈǁǉӝ� ěȃȈɰ� ʥƃɰ� ƃƺȃȈǉʤǉǁ� ǁǉɰɥȈɽǉ� ɽȃǉ�
ǹƃƺɽ�ɽȃƃɽ�ƺȢɁɰʍɨǉ�ȃƃǁ�ƹǉǉȶ�ȃƃȴɥǉɨǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɰǉʤǉɨƃȢ�ƃǁȚɁʍɨȶȴǉȶɽɰ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�:Ɂʍɨɽɰӝ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ɨǉȴƃȈȶɰ�
committed to further close more dormant matters as it seeks to enhance resolution of insolvency 
matters. 

Capacity building on Insolvency 
�ȶ�yť�їѕїіӣїїӗ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ȃǉȢǁ�ƃ�ƺƃɥƃƺȈɽʰ�ƹʍȈȢǁȈȶǼ�ʥɁɨȟɰȃɁɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�ěǉƺȃȶȈƺƃȢ�ŚɁɨȟȈȶǼ�
{ɨɁʍɥ�ӯƺɁȴɥɨȈɰȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨԇɰ�ɰɽƃǹǹӗ��ȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�ɥɨƃƺɽȈɽȈɁȶǉɨɰӗ�Kɨȶǉɰɽ�ծ�ťɁʍȶǼӗ�Ā¶yӗ�ĀŚ:�ƃȴɁȶǼ�
others) on insolvency practice in Kenya of which a total of 35 insolvency stakeholders attended. During 
the workshop topical areas were discussed namely, appointment of administrators, secured transitions 
rights during Insolvency Act, recognition of foreign insolvency proceedings, challenges facing recovery 
of assets and advancements in the Insolvency Practice and emerging trends.

��ȶɁɽȃǉɨ�ʥɁɨȟɰȃɁɥ�ʥƃɰ�ȃǉȢǁ�ɽɁ�ǁȈɰƺʍɰɰ�ʥȈɽȃ�ǼɁʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢɰӗ� Ȣƃʥʰǉɨɰ�ƃȶǁ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ɰɽƃȟǉȃɁȢǁǉɨɰ�Ɂȶ�
how knowledge and experiences in insolvency law accumulated in Japan for many years can be utilized 
in Africa. The workshop was attended by representatives from Business Registration Service, High court 
Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃ�ƃȶǁ�̧ ƃʥ�ˎ ɨȴɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�¶ǉȶʰƃӗ�ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽƃɽȈʤǉɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�{ȃƃȶƃ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɨӸ{ǉȶǉɨƃȢɰԇ�Aǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽӗ�{ȃƃȶƃ�
Association of Restructuring and Insolvency Advisors (GARIA), Ghana Law Firms (AB & David, Bentsi-
Enchill, Lesta & Ankomah, N. Dowuona & Company) and representatives from Law and Justice Team, 
Governance Group, Governance and Peacebuilding Department, JICA and consulting team.

Development of an Asset Register
AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨӗ�ɽȃǉ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�Ȉȶ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ǁȈɨǉƺɽɁɨƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ��:ě�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ�ƃȶ��:ě��ɰɰǉɽ�
ĄǉǼȈɰɽǉɨ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�ʥƃɰ�ȴǉƃȶɽ�ǁȈǼȈɽȈ˃ǉ�ƃȢȢ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉɰɽƃɽǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�Ȉɰ�
the liquidator. By the end of the year,90 % of the records were digitized. The records digitized include 
ěȈɽȢǉɰ�ǁǉǉǁɰӗ�ȢɁǼƹɁɁȟɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰȃƃɨǉ�ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽǉɰӝ

�ʍɽɁȴƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨɰ�ĄǉƺɁɨǁɰ
ěȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ƃƺɽɰ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ƺʍɰɽɁǁȈƃȶ�ƃȶǁ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ɨǉɥɁɰȈɽɁɨʰ�Ɂǹ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�
Ɂɨ�ƹƃȶȟɨʍɥɽƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ȶƃɽʍɨƃȢ�ɥǉɨɰɁȶɰӝ�ěɁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽȢʰ�ɥɨǉɰǉɨʤǉ� ɽȃǉ� ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰӗ� ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ƹǉǼƃȶ� ɽȃǉ�
ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ� Ɂǹ� ƃʍɽɁȴƃɽȈȶǼ� Ȉɽɰ�ȴƃȶʍƃȢ� ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ� Ɂǹˎƺǉӝ� ČǉʤǉɨƃȢ� ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ� ʥǉɨǉ� ʍȶǁǉɨɽƃȟǉȶ� ɰʍƺȃ� ƃɰ�
ǁǉɰȈǼȶȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨɰ�ƃɨǉƃɰ�Ɂǹ�ƃʍɽɁȴƃɽȈɁȶӗ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɽǉƺȃȶȈƺƃȢ�ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�
also digitization of the paper assets. By the end of the year a total of 405 scans had been done for paper 
ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ɰʍƺȃ�ƃɰ�ɽȈɽɽȢǉ�ǁǉǉǁɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȢɁǼƹɁɁȟɰӗ�ȃǉȢǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨӝ�
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Service Delivery, Corporate Visibility & Collaborations

Customer Service 
Transcription of BRS Customer Service Charter 
During the period under review, the Communication Unit in partnership with National Council for 
Persons with Disabilities (NCPWD) translated the Service Charter into braille and Kenya Sign Language. 
The charter was also translated into Swahili to reach a huge number of audiences. The charter was also 
transcribed into an audio visual to help reach most of the people with disabilities. 

Customer Satisfaction Survey
ěɁ� ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ� ɽȃǉ� ƺʍɰɽɁȴǉɨ� ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӗ� ɽȃǉ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ʍȶǁǉɨɽɁɁȟ� ɽȃǉ� ˎɨɰɽ� ƹƃɰǉȢȈȶǉ� ɰʍɨʤǉʰ� Ɂȶ� ƺʍɰɽɁȴǉɨ�
ɰƃɽȈɰǹƃƺɽȈɁȶӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰʍɨʤǉʰ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽǉɨǉǁ�ƃ�ɰƃɽȈɰǹƃƺɽȈɁȶ�ɨƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�њўӝіњՐӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰʍɨʤǉʰ�ƃȢɰɁ�ɥɁȈȶɽǉǁ�Ɂʍɽ�ȟǉʰ�ˎȶǁȈȶǼɰӗ�
areas of improvement and recommendations.

Resolution of Customer Complaints 
During the Financial Year 2021/2022, the Service resolved public complaints in accordance with the 
BRS Complaint Handling Policy and the Commission on Administrative Justice (CAJ) 11th Performance 
Contracting Guidelines. In the year under review, the Service documented a total of two hundred and 
forty-eight (No.248) complaints, of which a resolution rate of 84.23% was attained. Notably, the Service 
also accomplished a cumulative turnaround time of 10 days to address all complaints received and 
documented. The Commission on Administrative Justice (CAJ) in rating the Service on resolution of 
public complaints and awareness creation awarded a score of 94%, a performance rating that is very 
good.

E-Communication Engagement Social media is one of the primary drivers of the customer revolution: 
the shift towards a world in which consumers expect companies to respond to their wants, needs and 
complaints. During the year under review, the Service used social media as a key channel to address 
customer queries and provide guidance on various processes.

During the Financial Year 2021/2022, the service attained a total of 21,839 engagements, 368,948 
impressions, 1,594 posts and 1,275 new followers across all the social media platforms. A breakdown of 
ǉƃƺȃ�ɧʍƃɨɽǉɨ�Ȉɰ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�Ǽɨƃɥȃ�ƹǉȢɁʥӢ�

 Figure 1: 6 Resolution of Customer Complaints

Modernization of the Customer Service Centre
During the year, BRS made a big step in modernizing the customer service centre. The Service rolled 
out the 1st phase 1 of the Call Centre Design, Operation and Optimization Plan by acquiring PABX IP-
Telephone equipment installation works & relevant software application.
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Corporate Visibility

Development of BRS Logo 
During the year under review, the management with the supervision of the board designed a new Logo 
for the Service. The logo was unveiled internally by the Director General in December 2021. The logo has 
ј�ȈƺɁȶ�ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽɰ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁɨǉ�ȴƃȶǁƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�Ȉɰ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӗ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ÃĀČĄӝ

Branding Initiatives
The development of the BRS Logo and its subsequent launch enabled the Service to produce other 
branded items in an effort to enhance corporate visibility. During the year, the Service produced 6 Rolls 
banners, 1 media banner, snapper frames, 10 pcs of service charter of size zero and 10 pcs of service 
charter of size A3.  Other items included branded polo shirts, blouses and shirts for staff members. 

Public Awareness 
Public awareness is an important undertaking for service delivery. During the FY 2021/22 BRS engaged 
in a number of public awareness activities. The Service produced short, animated explainer videos on 
Registration of Private Limited Companies and Filing of Annual Returns, facilitated publishing of the 
news articles in the Business Daily, MyGov and Standard Newspapers, facilitated Radio informercials to 
ƹǉ�ƃȈɨǉǁ�Ɂȶ�:ȢƃɰɰȈƺ�іѕњӗ�ĄƃǁȈɁ�ÃƃȈɰȃƃ�ƃȶǁ�:ȈɽȈ˃ǉȶ�ĄƃǁȈɁ�Ɂȶ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ��ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶӝ���ɽɁɽƃȢ�Ɂǹ�
500 pcs of Customer Service Charter in A5 format were designed and printed out of which more than 
300 pcs were disseminated during the devolution conference.

Stakeholder Engagement and Collaboration
The following partnerships support the implementation of the above stated projects:

1. ĀƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ��y:�Ɂȶ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĀɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ĄǉӸǉȶǼȈȶǉǉɨȈȶǼ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӗ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�
Receiver and Hire Purchase Registry

2. ĀƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�{�Ź� Ɂȶ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ� �ȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�AȈɰƺȢɁɰʍɨǉ� ǹɁɨ� :ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰ-
tered in Kenya

3. ĀƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�ŚɁɨȢǁ�9ƃȶȟ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�yȈȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ČǉƺɽɁɨ�ČʍɥɥɁɨɽ�ĀɨɁȚǉƺɽ�ɽɁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃ-
ƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺƃȢȢʰ�Ɂȶ�ƃƺƺǉɰɰ�ɽɁ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉɰɁȢʤȈȶǼ�ȈȶɰɁȢʤǉȶƺʰ

4. Partnership with FSD Kenya on improvement of the e-Collateral Registry and the Movable 
Property Security Rights Act

5. ĀƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�{�Ź�Ɂȶ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ��ɨɽȈˎƺȈƃȢ��ȶɽǉȢȢȈǼǉȶɽ�ɥɁʥǉɨǉǁ�ƺȃƃɽƹɁɽ

Institutional capacity 

Human Resource Management

Recruitment 
�ƺɧʍȈɰȈɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɰʍǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ȃʍȴƃȶ�ǹɁɨƺǉ�Ȉɰ�ƃȶ�ȈȴɥɁɨɽƃȶɽ�ɰɽǉɥ�ɽɁʥƃɨǁɰ�ɥɨɁʤȈɰȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɰƃɽȈɰǹƃƺɽɁɨʰ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽɁ�
the public. In this regard, the Service competitively recruited 8 BRS staff members. These included a 
Director of ICT to head directorate of ICT, 1 Internal Auditor for the Audit function and 6 Senior Clerical 
Ýǹˎƺǉɨɰ�ɽɁ�ʥɁɨȟ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨʰӝ

Capacity Building and Training 
During the FY 2020/21, several capacity building events were held by BRS for the staff members. A total 
of 28 staff members were involved I at least one of the capacity building initiatives. This helped some of 
the staff members to get CPD points from the professional bodies and others get new knowledge and 
skills while others got inducted into the BRS culture and environment.
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Table 2:10: Capacity Building and Training

S/No ACTIVITY Staff Attended

1 Security awareness 1

2 Information security awareness training 1

3 Risk Management W/Shop- 4

4 Capacity Building Programme for PSIP Mentors 2

5 Annual 25TH National HR Conference 4

6 Annual Seminar for ICPAK Members 6

7 National Representatives Conference Secretaries 2

8 Conference Records & Information Management 2

9 Annual Conference ‘ The Inaugural National Dialogue on Procurement, 3

10 Training -NTSA Road And Safety Training 15

11 Workshop -Information Security Management System 10

12 ěɨƃȈȶȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ȶɽǉǼɨȈɽʰ��ɰɰʍɨƃȶƺǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉɨɰ�ӯ��ÝɰӰ 4

13 Training - HIV Committee Sensitization 12

14 ěɨƃȈȶȈȶǼ�Ӹ:ƃɨǉǉɨ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ�ǹɁɨ�KʯǉƺʍɽȈʤǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉɨ 1

15 ICT Authority Connections Summit Workshop 1

16 Conference -29th Annual ICT Management 3

17 Workshop formulation on Internal Audit 3

18 workshop The Exchange of Information on request (EOIR) 2nd Round Review 4

19 Conference 39th ICPAK Annual Seminar 6

20 Workshop - AI Chatbot Knowledge Transfer 8

21 Corporate Governance Training for the board 15

22 Annual Congress Transformative Change Management 4

23 Training on Manual Platform processes 60

24 KRA tax training webinar 40

25 9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ěɨƃȈȶȈȶǼ 6

26 ěɨƃȈȶȈȶǼ�Ɂȶ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ǼʍȈǁǉȢȈȶǉɰ 5

Total 111

Internship Programme
The Constitution of Kenya, 2010 requires the State to take measures to ensure that the youth gain 
access to relevant education, training and employment. In this regard, the Public Service Commission 
(PSC) developed an internship policy in 2015 that establishes mechanisms for ensuring that the 
ʰɁʍɽȃӗ�ǉɰɥǉƺȈƃȢȢʰ�ɽȃɁɰǉ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�ɧʍƃȢȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶɰӗ�ƃɨǉ�Ɂǹǹǉɨǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ɁɥɥɁɨɽʍȶȈɽʰ�ɽɁ�ǼƃȈȶ�ɥɨƃƺɽȈƺƃȢ�ʥɁɨȟ�
experience in public institutions to improve their competitiveness in the job market. In pursuance of 
this policy, the Service recruited 7 graduate interns in different departments within BRS.

Employee Welfare
The Board approved the establishment of employee welfare schemes, the welfare schemes approved 
ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ� ɽȃǉ�Čɽƃǹǹ�ÃǉǁȈƺƃȢ� Čƺȃǉȴǉӗ�{ɨɁʍɥ�ĀǉɨɰɁȶƃȢ��ƺƺȈǁǉȶɽɰ� ӯ{Ā�Ӱ�:Ɂʤǉɨӗ�{ɨɁʍɥ� ȢȈǹǉ� ƃȶǁ�ƃ�ǁǉˎȶǉǁ�
ĄǉɽȈɨǉȴǉȶɽ�9ǉȶǉˎɽ�Čƺȃǉȴǉ�ǹɁɨ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉɰ�Ɂȶ�ɥǉɨȴƃȶǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ĀǉȶɰȈɁȶƃƹȢǉ�ɽǉɨȴɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰȴǉȶɽӝ�ěȃǉ�
service pays service gratuity for employees on contract as per their terms of employment. Disability 

Health and Safety in the Workplace 
To ensure health and safety of the staff members in the workplace. BRS OSHA committee is in place 
with its membership drawn across the seven department to support in creating awareness and assist in 
times of any disaster at workplace. During the year, the Service maintained a safe working environment 
with no incidence of injury, provision of PPEs, clean washrooms and provision of clean drinking water 
for the staff to ensure they worked in a free and conducive working environment. 
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Our Purpose Statement 
To provide quality business support services that are responsive to our customers 
throughout their business life cycle.  
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Business Registration exists to transform lives and this is the driving force in everything we do.  The 
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ɥʍɽɰ� ɽȃǉ� ƺʍɰɽɁȴǉɨӣ� ƺȈɽȈ˃ǉȶ� ˎɨɰɽ� ƃȶǁ� ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨ� ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ� ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ� ěȃǉ� ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ� Ȉɰ� ƺɁȴȴȈɽɽǉǁ� ɽɁ�
ȈȴɥɨɁʤȈȶǼ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ɽɁ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉ�ǉʯƺǉȢȢǉȶɽ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ�ɽɁ�Ȉɽɰ�ƺȢȈǉȶɽɰӝ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
together with its strategic partners and stakeholders have made this possible. The Business Registration 
Service exist to make the business sector competitive by streamlining and automating the business 
registration processes, in line with international best practices and global trends to ensure quality 
delivery of services.

The Service’s main purpose is to provide quality business services that are responsive to our customers 
throughout their business life cycle. 

i) ČʍɰɽƃȈȶƃƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼʰ�ƃȶǁ�ɥɨɁˎȢǉ
ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉԇɰ� ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ɥȢƃȶ� ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ� їѕїіӣїѕїїӸїѕїњӣїѕїћ� ȈȶƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉɰ� ɽȃǉ� ɰʍɰɽƃȈȶƃƹȢǉ�
ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ� ǼɁƃȢɰ� ƃȶǁ� ȃƃɰ� ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺƃȢȢʰ� ƃȈȴǉǁ� ƃɽ� ǁȈɨǉƺɽȢʰ� ɥɨɁȴɁɽȈȶǼ� ɽȃɨǉǉ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� ĩÇԇɰ� ɥɁɰɽӸїѕіњ�
sustainable development agenda launched at the Sustainable Development Summit in September 
2015. Particularly: 

Goal 8. Promote sustained, inclusive, and sustainable economic growth, full and productive employment, 
and decent work for all. 8.3 Promote development-oriented policies that support productive activities, 
decent job creation, entrepreneurship, creativity, and innovation, and encourage the formalization and 
ǼɨɁʥɽȃ�Ɂǹ�ȴȈƺɨɁӸӗ�ɰȴƃȢȢӸƃȶǁ�ȴǉǁȈʍȴӸɰȈ˃ǉǁ�ǉȶɽǉɨɥɨȈɰǉɰӗ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁȈȶǼ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ƃƺƺǉɰɰ�ɽɁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ�
The Service has contributed towards the achievement of this goal by providing an online platform that 
is easily accessible from everywhere for registration of business entities and registration of security 
rights in movable property. 

The insolvency department also contributes towards these goals through administration of companies 
which is an alternative to liquidation. Under administration, a company is maintained for a period of 
one year which can be extended by court, or the company is sold as going concern. During the period of 
administration, there is a moratorium on all proceedings against the company. This provides a company 
ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ɁɥɥɁɨɽʍȶȈɽʰ�ɽɁ�ɰɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺƃȢȢʰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ɥɨǉʤǉȶɽ�Ȉɽ�ƹǉȈȶǼ�ȢȈɧʍȈǁƃɽǉǁӝ�

Goal 16. Promote peaceful and inclusive societies for sustainable development, provide access
to justice for all and build effective, accountable, and inclusive institutions at all levels. 16.b which seeks 
to promote and enforce non-discriminatory laws and policies for sustainable development. The Service 
has contributed to this goal through the support and creation of an enabling policy and legal framework 
which support ease of going business.

Goal 17. Strengthen the means of implementation and revitalize the Global Partnership for Sustainable 
Development. 17.1 which aims at strengthening domestic resource mobilization and 17.3 on mobilization 
Ɂǹ�ƃǁǁȈɽȈɁȶƃȢ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȈȶǼ�ƺɁʍȶɽɨȈǉɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȴʍȢɽȈɥȢǉ�ɰɁʍɨƺǉɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�
intends to implement strategies aimed at increasing the amount of revenue collected for supporting 
growth and development.

The Service is in the process of acquiring an electronic document and records management 
ɰʰɰɽǉȴԝӯEDRMS) which will ensure all its records are digitized and do away with paper records.  The 
Service aims at fully automating all its services to enhance business sustainability.

ii) Environmental performance
The organization appreciates the needs for it to ensure there is environmental sustainability. The Service 
has established an Environmental Social and Governance (“ESG”) Committee which is working on 
developing an ESG policy and strategy.

The Service is leveraging on technology to promote environmental sustainability. The organization 
ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉɰ�ɽɁ�ǉȶȃƃȶƺǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ɁȶȢȈȶǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�Ȉɰ�ʥɁɨȟȈȶǼ�Ɂȶ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤȈȶǼ�Ȉɽɰ�ʥɁɨȟːɁʥɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǁȈǼȈɽȈ˃ȈȶǼ�ƃȢȢ�Ȉɽɰ�
records. The organization has also developed an Enterprise Resource Planning�ӯԄKĄĀԅӰӗ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�
most of its internal processes are lodged and approved, making majority of the internal process such as 
Ȣǉƃʤǉӗ�ɨǉɧʍȈɰȈɽȈɁȶɰ�ƃȴɁȶǼ�Ɂɽȃǉɨɰ�ɥƃɥǉɨȢǉɰɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤȈȶǼ�Ɂȶ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰӝ�

The Board also continued to utilize its e-board platform and Board members were issued with tablets 
for purposes of leveraging on ICT to preserve the environment. 

9
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iii) Employee Welfare
Under the employee welfare which is a social pillar of the service., the Service is an equal opportunity 
employer and all candidates are selected on merit through fair and open competition from the widest 
range of eligible candidates. In making appointments, the Service considers the gender, regional, ethnic 
ƃȶǁ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ǁȈʤǉɨɰȈɽȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɁɥȢǉ�Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃӝ�ěȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰԇ�ɥɨȈȶƺȈɥȢǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ƃǹˎɨȴƃɽȈʤǉ�ƃƺɽȈɁȶӗ�Ǽǉȶǁǉɨ�ƃȶǁ�
persons with disability will apply by observing gender balance on appointment/promotion and ensure 
that a minimum of 30% are of either gender. The current staff establishment as stands at 111 comprising 
of 47 males and 64 females respectively.

Figure 2; Staff Gender representation

iv)  Ethnic Diversity 
BRS had a total of 17 ethnic tribes represented within the Service during the FY 2021/22. The most 
populous ethnic groups included Kikuyu (33.3%), Luhya (13.5%), Luo (9.9%), Kalenjin (9.0%) and Kisii 
(9.0%). The least populous ethnic groups included Samburu, Mijikenda, Maasai, Gerreh, Pokot, Burji and 
Bajuni as shown in the table.

Table 2:11: Ethinic Diversity

S/No Ethnic Group Group Percentage

1 Kikuyu 37 33.3%

2 Luhya 15 13.5%

3 Luo 11 9.9%

4 Kalenjin 10 9.0%

5 Kisii 10 9.0%

6 Kamba 7 6.3%

7 Meru 6 5.4%

8 Mbeere 3 2.7%

9 Taita 3 2.7%

10 Teso 2 1.8%

11 Bajuni 1 0.9%

12 Burji 1 0.9%

13 Pokot 1 0.9%

14 Gerreh 1 0.9%

15 Maasai 1 0.9%

FEMALE

MALE

Staff Gender Representation

58% 42%
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16 Mijikenda 1 0.9%

17 Samburu 1 0.9%

Total 111 100.0%

The Service recognizes the need for training and development of all employees. It therefore committed 
to offer training opportunities to all its employees in order to improve their work performance and 
personal development. This is done by conducting a training needs analysis after every three years 
and on need basis. The Service has lived to its commitment in matters learning and development and 
ǉȶɰʍɨǉǁ�Ȉɽɰ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɽɨƃȈȶǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�Ȣǉƃɨȶ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ƹǉɰɽ� Ȉȶ�Ɂɨǁǉɨ�ɽɁ�ɰʍɰɽƃȈȶ�ɥɨɁǁʍƺɽȈʤȈɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ɥǉɨɰɁȶƃȢ�
ǼɨɁʥɽȃӝ� � �ȶ� ɽȃǉ� Ȣƃɰɽ� ɽȃɨǉǉ�ȴɁȶɽȃɰ�Ɂʍɨ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƃɽɽǉȶǁǉǁ�ƃ�ȶʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ� ɽɨƃȈȶȈȶǼɰӗ�ʥɁɨȟɰȃɁɥɰ�ƃȶǁ�
seminars a total of twenty programs with 95 employees in attendance.

The Service recognizes performance management system as a critical component of Human Resource 
Management function whose overall objective is to manage and improve performance of the Service by 
enabling higher level of employee participation and involvement in planning, delivery and evaluation 
of work performance. This is achieved through the Staff Performance Appraisal which forms a critical 
component of the human resource management function. It is predicated upon the principal of work 
planning, setting of agreed performance targets, feedback and reporting. 

This is linked to other human resource systems and processes including staff development, career 
progression, placement as well as rewards and sanctions. The appraisal period is continuous covering for 
one (1) year with effect from 1st July to 30th June of the following year with performance target setting 
for both departmental and individuals done at the beginning of the appraisal period. An elaborate 
appraisal tool is completed by both supervisor and the team members The Performance Appraisal 
ɨǉːǉƺɽɰ�ɽȃǉ�ɰʍȴȴƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨԇɰ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӝ

The Service recognizes and commit itself to the achievement of the highest standards of health and 
safety in the workplace, and the elimination or minimization of health and safety hazards and risks 
that may affect its employees. In this regard, it implements policies and programmes that assure their 
protection from such hazards and disasters in compliance with the provisions of Occupational Safety 
and Health Act, 2007 and other Labor Laws. A functional Occupation Safety and Health Administration 
Committee (OSHA) is in place which meets regularly to deliberate on matters health and safety as 
required. In addition, the service has procured insurance covers for group personal accidents as required

v) Market place practices
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ȃƃɰ�ɥʍɽ�Ȉɽɰ�ǉǹǹɁɨɽɰ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǹɁȢȢɁʥȈȶǼ�Ȉȶ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ȴƃɨȟǉɽ�ɥȢƃƺǉ�ɥɨƃƺɽȈƺǉɰӢ

a. Responsible competition practice
 BRS undertakes procurement in a manner that is fair, equitable, transparent, competi  
 tive and cost effective through open tendering method. At least 30% of the annual pro  
 curement expenditure budget is reserved and awarded to Youth Women and Persons Living   
 with Disabilities. 

 In addition, BRS uses the standard bidding documents as published by the Public Procurement 
Regulatory Authority which requires bidders to declare that they will not engage in corrupt prac-
tices. Furthermore, we undertake proactive disclosure of tenders and contracts awarded in order 
to enhance transparency.

b. Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations 
� ěȃǉ�ɰʍɥɥȢʰ�ƺȃƃȈȶ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�ȃƃɰ�ƃ�ɥɨɁƃƺɽȈʤǉ�ɥɁȢȈƺʰ�ɽɁ�ɽɨƃȈȶ�ɰʍɥɥȢȈǉɨɰ�ǉƃƺȃ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨӝ�ěȃǉ�

training helps suppliers, especially the Youth, Women and Persons Living with Disability owned 
companies, to navigate the tendering process. These trainings help build capacity of the target 
group and ensure good business practices.

 Furthermore, BRS has a policy to pay suppliers within 30 days from the date of submission of 
necessarily documentation upon satisfactory delivery of goods, works or services. 

c. Responsible marketing and advertisement
 Procurement opportunities are shared on the BRS website (www.brs.go.ke), government tenders’ 

portal (www.tenders.go.ke) and the social media handles for access by potential bidders.

d. Product stewardship
 Business Registration Service insists on product warranty and manufacturers authorization for 

all goods supplied in order to ensure supply of goods of reasonable quality that protects from 
harmful goods.
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Employee Satisfaction Survey
The BRS Strategic plan envisions a Service with well-motivated productive staff. For better assessment 
and making key initiatives aimed at improving staff performance and productivity, the Service carried 
out an Employee Satisfaction Survey to equip management with informed insight on the level of 
ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�ɰƃɽȈɰǹƃƺɽȈɁȶӗ�ƺɁȶƺǉɨȶɰ�ƃȶǁ�Ǽƃɥɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�Ȉȶːʍǉȶƺǉ�ɽȃǉȈɨ�ɥɨɁǁʍƺɽȈʤȈɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ȢȈȟǉȢʰ�ɽɁ�Ȉȴɥƃƺɽ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�
entire BRS performance. The overall employee satisfaction was 58%.

Culture Change management
:ʍȢɽʍɨǉ�Ȉɰ�ƃȶ�ȈȴɥɁɨɽƃȶɽ�ƃɰɥǉƺɽ�Ɂǹ�ƃȶ�ɁɨǼƃȶȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽӝ�ěȃǉ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ɥȢƃȶ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ƺʍȢɽʍɨǉ�
as an important aspect which needs to be assessed and managed to ensure smooth service delivery. 
During the FY 2021/22, The Service in an effort to adopt a more cohesive culture embraced an open 
Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɰǉɽ�ʍɥ�ɽɁ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉ�ȈȶɽǉɨƃƺɽȈɁȶɰӗ� ȈȶɽɨɁǁʍƺǉǁ�ȴɁȶɽȃȢʰ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�ǉȶǼƃǼǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȈȶɽɨɁǁʍƺǉǁ�ƺʍȢɽʍɨǉ�
indicators into the performance management system among others.

Ýǹˎƺǉ��ǁȴȈȶɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ĀȃʰɰȈƺƃȢ��ȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉ�

Relocation of BRS from Sheria House to 316 Upper Hill Chambers (Partition and installation 
works)
AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїїӗ�9ĄČ�ȴƃǁǉ�ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽǉǁ�ǹɨɁȴ�ČȃǉɨȈƃ��Ɂʍɰǉ�ɽɁ�јіћ�ĩɥɥǉɨ��ȈȢȢ�:ȃƃȴƹǉɨɰ�ːɁɁɨ�іќӝ��ȢȢ�
the departments and units except Company registry and the MPSR were relocated during the year. The 
photos show the state at the beginning of the project and after completion of the project.

Work Environment survey
In line with the strategic plan, BRS undertook a work environment survey among the staff members 
where aspects related to work such as disaster preparedness, noise pollution, cleanliness, location, 
ƺɁȶʤǉȶȈǉȶƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶƃȢȈɽȈǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ʥƃɰȃɨɁɁȴɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƺǉɥɽȈɁȶ�ƃɨǉƃɰӗ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ɰʍɥɥȢȈǉɰӗ�
ɰʍǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽȈɁȶǉɨʰӗ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɥɥǉƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȴǹɁɨɽƃƹȈȢȈɽʰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȴǉǉɽȈȶǼɰ�ɨɁɁȴɰӗ�ƺȢǉƃȶȢȈȶǉɰɰӗ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�
payout, adequacy and appropriateness of the furniture, décor and stress level among staff members 
were assessed.

Financial Resource Mobilization, Utilization and Revenue Collection 

MTEF Budget Process and Resource bidding 
During the year under review the division participated in the production of Program Performance Review 
ӯĀĀĄӰӗ�ĀɨɁǼɨƃȴ�9ƃɰǉǁ�9ʍǁǼǉɽ�ӯĀ99Ӱ�ĄǉɥɁɨɽ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ČʍƹӸČǉƺɽɁɨ�ĄǉɥɁɨɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�Čɽƃɽǉ�¸ƃʥ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�
months of September, October and November 2019. The Department also took part in the bidding of 
ɨǉɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�9ĄČ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ɽʍȶǉ�Ɂǹ�¶ɰȃɰ�љїѕӝјњ�ȴȈȢȢȈɁȶ�ƃɽ�ÃɁȴƹƃɰƃӝ�¸ƃɽǉɨ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ�ƃ�ɰɽɨɁȶǼ�ȚʍɰɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶӗ�ɽȃǉ�
Service was awarded Kshs 24 million during the supplementary budget.

Revenue Collection 
In line with the Section 4 (f) of the BRS Act 2015, The Service is mandated to charge fees for services 
rendered by the Service which makes one of the revenues for the National government. During the 
FY 2021/22, The service collected a total of Kshs 977,186,438 which was a drop from Kshs 1,091,800,124 
ƺɁȢȢǉƺɽǉǁ� Ȉȶ�yť�їѕїѕӣїі� ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽȈȶǼ�ƃ�ǁǉƺɨǉƃɰǉ�Ɂǹ� іѕӝњՐ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ� Ȣƃɰɽ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ʥȃɁɰǉ�ɨǉʤǉȶʍǉ�
ʥƃɰ�ƃɽɽɨȈƹʍɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�Ȉȴɥƃƺɽ�Ɂǹ�:Ýř�A�іў�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɁȴȈȶǼ�ȈȶɽɁ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ӯ9ÝӰ�
Regulations of 2020. 

Table 2:12: Revenue Collection

Revenue Streams 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Grand Total

Company Registry 266,055,972 213,355,274 256,246,317 225,404,243 961,061,806

Hire Purchase 150,000 950,000 800,000 350,000 2,250,000

ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ 363,700 1,231,496 661,166 645,210 2,901,572

Rev-MPSR 2,385,000 2,967,000 2,796,000 2,695,000 10,843,000

Other Income-Payroll 28,923 31,402 34,130 35,606 130,060

Total BRS revenue 268,983,595 218,535,172 260,537,613 229,130,059 977,186,438
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Supply Chain Management
Tenders Awarded
During the FY 2021/22 the supply chain unit awarded 99 tenders to procure goods and services for BRS 
worth Kshs 307.2 million. Further, BRS complied with all provisions and asset disposal processes as 
outlined in the Public Procurement &Asset Disposal Act, 2015 (PPAD). The Service settled all contracts 
within the year under review and did not have any pending bill as of 30th June 2022.

AGPO
Access to Government Procurement Opportunities (AGPO) initiative for women, youth and persons 
living with disabilities was operationalised by the Public Procurement and Disposal Act 2005. The 
ƃǹˎɨȴƃɽȈʤǉ�ƃƺɽȈɁȶ�ɥɨɁǼɨƃȴ�ʥƃɰ�Ȣƃʍȶƺȃǉǁ�Ɂȶ�іћɽȃ�ÝƺɽɁƹǉɨ�їѕіј�ɽɁ�ǹƃƺȈȢȈɽƃɽǉ�ɽȃǉ�ȢǉǼƃȢ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ǹɁɨ�
disadvantaged groups to access 30% of all public tenders. Since then, all public entities are required 
to adhere to its provisions. During the FY 2021/22, the Service awarded a total of Ksh 129.8 million to 
AGPO group. Out of this, a total of Kshs 1.4 million was awarded to PWDs in compliance with 18th cycle 
performance contract guidelines.

Promotion of Local Goods and Services (BKBK)
In an effort to promote industries, people and enterprises producing local goods and services, the Service 
spend a total of Ksh 177.4 million on local goods and services. Secondly, in line with the Presidential 
directive on promotion of Local Textile Industry which requires that all Staff to wear African Attire made 
of locally manufactured fabrics on selected days preferably during Fridays and Public holidays. BRS 
procured 60 locally made branded t shirts for the staff members to promote local textile industries in 
line with the directive.

Asset Management & Valuation
During the FY 2021/22, Supply Chain Unit undertook an exercise of valuation and updating the asset 
register. During the exercise the assets were tagged accordingly values recorded accordingly and the 
asset register updated. Business Registration Service Asset Register is valued at Kshs 53.85 million 
ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƺɁȴɥɨȈɰǉ�Ɂǹ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽӗ�ǹʍɨȶȈɽʍɨǉ�ƃȶǁ�ˎɽɽȈȶǼɰ�ƃɰ�ɥǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ƃʍǁȈɽǉǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�
the FY 2020/2021 and the asset register.

Key Activities Undertaken by the Board
The Board obtained a score of 96.67% for the previous year and continues to make efforts to ensure 
the Service excels in delivery of its mandate. During the year, the Board undertook the following key 
activities among others.

i. ĄǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ȶǉʥ�ɥɨǉȴȈɰǉɰӢ
ii. ěȃǉ�ɨǉƺɨʍȈɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��:ě�AǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽӢ
iii. �ɥɥɨɁʤǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍɁʍɰȢʰ�ȴɁȶȈɽɁɨǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉԇɰ�9ʍǁǼǉɽӗ�ŚɁɨȟ�ɥȢƃȶ�ƃȶǁ�ĀɨɁƺʍɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ɥȢƃȶӢ
iv. �ȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉԇɰ�ĀǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽɨƃƺɽ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�Aǉ-

ɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�°ʍɰɽȈƺǉӢ
v. Implemented and monitored the Service’s Strategic Plan 
vi. The Board approved various policies including but not limited to Board Code of Conduct, the 

Research Policy, the Board Succession Policy, the internal Audit Manual, the Succession Plan-
ning Tracker among others.

The Board is committed to ensuring the Service’s obligations, roles and responsibilities are discharged 
through its corporate governance practices. The Board of Directors carries out its responsibilities with 
impartiality, honesty, transparency, professionalism, care and due diligence and at all times act in good 
faith to the best interest of the public. The Board is committed to ensuring that the highest level of 
integrity is sustained in the Service’s operations. 

The Board strives for consensus in decision making and conducts informed decision making in 
the establishment of the organization’s strategic direction and monitoring of the organization’s 
performance. The Board comprises eight members appointed on term of three (3) years eligible for 
reappointment for a one further term.

The term of Service of Ms. Shella Sheikh and Mr Brian Omwenga expired on 2nd May 2022 and the term 
of service for Mr Brian Omwenga was renewed with effect from 3rd May 2022. The term of service of Ms 
Carol Musyoka as Chairperson ended on 6th October 2021 and the term of service of Mr James Mureu 
ended on 28th October 2021. Justice (Rtd) Erastus Githinji was appointed as the Chairperson of the 
Board on 6th October 2021 and Mr Faraj Mansur was appointed as a Board member on 28th October 
2021. The two attended an induction training organized by the State Corporation Advisory Board in 
November 2021.
During the period under review, the Board attended two trainings on corporate governance and public 
ˎȶƃȶƺǉ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽӝ��
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Research, Planning and Monitoring & Evaluation

Development of Research Strategy
Research is a critical component for decision making in any organization. To have a guided approach 
to research activities, The Directorate of Legal, Compliance & Research collaborated with KIPPRA and 
the Directorate of the Corporate Services in design and preparation of the BRS Research Strategy. The 
Research aims to promote quality research for evidence-based decision making and service delivery, 
strengthen quality of research and research processes and build BRS research capabilities and 
competencies in the next 5 years at an estimated cost of Kshs 134.3 million.

Implementation of the Strategic plan
yȈȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ťǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїї�ȴƃɨȟǉǁ�ɽȃǉ�ˎɨɰɽ�ʰǉƃɨ�Ɂǹ�ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ĀȢƃȶӝ�ěȃǉ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼȈƺ�ɥȢƃȶ�
was cascaded into an annual corporate work plan and implemented in line with the available budget. 
The implementation of the work plan for FY 2021/22 was done at a cost of Kshs 586.65 million. A total 
of 444.65 was budgeted to come from the exchequer and Kshs 142.0 million from donor funding. The 
Service implemented 16.6% out of the expected level of 20% by 30th June 2022. Some of the planned 
ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ� ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶɽǉǁ� ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ� ǁǉɰȈǼȶ� Ɂǹ� ƃ� ȶǉʥ�9ĄČ� ȢɁǼɁӗ� ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ� ƃȶǁ� ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�9ĄČ�
Ɂǹˎƺǉɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɰȃǉɨȈƃӗ�ǉȶȃƃȶƺǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨʰ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�ʥȃǉɨǉ�ɽȃǉ�9ĀĄ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�Ȉɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨʥƃʰӗ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥȴǉȶɽ�
of a master list for business entities among others. 

The service did not however execute some of the activities to lack of funds such as acquisition of a 
self-service options (USSD) in customer service, undertaking a new phase of comprehensive review 
of Business laws, conducting user journey by MPSR, implementing stakeholder outreach program, 
acquisition of hardware and software applications among other activities. Some activities were not 
implemented to completion as planned such as relocation project, development of data strategy, 
ǁȈǼȈɽȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ˎ Ȣǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƃƺɧʍȈɰȈɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�KAĄÃɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ȃƃɰ�ƹǉǉȶ�ȢƃɨǼǉȢʰ�ƃɽɽɨȈƹʍɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃȈɨǁ�ɥƃɨɽʰ�ǁǉȢƃʰɰӝ

Development of Departmental Strategies
In an effort to effectively cascade the corporate strategic plan, the Service developed departmental 
strategies aimed at simplifying the execution of the BRS vision in the next 5 years. A total of 5 departmental 
strategies were completed by end of the year. These include Finance & Accounts, Communication 
ČɽɨƃɽǉǼʰӝ��ȶɽǉɨȶƃȢ��ʍǁȈɽӗ�:ɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼʰ�ƃȶǁ�ÃĀČĄ�ČɽɨƃɽǉǼʰӝ�ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ʥȈȢȢ�ɥɨȈɁɨȈɽȈ˃ǉ�ˎȶƃȢȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�
the remaining departmental strategies to guide execution of the Strategic plan.

Development and implementation of the BRS Performance Contracting
In the period under review, the Service through the Directorate of Corporate Services, coordinated 
the signing of performance contract for the period FY 2020/21. The service implemented 90.7% of the 
activities stated in the PC and is scheduled for evaluation in the month of October 2021.

Development of Policies
During the FY 2020/21, the Service developed Investment policy. The Investment policy sets out an 
ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈȶǼ�ǼʍȈǁƃȶƺǉ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ƃǁȴȈȶȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ǹʍȶǁɰ�ȃǉȢǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨ�Ȉȶ�Ɂɨǁǉɨ�ɽɁ�ȴƃȈȶɽƃȈȶ�
a high-quality, low-risk investment portfolio, complying with the applicable laws and regulations on 
matters of investment of funds both public and in trusteeship. The 

Provision of Statistical Support
To enhance provision of informed decisions by the Service. The Service undertook 5 major surveys aimed 
at soliciting information from the staff members, stakeholder and the public for decision making. The 
surveys done within the year include Logo survey, Medical survey of 2020-21, Customer Satisfaction 
survey, employee satisfaction survey, work environment survey and ICT user survey.

Implementation of Performance Contract
The Business Registration Service implemented its second Performance Contract for the FY 2021/22 in 
line with the 18th cycle guidelines. The Service is awaiting evaluation of the commitments undertaken 
by external supervisors. 

Audit Function 
AʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ� yť� їѕїѕӣїіӗ� ěȃǉ� �ʍǁȈɽ� ʍȶȈɽ� ƺɁȶƺȢʍǁǉǁ� ќ� ɨȈɰȟӸƹƃɰǉǁ� ƃʍǁȈɽ� ǉʯǉɨƺȈɰǉɰ� ȶƃȴǉȢʰӢ� yȈȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
Statement Audit, Risk Management Audit, Supply Chain Management Audit, Human Resource Audit 
and ICT Audit. Others included audit of the ERP system and the Master list in the company. The audit 
reports were shared with board to provide assurance on adequate and effectiveness of governance 
and internal processes. The unit also played a pivotal role in preparation of audit governance policy and 
procedures manuals to ensure effective internal controls. 
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Leveraging on ICT in Provision of Services
ěȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉɰ�ɽɁ�ȢǉʤǉɨƃǼǉ�Ɂȶ��:ě�ɽɁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�Ȉɽɰ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӗ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ȈȶɽǉɨȶƃȢ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶɰӗ�
engagement with stakeholders as well as the general public. A few ICT milestones are documented in 
the following sections.

Enterprise Resource Planning system 
The procurement of an ERP system commenced in FY 2020/21 with the aim of automating processes 
in Human Resource, Procurement, and Finance and Accounts units. This investment was aimed at 
ɰɽɨǉƃȴȢȈȶȈȶǼ�ȈȶɽǉɨȶƃȢ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ�ƹʰ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤȈȶǼ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉȶǉɰɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɽɨƃȶɰɥƃɨǉȶƺʰӝ

By the end of the June 2022, Employee Management, Payroll and Leave management sub-modules 
in the Human Resource module were fully operational. Recruitment portal and Staff performance 
appraisal sub-modules were in advanced stages of user acceptance and rollout.  All sub-modules in the 
Procurement module were complete and operation except the rollout of supplier portal, majority of the 
modules and the Finance & accounts module had been fully customized.

Acquisition of ICT equipment 
During the FY 2021/22, the Service procured 2 Servers to host its internal systems, this was aimed at 
improving performance, putting measures for disaster recovery and ensuring uptime. This has been 
further enhanced by establishment of a modern server room to provide a secure hosting environment.

The Service has also acquired a state-of-the-art Huawei Ideahub Pro smart board to facilitate video 
conferencing and boardroom presentations. As part of the relocation project the Service has established 
ƃ�ȴɁǁǉɨȶ�ȈȶɽǉȢȢȈǼǉȶɽ�ȢɁƺƃȢ��ɨǉƃ�ÇǉɽʥɁɨȟ�ʥȈɽȃ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉǁ�ɰǉƺʍɨȈɽʰ�ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȶˎǼʍɨƃɽȈɁȶɰӝ

 Enhancing accessibility of BRS services 
During FY 2021/22, the Service enhanced provision of services through online platforms such webinars 
and virtual meetings, the service has constantly updated its website to make relevant information to 
members of the public. The service also initiated an innovation to develop and implement an AI-based 
conversational Chabot to make it easy for members of the public. The development is in advanced 
stages with a soft launch done on 23rd June 2022. 

The Service has also established a modern call center for purposes for responding to calls from 
members of the public. This call center, designed to meet industry standards and best practices will be 
able to handle calls and provide solutions to the clients in their areas of concern. Internally, the service 
implemented a staff portal through which members of the staff could access information relating to 
staff welfare.

Systems Developed Internally (Innovations)
During the period under review. ICT developed 2 new systems for the service to facilitate quicker, 
ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ɥɨɁʤȈɰȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰӝ�ěȃǉʰ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉӢ

Master list:  This system is used to clean up and develop a consolidated index of all registered entities. 
The resultant list is intended to be used to automate the name search functions by leveraging on 
ǉȴǉɨǼȈȶǼ�ɽǉƺȃȶɁȢɁǼȈǉɰ�ɰʍƺȃ�ƃɰ�ƃɨɽȈˎƺȈƃȢ�ȈȶɽǉȢȢȈǼǉȶƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȢƃɰɽȈƺ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃӝ

Task management system: The task management system is management information systems that 
ʥƃɰ�ǁǉʤǉȢɁɥǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƃʍɽɁȴƃɽǉ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽӝ��ɽɰ�ɁƹȚǉƺɽȈʤǉ�ʥƃɰ�ɽɁ�ȈȴɥɨɁʤǉ�
ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉȶǉɰɰ�Ȉȶ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰȈȶǼ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ɨǉɧʍǉɰɽ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȈȶʤǉɰɽȈǼƃɽȈʤǉ�ƃǼǉȶƺȈǉɰӝ��ɽ�ȃƃɰ�ȃǉȢɥ�
supervisors monitor tasks assigned and performance of their team members. The service issued over 
њѕѕѕ�ɁǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƃɨƺȃ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽȈȶǼ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁӝ
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The Service participated in 7th Devolution Conference 
that took place in Makueni County. The Service created 
awareness on the mandate of organization and also 
registered businesses and companies at the forum. 

:Ɂʍɨɽǉɰʰ�:ƃȢȢ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ��ȶɰɽȈɽʍɽǉ�Ɂǹ�:ǉɨɽȈˎǉǁ�
Secretaries Council at Sheria House, Harambee 
Avenue.

Director General, Kenneth Gathuma presents a gift to 
the immediate former Chairperson of the Board, Carol 
Musyoka during a farewell meeting in Nairobi. The 
Service expressed gratitude to Carol for her dedicated 
service & stewardship.

Director General, Kenneth Gathoma and Board Member, 
Brian Omwenga during inspection of works at the new 
Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɥɨǉȴȈɰǉɰ�ƃɽ�јіћ�ĩɥɥǉɨȃȈȢȢ�:ȃƃȴƹǉɨɰ�Ɂȶ�їȶǁ�ÇǼɁȶǼ�
Avenue, Nairobi

Director General, Kenneth Gathuma (2nd right) and Board Member, 
John Mwendwa (2nd left) during a panel discussion at the Startup 
Kenya Summit at the Kenya Innovation Week - Commonwealth 
Edition

Group Photo of the Board of Directors and Management 
during a farewell party for outgoing Chairperson of 
the Board Carol Musyoka and Board Member, John 
Mwendwa. 
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NTSA Director General, George Njau (2nd left) with the 
BRS Road Safety Committee. BRS participated in various 
road safety campaigns dubbed #UsalamaBararbarani.

Director General, Kenneth Gathuma gives remarks 
ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ƃ�ɰɁǹɽ� Ȣƃʍȶƺȃ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ĄČ�ƺȃƃɽƹɁɽ�ǁʍƹƹǉǁ�Ԅ9ř�ԅ�
at  a Nairobi Hotel. 

Director Corporate Services, Jones Otuke plants a tree at the 
Ngong Road Forest

Training of the Road Safety Committee that was 
conducted by NTSA in Nairobi. 

BRS Deputy Registrar in charge of Movable Property 
Security Rights, Ms. Shighadi Mwakio making a presentation 
on registration of business and use of Movable Property 
as collateral and compliance in the borrowing process 
ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ƃ�ˎȶƃȶƺǉ�ȴǉȶɽɁɨȈȶǼ�ƺȢȈȶȈƺ�ǁʍƹƹǉǁ�ԄťɁʍȶǼ�řǉȶɽʍɨǉɰ�
�ƺƺǉȢǉɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ĀɨɁǼɨƃȴԅ�ɁɨǼƃȶȈ˃ǉǁ�ƹʰ�{�Ź�Ȉȶ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ʥȈɽȃ�
the Kenya Bankers Association.

Members of staff cut a cake to celebrate colleagues born in 
January. 
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Ngong Road Forest, along the Nairobi 
Southern Bypass
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CORPORATE SOCIAL  RESPONSIBILITY / 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENTS

ěȃǉ�9ĄČ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ȈȶȈɽȈƃɽȈʤǉɰ�ɨǉːǉƺɽ�ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽƃƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁȴȴȈɽȴǉȶɽ�ɽɁ�ƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈȶǼ�
to the well-being of communities and society through various environmental and social measures. 

During the Financial Year 2021/2022, the Service in collaboration with the Kenya Forest Service (KFS) 
adopted a half a hectare of degraded forest in Ngong Road Forest for reforestation, protection, 
conservation and maintenance for a period of 3 years. The Service planted six hundred [No.600] tree 
seedlings at a cost of Kshs. 254,603.00. 

The initiative was in line with supporting national efforts of achieving and maintaining at least 10% 
national forest cover and creating climate-resilient communities through restoration and protection of 
forest watersheds, and the creation of sustainable livelihoods for communities in Kenya.
 

  

10

Group Photo of BRS and Kenya Forest Service: BRS participated in a tree planting exercise at Ngong Road 
Forest, along the Nairobi Southern Bypass at a time the former President H.E Uhuru Kenyatta had launched an 
accelerated national tree growing campaign that aims to achieve and maintain over 30% Tree Cover by 2050.

The Chairperson of the Board, Justice (Rtd.) Erastus Githinji plants a tree. In the picture is the Director General, 
Kenneth Gathuma and the Kenya Forest Service, Ecosystem Conservator, Nairobi County, Ms. Margaret Wanjiru. 
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                 REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ěȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ�ɰʍƹȴȈɽ�ɽȃǉȈɨ� ɨǉɥɁɨɽ� ɽɁǼǉɽȃǉɨ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ƃʍǁȈɽǉǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ� ǹɁɨ� ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨ�ǉȶǁǉǁ�
June 30, 2022 which show the state of the Business Registration Service affairs.

i) Principal activities
The Business Registration Service principal activity is generally implementation of policies, laws and 
Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ȴƃɽɽǉɨɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥƃȶȈǉɰӗ�ɥƃɨɽȶǉɨɰȃȈɥɰ�ƃȶǁ�ˎ ɨȴɰӗ�ȈȶǁȈʤȈǁʍƃȢɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�
carrying on business under a business name, bankruptcy, hire purchase and chattels transfers.

ii) Results
The Financial Statements for Business Registration Service for the year ended June 30, 2022are set out 
on page 1-35

iii) Directors
ěȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�Ɂǹ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ�ʥȃɁ�ɰǉɨʤǉǁ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨ�ƃɰ�ɰȃɁʥȶ�Ɂȶ�ɥƃǼǉ�řȈȈȈ�ӸŤʤӝ�AʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�
2021/2022, Ms. Carol Musyoka retired on 6th October 2021, Mr. James Mureu retired on 28th October 
2021, Mr. Brian Omwenga and Ms. Sheila Sheik retired on 2nd May 2022. Justice (Rtd). Erastus Githinji 
was appointed on 6th October 2021 and Mr. Faraj Mansur was appointed on 28th October 2021 in their 1st 
term. Mr. Brian Omwenga was reappointed a BRS Director on 3rd May 2022.

iv) Surplus remission
In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (National Government) 
Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus 
ǹʍȶǁɰ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ƃʍǁȈɽǉǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃǹɽǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ǉƃƺȃ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨӝ�

In the FY 2021/2022, Business Registration Service did not make any surplus during the year and hence 
no remittance to the consolidated fund.

v) Auditors
The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Business Registration Service in 
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.
By Order of the Board

Name:       Signature:   Date:

Ms. Elizabeth Macharia
Corporation Secretary/Secretary to the Board

11

03/02/2023
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporation Act 
ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉ�ɽȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ�ɽɁ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�Ȉȶ�ɨǉɰɥǉƺɽ�Ɂǹ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�
ǼȈʤǉ�ƃ�ɽɨʍǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǹƃȈɨ�ʤȈǉʥ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ƃǹǹƃȈɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�
operating results of the Business Registration Service for that year. The Directors are also required to 
ensure that the Business Registration Service keeps proper accounting records which disclose with 
ɨǉƃɰɁȶƃƹȢǉ�ƃƺƺʍɨƃƺʰ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӝ�ěȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ�ƃɨǉ�ƃȢɰɁ�
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Service.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Business Registration Service 
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ǼȈʤǉ�ƃ�ɽɨʍǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǹƃȈɨ�ʤȈǉʥ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ƃǹǹƃȈɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�
ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǹɁɨ�ƃȶǁ�ƃɰ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ӯɥǉɨȈɁǁӰ�ǉȶǁǉǁ�Ɂȶ�°ʍȶǉ�јѕӗ�їѕїїӝ�ěȃȈɰ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽʰ�
ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉɰӖ� ӯȈӰ� ȴƃȈȶɽƃȈȶȈȶǼ� ƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ� ƃɨɨƃȶǼǉȴǉȶɽɰ� ƃȶǁ� ǉȶɰʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃƃɽ� ɽȃǉɰǉ�
ƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉ�ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃɁʍɽ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽȈȶǼ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁӢ�ӯȈȈӰ�ȴƃȈȶɽƃȈȶȈȶǼ�ɥɨɁɥǉɨ�ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁɰӗ�
ʥȃȈƺȃ�ǁȈɰƺȢɁɰǉ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɨǉƃɰɁȶƃƹȢǉ�ƃƺƺʍɨƃƺʰ�ƃɽ�ƃȶʰ�ɽȈȴǉ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰӢ�ӯȈȈȈӰ�ǁǉɰȈǼȶȈȶǼӗ�
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȶɰʍɨȈȶǼ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉʰ�ƃɨǉ�ǹɨǉǉ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȴƃɽǉɨȈƃȢ�ȴȈɰɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�ʥȃǉɽȃǉɨ�ǁʍǉ�
ɽɁ�ǉɨɨɁɨ�Ɂɨ�ǹɨƃʍǁӢ�ӯȈʤӰ�ɰƃǹǉǼʍƃɨǁȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�Ɂǹ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ӯʤӰ�ɰǉȢǉƺɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶǁ�ƃɥɥȢʰȈȶǼ�
ƃɥɥɨɁɥɨȈƃɽǉ� ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ� ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰӢ� ƃȶǁ� ӯʤȈӰ� ȴƃȟȈȶǼ� ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ� ǉɰɽȈȴƃɽǉɰ� ɽȃƃɽ� ƃɨǉ� ɨǉƃɰɁȶƃƹȢǉ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ�
circumstances.

ěȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ�ƃƺƺǉɥɽ�ɨǉɰɥɁȶɰȈƹȈȢȈɽʰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ˎ ȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ȃƃʤǉ�
been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the 
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion 
ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ˎ ȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ǼȈʤǉ�ƃ�ɽɨʍǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǹƃȈɨ�ʤȈǉʥ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
ɽɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰ�ǁʍɨȈȶǼ� ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ�ǉȶǁǉǁ�°ʍȶǉ�јѕӗ�їѕїїӗ�ƃȶǁ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ� ƃɰ� ƃɽ� ɽȃƃɽ� ǁƃɽǉӝ� ěȃǉ�AȈɨǉƺɽɁɨɰ� ǹʍɨɽȃǉɨ� ƺɁȶˎɨȴ� ɽȃǉ� ƺɁȴɥȢǉɽǉȶǉɰɰ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�
records maintained for Business Registration Service, which have been relied upon in the preparation of 
the Business Registration Service ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�ƃǁǉɧʍƃƺʰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɰʰɰɽǉȴɰ�Ɂǹ�ȈȶɽǉɨȶƃȢ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ƺɁȶɽɨɁȢӝ

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Business Registration Service will 
not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

�ɥɥɨɁʤƃȢ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ
ěȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ƃɥɥɨɁʤǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�9Ɂƃɨǁ�Ɂȶ�ӘӘӘӘӘӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝӝ
and signed on its behalf by:

Signature:                        Signature:

Justice (RTD) Erastus Githinji CBS EBS          Kenneth Gathuma, HSC
Chairperson of the Board                   Director General
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

ԝÇɁɽǉɰ їѕїіӸїѕїї ԝїѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Ąǉʤǉȶʍǉ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȶɁȶӸǉʯƺȃƃȶǼǉ�ɽɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰ

Transfers from other governments entities 6 444,650,000 309,568,399

ԝěɁɽƃȢ�ɨǉʤǉȶʍǉ ԝ 444,650,000 309,568,399  

Expenses ԝ

Use of goods and services 7 86,785,472 70,021,867

Employee costs 8 278,969,432 216,287,446

Remuneration of directors 9 6,389,899 6,331,400

Depreciation and Amortization expense 10 6,189,390 5,419,282

Repairs and maintenance 11 54,473,338 3,467,720

Grants and subsidies 12 254,603 277,380

Total expenses ԝ 433,062,134 301,805,095

ČʍɨɥȢʍɰӣӯAǉˎƺȈɽӰ     11,587,866 7,763,304

The notes set out on pages 70-83 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

The Financial Statements set out on pages 65 to 68 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

----------------                -------------------------        -------------------------
Director General                          Deputy Dir. F&A                                   Chairperson  
KENNETH GATHUMA HSC       CPA ERASTUS MBALU      Justice (Rtd) Erastus Githinji CBS EBS
         ICPAK Member NO.  6469

  
Date..................................................       Date................................................            Date……........………………………...........……….       03/02/202303/02/2023 03/02/2023
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15. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Assets Notes їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Current Assets Kshs Kshs

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 67,677,383 53,179,634

Inventories 16 11,624,824 12,649,101

Receivables from Exchange transactions 15 9,512,097 7,635,813

Total Current Assets 88,814,304 73,464,548

Non –Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 17 71,366,949 29,108,571

Intangible assets 18 894,942 1,424,409

Total Non –Current Assets 72,261,891 30,532,980

Total Assets ԝ 161,076,195 103,997,528

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 19 0 2,448,006

Current Provisions 20 4,265,150 0

Total Current Liabilities 4,265,150 2,448,006

ÇɁȶӸ:ʍɨɨǉȶɽ�¸ȈƃƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ

ÇɁȶӸ:ʍɨɨǉȶɽ�KȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�9ǉȶǉˎɽ�ɁƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ 21 43,673,657 0

ěɁɽƃȢ�ÇɁȶӸ:ʍɨɨǉȶɽ�¸ȈƃƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ 43,673,657 0

Notes їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs. Kshs.

Total Liabilities 47,938,807 2,448,006

Net Assets

Revenue reserve 24 101,549,522 93,786,218

Accumulated Surplus 11,587,866 7,763,304

Total Net Assets 113,137,388 101,549,522

Total Net Assets and Liabilities 161,076,195 103,997,528
Note:
MPSR has a donor funding, amounting to Kshs. 142,492,400 by the IFC meant for consultancy for 
capacity building and public awareness and advisory agreement on Kenya Investment climate. All the 
funding is in-kind.

The Financial Statements set out on pages 65-68  were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

-------------------------    ---------------------   -----------------------------
Director General                             Deputy Dir. F&A                                      Chairperson  
KENNETH GATHUMA HSC    CPA ERASTUS MBALU      Justice (Rtd) Erastus   
     ICPAK Member NO.  6469  Githinji CBS EBS
  
          
Date..................................................       Date................................................            Date……........………………………...........……….       03/02/2023 03/02/202303/02/2023
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16. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Capital 
reserve

Retained 
earnings Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balance as at July 1, 2020 93,786,218 93,786,218

ČʍɨɥȢʍɰӣAǉˎƺȈɽ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ -        7,763,304       7,763,304

Transfer of excess depreciation on revaluation - - -

At June 30, 2021 - 101,549,522 101,549,522

Balance as at July 1, 2021 - 101,549,522 101,549,522

ČʍɨɥȢʍɰӣAǉˎƺȈɽ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ - 11,587,866 9,194,986

Transfer of excess depreciation on revaluation - - -

At June 30, 2022 - 113,137,388 110,744,508

Note:
MPSR has a donor funding, amounting to Ksh. 142,492,400 by the IFC meant for consultancy for capacity 
building and public awareness and advisory agreement on Kenya Investment climate. All the funding 
is in-kind.
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17. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Cash ːɁʥɰ from operating activities

Receipts

Government grants and subsidies 6 444,650,000 309,568,399

Total Receipts 444,650,000 309,568,399

Payments

Use of Goods and services 7 86,785,472 70,021,867

Employee Costs 8 278,969,432 216,287,446

Remuneration to Directors 9 6,389,899 6,331,400

Repairs and Maintenance 11 54,473,338 3,467,720

Grants and Subsidies 12 254,603 277,380

Total Payments 426,872,744 296,385,813

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 17,777,256 13,182,586

Working Capital Adjustments

Decrease in Stock 16 1,024,277 402,600

Decrease in Payables 19 (2,448,006) 0

Increase in Provisions 20, 21 47,938,807 0

Increase in Current Receivables 15 (1,876,284) (7,635,813)

Total Working Capital Adjustments 44,638,794 (7,233,213)

Net cash ːɁʥɰ from operating activities 62,416,050 5,949,373

:ƃɰȃ�ːɁʥɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȈȶʤǉɰɽȈȶǼ�ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ

Purchase of property, plant, equipment 17 47,918,200 (5,280,080)

Net cash ːɁʥɰ from investing activities (47,918,200) (5,280,080)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,497,749 669,353

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st JULY 2021 53,179,634 52,510,281

Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 JUNE 2022 14 67,677,383 53,179,634

The Financial Statements set out on pages 65 to 68 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

------------------------------    ---------------------------  -----------------------------
Director General                             Deputy Dir. F&A                                      Chairperson  
KENNETH GATHUMA HSC    CPA ERASTUS MBALU      Justice (Rtd) Erastus   
     ICPAK Member NO.  6469  Githinji CBS EBS

  
          
Date..................................................        Date................................................            Date……........…………....……….       

         

03/02/2023 03/02/202303/02/2023
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19. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1) GENERAL INFORMATION

Business Registration Service is established by an Act of Parliament and derives its authority and 
accountability from the Business Registration Act, 2015. The entity is wholly owned by the Government 
of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The Business Registration Service principal activity is generally 
implementation of policies, laws and other matters relating to registration of companies, partnerships 
ƃȶǁ�ˎɨȴɰӗ�ȈȶǁȈʤȈǁʍƃȢɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ƺƃɨɨʰȈȶǼ�Ɂȶ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ƃ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ȶƃȴǉӗ�ƹƃȶȟɨʍɥɽƺʰӗ�ȃȈɨǉ�
purchase and chattels transfers.

2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION 

ěȃǉ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƹǉǉȶ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ƃ�ȃȈɰɽɁɨȈƺƃȢ�ƺɁɰɽ�ƹƃɰȈɰӝ�
ěȃǉ� ɥɨǉɥƃɨƃɽȈɁȶ� Ɂǹ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ� Ȉȶ� ƺɁȶǹɁɨȴȈɽʰ� ʥȈɽȃ� �ȶɽǉɨȶƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ� ĀʍƹȢȈƺ� ČǉƺɽɁɨ� �ƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�
Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise 
judgement in the process of applying the Business Registration Service accounting policies.

ěȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƹǉǉȶ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�¶ǉȶʰƃ�ČȃȈȢȢȈȶǼɰӗ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�Ȉɰ�ɽȃǉ�ǹʍȶƺɽȈɁȶƃȢ�
and reporting currency of the Business Registration Service.

ěȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�ƹǉǉȶ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ƃƺƺɁɨǁƃȶƺǉ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ĀyÃ��ƺɽӗ�ɽȃǉ�Čɽƃɽǉ�:ɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�
Act, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 
June 2022.

 IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from 1st January 2022 owing to Covid 19.   
 This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral   
 was set for 1st January 2023.

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year 
ended 30 June 2022.

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 41: 
Financial 
Instruments

Applicable: 1st January 2023:
ěȃǉ�ɁƹȚǉƺɽȈʤǉ�Ɂǹ��ĀČ�Č�љі�Ȉɰ�ɽɁ�ǉɰɽƃƹȢȈɰȃ�ɥɨȈȶƺȈɥȢǉɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȢȈƃƹȈȢȈɽȈǉɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ʥȈȢȢ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽ�ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ʍɰǉǹʍȢ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�
ɽɁ�ʍɰǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉȈɨ�ƃɰɰǉɰɰȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰӗ�ɽȈȴȈȶǼ�ƃȶǁ�
ʍȶƺǉɨɽƃȈȶɽʰ�Ɂǹ�ƃȶ�KȶɽȈɽʰԇɰ�ǹʍɽʍɨǉ�ƺƃɰȃ�ːɁʥɰӝ
�ĀČ�Č�љі�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ�ʍɰǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ʥȈɽȃ�ȴɁɨǉ�ʍɰǉǹʍȢ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽȃƃȶ�
IPSAS 29, by: 
Ӑ��ɥɥȢʰȈȶǼ�ƃ�ɰȈȶǼȢǉ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ȴǉƃɰʍɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ȴɁǁǉȢ�ǹɁɨ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�
ƺɁȶɰȈǁǉɨɰ�ɽȃǉ�ƺȃƃɨƃƺɽǉɨȈɰɽȈƺɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽԇɰ�ƺƃɰȃ�ːɁʥɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ɁƹȚǉƺɽȈʤǉ�ǹɁɨ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�
ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽ�Ȉɰ�ȃǉȢǁӢ�
• Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is applicable 
ɽɁ�ƃȢȢ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�Ȉȶɰɽɨʍȴǉȶɽɰ�ɰʍƹȚǉƺɽ�ɽɁ�ȈȴɥƃȈɨȴǉȶɽ�ɽǉɰɽȈȶǼӢ�ƃȶǁ�
• Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging 
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link 
between an Entity’s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment 
for instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

Business Registration Service appreciates the revised standards
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Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 42: Social 
9ǉȶǉˎɽɰ

Applicable: 1st January 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful 
representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity 
ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ�Ȉȶ�Ȉɽɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃƹɁʍɽ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�
ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉǁ�ɰȃɁʍȢǁ�ȃǉȢɥ�ʍɰǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǼǉȶǉɨƃȢӸɥʍɨɥɁɰǉ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽɰ�ƃɰɰǉɰɰӖ
ěȃǉ�ȶƃɽʍɨǉ�Ɂǹ�ɰʍƺȃ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�KȶɽȈɽʰӝ�
ěȃǉ�ȟǉʰ�ǹǉƃɽʍɨǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃɁɰǉ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɰƺȃǉȴǉɰӢ�ƃȶǁ
ěȃǉ�Ȉȴɥƃƺɽ�Ɂǹ�ɰʍƺȃ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�KȶɽȈɽʰԇɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӗ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ƺƃɰȃ�ːɁʥɰӝ
ŚȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�ȈȶƺȢʍɰȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ�Ȉɽ�ʥȈȢȢ�ǉȶɨȈƺȃ�ɽȃǉ�
Service reporting.

Amendments 
to Other IPSAS 
resulting 
from IPSAS 
41, Financial 
Instruments

Applicable: 1st January 2023:
Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the components of 
borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and credit 
risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
�ȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽɰ�ɽɁ��ĀČ�Č�јѕӗ�ɽɁ�ʍɥǁƃɽǉ�ɽȃǉ�ǼʍȈǁƃȶƺǉ�ǹɁɨ�ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�ǹɁɨ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
�ȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽɰ�ɽɁ��ĀČ�Č�јјӗ�ɽɁ�ʍɥǁƃɽǉ�ɽȃǉ�ǼʍȈǁƃȶƺǉ�Ɂȶ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈǹʰȈȶǼ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently 
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
ěȃǉ�ƃȴǉȶǁȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɧʍȈɽǉ�ɨǉȢǉʤƃȶɽ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽȈȶǼ

Other 
improvements 
to IPSAS

Applicable 1st January 2023
IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government 
Sector.
Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).
�ĀČ�Č�јўӖ�KȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�9ǉȶǉˎɽɰ
ÇɁʥ�ǁǉȢǉɽǉɰ�ɽȃǉ�ɽǉɨȴ�ƺɁȴɥɁɰȈɽǉ�ɰɁƺȈƃȢ�ɰǉƺʍɨȈɽʰ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ƃɰ�Ȉɽ�Ȉɰ�ȶɁ�ȢɁȶǼǉɨ�ǁǉˎȶǉǁ�
in IPSAS.
IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded 
by IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1st January 2023.

IPSAS 43

Applicable 1st January 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and 
lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those 
ɽɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰӝ�ěȃȈɰ�ȈȶǹɁɨȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ǼȈʤǉɰ�ƃ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ǹɁɨ�ʍɰǉɨɰ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ɽɁ�
ƃɰɰǉɰɰ�ɽȃǉ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽ�ɽȃƃɽ�Ȣǉƃɰǉɰ�ȃƃʤǉ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶӗ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�
ƃȶǁ�ƺƃɰȃːɁʥɰ�Ɂǹ�ƃȶ�KȶɽȈɽʰӝ

The new standard requires entities to recognize, measure and present 
information on right of use assets and lease liabilities. 

IPSAS 44: 
Non- Current 
Assets Held 
for Sale and 
Discontinued 
Operations

Applicable 1st January 2025
The Standard requires,
�ɰɰǉɽɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ȴǉǉɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɨȈɽǉɨȈƃ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈˎǉǁ�ƃɰ�ȃǉȢǁ�ǹɁɨ�ɰƃȢǉ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ȴǉƃɰʍɨǉǁ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of 
such assets to cease and:
�ɰɰǉɽɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ȴǉǉɽ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɨȈɽǉɨȈƃ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈˎǉǁ�ƃɰ�ȃǉȢǁ�ǹɁɨ�ɰƃȢǉ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�
ɰǉɥƃɨƃɽǉȢʰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ɨǉɰʍȢɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ǁȈɰƺɁȶɽȈȶʍǉǁ�
ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�ɰǉɥƃɨƃɽǉȢʰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӝ��
By measuring assets at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less cost to 
sell and the depreciation of assets is relevant to the service.

Early adoption of standards
Business Registration Service did not early – adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021/2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4) Čʍȴȴƃɨʰ�Ɂǹ�ČȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ��ƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�ĀɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ

a) Revenue recognition

i) Ąǉʤǉȶʍǉ�ǹɨɁȴ�ȶɁȶӸǉʯƺȃƃȶǼǉ�ɽɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶɰ 

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value 
and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer 
Ȉɰ� ǹɨǉǉ� ǹɨɁȴ�ƺɁȶǁȈɽȈɁȶɰ�ƃȶǁ� Ȉɽ� Ȉɰ�ɥɨɁƹƃƹȢǉ� ɽȃƃɽ� ɽȃǉ�ǉƺɁȶɁȴȈƺ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ɂɨ� ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ� ɨǉȢƃɽǉǁ� ɽɁ�
ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽ�ʥȈȢȢ�ːɁʥ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺƃȶ�ƹǉ�ȴǉƃɰʍɨǉǁ�ɨǉȢȈƃƹȢʰӝ�Ąǉƺʍɨɨǉȶɽ�Ǽɨƃȶɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɨǉƺɁǼȶȈ˃ǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�
statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of 
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƃȢȈɰǉǁ� Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥɨǉȃǉȶɰȈʤǉ� ȈȶƺɁȴǉ�Ɂʤǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ʍɰǉǹʍȢ� ȢȈǹǉ�Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ�
assets that has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from Exchange transactions

Rendering of services
Business Registration Service recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of 
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is 
measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that 
the expenses incurred are recoverable.      

Sale of goods
Ąǉʤǉȶʍǉ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ɰƃȢǉ�Ɂǹ�ǼɁɁǁɰ�Ȉɰ�ɨǉƺɁǼȶȈ˃ǉǁ�ʥȃǉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�ɨȈɰȟɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉʥƃɨǁɰ�Ɂǹ�ɁʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ȃƃʤǉ�
been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue can be 
ȴǉƃɰʍɨǉǁ�ɨǉȢȈƃƹȢʰ�ƃȶǁ�Ȉɽ�Ȉɰ�ɥɨɁƹƃƹȢǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉƺɁȶɁȴȈƺ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ɂɨ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ƃɰɰɁƺȈƃɽǉǁ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɽȃǉ�
ɽɨƃȶɰƃƺɽȈɁȶ�ʥȈȢȢ�ːɁʥ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰӝ

b) Budget information 
The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly in June 10th 2021 and 
there were   Subsequent revisions and additional appropriations made to the approved budget in 
ƃƺƺɁɨǁƃȶƺǉ�ʥȈɽȃ� ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺ� ƃɥɥɨɁʤƃȢɰ� ǹɨɁȴ� ɽȃǉ� ƃɥɥɨɁɥɨȈƃɽǉ� ƃʍɽȃɁɨȈɽȈǉɰӝ� ěȃǉ� ƃǁǁȈɽȈɁȶƃȢ� ƃɥɥɨɁɥɨȈƃɽȈɁȶɰ�
are added to the original budget by the Business Registration Service upon receiving the respective 
ƃɥɥɨɁʤƃȢɰ�Ȉȶ�Ɂɨǁǉɨ�ɽɁ�ƺɁȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȢ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽӝ��ƺƺɁɨǁȈȶǼȢʰӗ�9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɨǉƺɁɨǁ�ǉǁ�
additional appropriations of Kshs. 24.3 M on the 2021-2022 budget following the governing bodies 
approval.

The Business Registration Service budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and 
ǉʯɥǉȶǁȈɽʍɨǉ�ǁȈɰƺȢɁɰǉǁ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ƃƺƺɨʍƃȢ�
ƹƃɰȈɰ�ʍɰȈȶǼ�ƃ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƹƃɰǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�ȶƃɽʍɨǉ�Ɂǹ�ǉʯɥǉȶɰǉɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӗ�
ʥȃǉɨǉƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽ�Ȉɰ�ɥɨǉɥƃɨǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ƃ�ƺƃɰȃ�ƹƃɰȈɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ʥǉɨǉ�ɨǉƺƃɰɽ�
ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ƃƺƺɨʍƃȢ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ƺƃɰȃ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƺȢƃɰɰȈˎǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰƃȴǉ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�
approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to 
the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts 
ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�ƃƺƺɨʍƃȢ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ƺƃɰȃ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɨǉƺȢƃɰɰȈˎǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽƃɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰƃȴǉ�ƹƃɰȈɰ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�
approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the 
approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 

�ȶ�ƃǁǁȈɽȈɁȶ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�9ƃɰȈɰ�ǁȈǹǹǉɨǉȶƺǉӗ�ƃǁȚʍɰɽȴǉȶɽɰ�ɽɁ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ƃȢɰɁ�ȴƃǁǉ�
ǹɁɨ�ǁȈǹǹǉɨǉȶƺǉɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ǹɁɨȴƃɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƺȢƃɰɰȈˎƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ɰƺȃǉȴǉɰ�ƃǁɁɥɽǉǁ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of 
ƺɁȴɥƃɨȈɰɁȶ�Ɂǹ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽ�ƃȶǁ�ƃƺɽʍƃȢ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ƃƺɽʍƃȢ�ƃɰ�ɥǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎ ȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�
ȃƃɰ�ƹǉǉȶ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɥƃǼǉ�њ�ɽȃǉɰǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰӝ



ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

73

c) Property, plant and equipment 
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When 
ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�ɥƃɨɽɰ�Ɂǹ�ɥɨɁɥǉɨɽʰӗ�ɥȢƃȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ�ƃɨǉ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ɨǉɥȢƃƺǉǁ�ƃɽ�ȈȶɽǉɨʤƃȢɰӗ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�
ɨǉƺɁǼȶȈ˃ǉɰ�ɰʍƺȃ�ɥƃɨɽɰ�ƃɰ�ȈȶǁȈʤȈǁʍƃȢ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ʥȈɽȃ�ɰɥǉƺȈˎƺ�ʍɰǉǹʍȢ�ȢȈʤǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǁǉɥɨǉƺȈƃɽǉɰ�ɽȃǉȴ�ƃƺƺɁɨǁȈȶǼȢʰӝ�
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the 
ɥȢƃȶɽ� ƃȶǁ� ǉɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ� ƃɰ� ƃ� ɨǉɥȢƃƺǉȴǉȶɽ� Ȉǹ� ɽȃǉ� ɨǉƺɁǼȶȈɽȈɁȶ� ƺɨȈɽǉɨȈƃ� ƃɨǉ� ɰƃɽȈɰˎǉǁӝ� �ȢȢ� Ɂɽȃǉɨ� ɨǉɥƃȈɨ� ƃȶǁ�
ȴƃȈȶɽǉȶƃȶƺǉ�ƺɁɰɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɨǉƺɁǼȶȈ˃ǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɰʍɨɥȢʍɰ�Ɂɨ�ǁǉˎƺȈɽ�ƃɰ�Ȉȶƺʍɨɨǉǁӝ�Śȃǉɨǉ�ƃȶ�ƃɰɰǉɽ�Ȉɰ�ƃƺɧʍȈɨǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ƃ�ȶɁȶӸ
exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value. 

It is the policy of the service to depreciate Property, Plant and Equipment on a straight-line basis with 
ɽȃǉ�ǹɁȢȢɁʥȈȶǼ�ƃɰɰǉɽ�ƺȢƃɰɰǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ǁǉɥɨǉƺȈƃɽȈɁȶ�ɨƃɽǉɰ�ƃɥɥȢʰȈȶǼӢ

Asset Class Depreciation rate

Computer Equipment and Software 33.3%

Ýǹˎƺǉ�KɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ 12.5%

Motor Vehicles 12.5%

Furniture and Fittings 12.5%

AǉɥɨǉƺȈƃɽȈɁȶ�ƺȃƃɨǼǉɰ�ɰȃƃȢȢ�ƺɁȴȴǉȶƺǉ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ƹǉǼȈȶȶȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȴɁȶɽȃ�Ȉȶ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɽȃǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽ�Ȉɰ�ˎɨɰɽ�ɥʍɽ�ɽɁ�
use

d) Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are 
ȶɁɽ�ƺƃɥȈɽƃȢȈ˃ǉǁ�ƃȶǁ�ǉʯɥǉȶǁȈɽʍɨǉ�Ȉɰ�ɨǉːǉƺɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɰʍɨɥȢʍɰ�Ɂɨ�ǁǉˎƺȈɽ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ�Ȉȶ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɽȃǉ�ǉʯɥǉȶǁȈɽʍɨǉ�
Ȉɰ�Ȉȶƺʍɨɨǉǁӝ�ěȃǉ�ʍɰǉǹʍȢ�ȢȈǹǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ȈȶɽƃȶǼȈƹȢǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�Ȉɰ�ƃɰɰǉɰɰǉǁ�ƃɰ�ǉȈɽȃǉɨ�ˎȶȈɽǉ�Ɂɨ�ȈȶǁǉˎȶȈɽǉӝ

e) Inventories 
Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through 
non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at 
the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as 
follows:

i. Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method
ii. Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of 

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing 
costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to 
the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at 

No charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current 
replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution.
Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary 
course of operations of the Service.

f) KȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�

ĄǉɽȈɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɥȢƃȶɰ
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉɰ�ɨǉɽȈɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�Ȉɽɰ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉɰӝ�Aǉˎȶǉǁ�ƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈɁȶ�ɥȢƃȶɰ�
ƃɨǉ�ɥɁɰɽӸǉȴɥȢɁʰȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɥȢƃȶɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƃȶ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�ɥƃʰɰ�ˎ ʯǉǁ�ƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈɁȶɰ�ȈȶɽɁ�ƃ�ɰǉɥƃɨƃɽǉ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�
(a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does 
ȶɁɽ�ȃɁȢǁ�ɰʍǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ɽɁ�ɥƃʰ�ƃȢȢ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ǉȴɥȢɁʰǉǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ƺʍɨɨǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�
ɥɨȈɁɨ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁɰӝ�ěȃǉ�ƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈɁȶɰ�ɽɁ�ǹʍȶǁ�ɁƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥƃʰȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɨǉɽȈɨǉȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ȉɰ�ƺȃƃɨǼǉǁ�
against income in the year in which they become payable.
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Aǉˎȶǉǁ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɥȢƃȶɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɥɁɰɽӸǉȴɥȢɁʰȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɥȢƃȶɰ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ɽȃƃȶ�ǁǉˎȶǉǁӸƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈɁȶ�ɥȢƃȶɰӝ�ěȃǉ�
ǁǉˎȶǉǁ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ� ǹʍȶǁɰ� ƃɨǉ� ƃƺɽʍƃɨȈƃȢȢʰ� ʤƃȢʍǉǁ� ɽɨȈӸƃȶȶʍƃȢȢʰ� Ɂȶ� ɽȃǉ�ɥɨɁȚǉƺɽǉǁ�ʍȶȈɽ� ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ȴǉɽȃɁǁ�ƹƃɰȈɰӝ�
AǉˎƺȈɽɰ� ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ� ƃɨǉ� ɨǉƺɁʤǉɨǉǁ� ɽȃɨɁʍǼȃ� Ȣʍȴɥ� ɰʍȴ�ɥƃʰȴǉȶɽɰ� Ɂɨ� Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ� ǹʍɽʍɨǉ� ƺɁȶɽɨȈƹʍɽȈɁȶɰ� Ɂȶ�
proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce 
ɽȃǉ�ɥɁɰɽӸǉȴɥȢɁʰȴǉȶɽ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ɁƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶӝ

g) Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date 
of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the 
ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶ�ɨǉɥɁɨɽȈȶǼ�ǁƃɽǉ�ƹʰ�ƃɥɥȢʰȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�ǉʯƺȃƃȶǼǉ�ɨƃɽǉ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃƃɽ�ǁƃɽǉӝ�KʯƺȃƃȶǼǉ�
differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different 
from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or 
expenses in the period in which they arise.     
     
h) Related parties 

Business Registration Service regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert 
ƺɁȶɽɨɁȢ�ȈȶǁȈʤȈǁʍƃȢȢʰ�Ɂɨ�ȚɁȈȶɽȢʰӗ�Ɂɨ�ɽɁ�ǉʯǉɨƺȈɰǉ�ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�Ȉȶːʍǉȶƺǉ�Ɂʤǉɨ�ɽȃǉ�KȶɽȈɽʰӗ�Ɂɨ�ʤȈƺǉ�ʤǉɨɰƃӝ�Ãǉȴƹǉɨɰ�
of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior 
managers.

i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank balances held at Kenya Commercial 
9ƃȶȟ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨӝ

j) :ɁȴɥƃɨƃɽȈʤǉ�ˎǼʍɨǉɰ
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ƺɁȴɥƃɨȈɰɁȶ�ˎǼʍɨǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ɥɨǉʤȈɁʍɰ�ʰǉƃɨӝ�

k) Subsequent events 
ěȃǉɨǉ� ȃƃʤǉ� ƹǉǉȶ� ȶɁ� ǉʤǉȶɽɰ� ɰʍƹɰǉɧʍǉȶɽ� ɽɁ� ɽȃǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ� ǉȶǁ�ʥȈɽȃ� ƃ� ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ� Ȉȴɥƃƺɽ� Ɂȶ� ɽȃǉ�
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ʰǉƃɨ�ǉȶǁǉǁ�°ʍȶǉ�јѕӗ�їѕїїӝ

l) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Business Registration Service has a present obligation (legal or 
ƺɁȶɰɽɨʍƺɽȈʤǉӰ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ɨǉɰʍȢɽ�Ɂǹ�ƃ�ɥƃɰɽ�ǉʤǉȶɽӗ�Ȉɽ�Ȉɰ�ɥɨɁƹƃƹȢǉ�ɽȃƃɽ�ƃȶ�ɁʍɽːɁʥ�Ɂǹ�ɨǉɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�ǉȴƹɁǁʰȈȶǼ�ǉƺɁȶɁȴȈƺ�
ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ɂɨ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ʥȈȢȢ�ƹǉ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɰǉɽɽȢǉ�ɽȃǉ�ɁƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�ɨǉȢȈƃƹȢǉ�ǉɰɽȈȴƃɽǉ�ƺƃȶ�ƹǉ�ȴƃǁǉ�
of the amount of the obligation. Where the Service expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only 
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

ěȃǉ�ǉʯɥǉȶɰǉ�ɨǉȢƃɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�ƃȶʰ�ɥɨɁʤȈɰȈɁȶ�Ȉɰ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉ�ȶǉɽ�Ɂǹ�ƃȶʰ�
reimbursement.

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. 
Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in note 20. 

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

5) ČȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�ȚʍǁǼȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�Ɂǹ�ǉɰɽȈȴƃɽȈɁȶ�ʍȶƺǉɨɽƃȈȶɽʰ�
ɽȃǉ� ɥɨǉɥƃɨƃɽȈɁȶ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� 9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ� ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ� Ȉȶ� ƺɁȶǹɁɨȴȈɽʰ�ʥȈɽȃ� �ĀČ�Č�
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the 
end of the reporting period. However, Business Registration Service future is certain.
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Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform 
potential future use and value from disposal:

a. The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity
b. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and pro-

cesses
c. The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
d. Availability of funding to replace the asset
e. Changes in the market in relation to the asset

6) Transfers from Other Government Entities

Name of the 
Entity sending 
the grant

Amount 
recognized to 
Statement of 
Comprehensive 
Income
Kshs

Amount 
deferred 
under 
deferred 
income.

Amount 
recognized 
in capital 
fund

Total Transfers 
їѕїіӸїѕїї

ĀɨȈɁɨ�ťǉƃɨ�їѕіўӸ
2020

    Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Kshs.

State Law 
Ýǹˎƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�
Department of 
Justice

444,650,000                - - 444,650,000 309,568,399

Total 444,650,000 Ӹ Ӹ 444,650,000 309,568,399

          
Business Registration Service receives one-line budget which it caters for recurrent expenditure. 
Sǵ�ȻǍƭ�Fà�ѾѼѾѽԄѾѼѾѾ��¥­�ȦƭƟƭǒɚƭƦ�fȮǍȮӾ�ҀҀҀӹ҂ҁѼӹѼѼѼ�ƃȮ�ȻȦƃǵȮǅƭȦ�ǅȦȀǳ�ȻǍƭ�­ȻƃȻƭ�hƃɛ��ǅ˴ƟƭӾ
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7) Use of Goods and Services
Description �������їѕїіӸїѕїї ����������їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Water 635,300 506,300

Subscriptions 745,160 1,107,388

Advertising 6,565,898 2,578,587

Conferences and delegations 4,447,580 7,309,946

Hospitality 1,897,873 2,328,936

Rental 33,427,801 654,192

Fuel and oil 1,766,480 582,662

Postage 130,860 101,665

Consultancy fees 3,047,500 7,799,183

Contracted Guards and Cleaning Services 1,148,800 0

Printing and stationery 15,468,016 15,502,803

Purchase of Uniform and clothing 0 78,110

Telecommunication 65,500 4,401,200

Licenses and permits 714,308 655,648

Training 9,489,914 403,150

Newspapers and periodicals 88,590 33,792

Internet Connections 0 7,590,921

Bank charges 499,447 520,449

Temporary Committees 0 2,430,000

Fumigation (Sanitary & cleaning services) 6,646,445 15,436,935

Total general expenses 86,785,472 70,021,867

• Advertising amount was higher in the FY 2021/2022 as compared to the FY 2020/2021 due to 
Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�ƃʥƃɨǉȶǉɰɰ�ƺƃȴɥƃȈǼȶ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�Ɂɽȃǉɨ�ƃǁʤǉɨɽȈɰǉȴǉȶɽ�ƺɁɰɽɰ�ɨǉȢƃɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�9ĄČ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɨǉȢɁ-
cations.

• Conferences and delegations in the FY 2021/2022 decreased due to increased number of virtual 
meetings as opposed to the physical meetings in the previous year.

•  The increase in rental costs in the FY 2021/2022 was occasioned by the payment of rent by BRS 
for ɽȃǉ�ȶǉʥ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɥɨǉȴȈɰǉɰӝ�

• �ȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�ɽȃǉɨǉ�ʥƃɰ�ƃ�ǁɨɁɥӸȈȶ�ɽǉȢǉƺɁȴȴʍȶȈƺƃɽȈɁȶ�ƺɁɰɽɰ�ǁʍǉ�ɽɁ�ƹʍǁǼǉɽƃɨʰ�ƺʍɽ�
to ǹɨǉǉ�ȴɁȶǉʰ�ȴǉƃȶɽ�ɽɁ�ɰʍɥɥɁɨɽ�9ĄČ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ɨǉȢɁƺƃɽȈɁȶɰӝ

• �ȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�ɽɨƃȈȶȈȶǼ�Ɂǹ�9ĄČ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�ǁʍǉ�ɽɁ�ȴɁɨǉ�ǉȴɥȃƃɰȈɰ�Ɂȶ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�
capacity building.

• �ȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїїӗ�9ĄČ�ǁȈǁ�ȶɁɽ�Ȉȶƺʍɨ�Ȉȶɽǉɨȶǉɽ�ƺɁȶȶǉƺɽȈɁȶɰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ɨǉȢƃɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ƺȢɁʍǁ�
hosting in the FY 2020/2021.The amount paid for internet connections FY 2020/21 relates to 
payment made for cloud hosting.

• ěȃǉ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽ�Ɂǹ� ǹʍȴȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ�ʥƃɰ� ȢɁʥǉɨ� Ȉȶ� ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїї�ƹǉƺƃʍɰǉ�Ɂǹ� ɨǉ-
duced ǹʍȴȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ�Ɂǹ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɰ�ƃɰ�ɽȃǉ�:ɁʤȈǁ�ɥƃȶǁǉȴȈƺ�Ȉɰ�ƹǉȈȶǼ�ǼɨƃǁʍƃȢȢʰ�ƺɁȶɽƃȈȶǉǁӝ

• BRS had to allocate funds for Contracted Guards and Cleaning services due to relocation to the 
new premises as opposed to the FY 2020/21 where these costs were being shouldered by the 
parent ministry.
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8) EMPLOYEE COSTS
їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Salaries and wages 142,949,961 114,126,046

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 19,662,868 18,749,120

�ɁʍɰȈȶǼ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƃȢȢɁʥƃȶƺǉɰ� 50,691,067 45,254,684

 Gratuity 23,959,148 17,266,503

Overtime payments 14,427 937,309

Other employee related costs (short term employees) 4,670,558 0

Employer contribution to Pension Schemes 13,032,887 7,555,087

Social Contributions 290,200 131,499

Employer contribution to health   insurance scheme 22,685,615 11,787,658

Other insurance costs (WIBA) 1,012,701 479,540

Total Employee costs 278,969,432 216,287,446

• 9ƃɰȈƺ�ɰƃȢƃɨʰ�ƃȶǁ�ȃɁʍɰȈȶǼ�ƹǉȶǉˎɽ�ƃȶǁ�ƃȢȢɁʥƃȶƺǉɰ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїѕїї�ƹǉƺƃʍɰǉ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȶ-
ɽȈȶʍɁʍɰ�ɨǉƺɨʍȈɽȴǉȶɽ�ǉʯǉɨƺȈɰǉ�ƹʰ�ǁɁȶǉ�9ĄČ�ɽɁ�ˎȢȢ�ɽȃǉ�ƺɨʍƺȈƃȢ�ɥɁɰȈɽȈɁȶɰ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ǹʍȢȢ�ȈȴɥȢǉȴǉȶ-
tation of the staff salaries.

• {ɨƃɽʍȈɽʰ�9ǉȶǉˎɽɰ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїіӣїѕїї�ǁʍǉ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�ȶʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�ɨǉƺɨʍȈɽǉǁ�
on contract.

• In the FY 2021/2022 BRS engaged employees on short term employment to assist in imple-
ȴǉȶɽȈȶǼ�ɽȃǉ�9ǉȶǉˎƺȈƃȢ�ÝʥȶǉɨɰȃȈɥ�ĀɨɁǼɨƃȴȴǉӝ�

• Under Pension contribution Scheme, it has been rising over time due to continuous recruit-
ment exercise of the staff under permanent and pensionable terms. 

• The increase in Employer contribution to health insurance scheme and WIBA in the FY 2021/2022 
ʥƃɰ�ǁʍǉ�ɽɁ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�ȶʍȴƹǉɨ�Ɂǹ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�ƃȶǁ�ƹǉȶǉˎƺȈƃɨȈǉɰ�ȈȶƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽǉǁ�ȈȶɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ȴǉǁȈƺƃȢ�ƺɁʤǉɨӝ

• Social contributions increased due to the increased number of staff recruited in the year.

9) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs KShs

Chairperson’s Honoraria 960,000 960,000

Sitting allowances 3,620,000 4,400,000

Travel and accommodation 553,899 541,400

Induction and Training 1,256,000 430,000

Total director emoluments 6,389,899 6,331,400

• Sitting Allowances for the FY 2021/2022 decreased as compared to the FY 2020/2021 due to 
number of directors retiring in the course of the year.

• Induction and training increased in the FY 2021/2022 due to increased number of trainings 
conducted in the year as well the induction course conducted to the new appointed directors.
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10) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Property, plant and equipment 5,659,923 5,255,291

Intangible Assets 529,467 163,991

Total depreciation and amortization 6,189,390 5,419,282

• ěȃǉ�ȈȶɽƃȶǼȈƹȢǉ�ƃɰɰǉɽɰ�ƃȴɁɨɽȈ˃ƃɽȈɁȶ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽ�Ȉȶƺɨǉƃɰǉǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�їѕїіӣїѕїї�ƹǉƺƃʍɰǉ�
Ȉɽ�ɨǉȢƃɽǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ǹʍȢȢ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ƃɰ�ɁɥɥɁɰǉǁ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�yť�їѕїѕӣїѕїі�ʥȃǉɨǉ�Ȉɽ�ʥƃɰ�ƃɥɥɁɨɽȈɁȶǉǁӝ

11) REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

yʍɨȶȈɽʍɨǉ�ƃȶǁ�ˎɽɽȈȶǼɰ 71,950 218,150

Computers and accessories 412,166 226,700

Refurbishment of building 53,874,556 3,019,070

Equipment & Machinery 114,666 3,800

Total repairs and maintenance 54,473,338 3,467,720

• 9ĄČ�ȴɁʤǉǁ�Ȉɽɰ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɰ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ȶǉʥ�ɥɨǉȴȈɰǉ�ʥȃǉɨǉ�ɨǉǹʍɨƹȈɰȃȴǉȶɽ�ǹɁɨ�ƹʍȈȢǁȈȶǼ�ʥƃɰ�ǁɁȶǉ�ȃǉȶƺǉ�ɽȃǉ�
increase in costs of refurbishment of building in the FY2021/2022. 

12) GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїіѕ

Kshs Kshs 

Community development 254,603 277,380

Total grants and subsidies 254,603 277,380

   
13) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Current account 67,677,383 53,179,634

Total cash and cash equivalents 67,677,383 53,179,634

14) DETAILED ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Financial Institution Bank Account 
number

Kshs Kshs

Current Account

Kenya Commercial Bank 1184110735 19,738,576 53,179,634

Kenya Commercial Bank 1300691360 47,938,807 0

Grand total 67,677,383  53,179,634
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15)  RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs 

Medical Insurance 7,531,795 5,805,862

Other Insurance Costs (WIBA) 388,255 236,191

Staff Salary Advances 170,000 0

ICT Licenses 1,422,047 0

Employer Contribution to Staff Pension Scheme 0 1,593,760

Total current receivables 9,512,097 7,635,813

16) INVENTORIES
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїіӸїѕїѕ

Kshs Kshs 

Consumable stores 11,624,824, 12,649,101

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 11,624,824 12,649,101

17) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and 

ˎɽɽȈȶǼɰ
Computers Ýǹˎƺǉ�KɧʍȈɥȴǉȶɽ Total

DEPRECIATION % 12.5% 33.3% 12.5%

Cost Shs Shs Shs Shs

At 1st July 2020 19,781,328 11,868,108 9,328,672 40,978,108

Additions 601,920 2,400,000 689,700 3,691,620

Disposals Ӹ Ӹ - Ӹ

Transfers/adjustments Ӹ - Ӹ Ӹ

At 30th June 2021 20,383,248 14,268,108 10,018,372 44,669,728

Additions 40,412,000 7,506,200 - 47,918,200

Transfers/adjustments Ӹ - Ӹ Ӹ

At 30th June 2022 60,795,248 21,774,308 10,018,372 92,587,928

Depreciation and impairment

At 1st July 2020 (3,159,769) (5,462,681) (1,683,315) (10,305,765)

Depreciation (2,127,842) (2,133,007) (994,442) (5,255,291)

Impairment - - - Ӹ

At 30th June ,2021 5,287,611 7,595,688 2,677,757 15,561,056

Depreciation (1,951,662) (2,790,684) (917,577) (5,659,923)

Transfer/adjustment - - - Ӹ

At 30th June, 2022 7,239,273 10,386,372 3,595,334 21,220,979

Net book values

At 30th June 2021 15,095,637 6,672,420 7,340,615 29,108,672

At 30th June 2022 53,555,975 11,387,936 6,423,038 71,366,949
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Note on Additions
AǉȢȈʤǉɨʰ�ƃȶǁ�ȈȶʤɁȈƺǉ�Ɂǹ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�yʍɨȶȈɽʍɨǉ�ƃȶǁ�yȈɽɽȈȶǼ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�ɽɁ�¶ɰȃӝ�35,913,000 received at the closure 
Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�ȃǉȶƺǉ�ȶɁ�ǁǉɥɨǉƺȈƃɽǉǁ�Ɂȶ�ɽȃǉ�Ȉɽǉȴɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨӝ

18) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Description їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Cost

At the beginning of the year 1,424,409 0

Additions 0 1,588,400

At the end of the year 1,424,409 1,588,400

Additions 0 0

At the end of the year 1,424,409 1,588,400

Amortization and impairment

At the beginning of the year 0 0

Amortization 529,467 163,991

At the end of the year 529,467 163,991

NBV 894,942 1,424,409

19) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
Description Period Ended June 30th, 2022 їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Gratuity B/f

Gratuity payable 0 2,448,006

Total trade and other payables 0 2,448,006

20) CURRENT PROVISIONS
Description Retention provision Total

Kshs Kshs 

Balance at 1st July 2021 0 0

Additional Provisions for the period 4,265,150 4,265,150

Provision utilized during the period (0) (0)

Change due to discount and time value for money (0) (0)

Transfers from non -current provisions 0 0

Total provisions as at 30th June 2022 4,265,150 4,265,150

The current provisions relate to 10% of the retention money held by BRS on behalf of the contractors.
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21) NON – CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Description Gratuity

9ǉȶǉˎɽ
2021/2022 2020/2021

Kshs Kshs Kshs

:ʍɨɨǉȶɽ�9ǉȶǉˎɽ�ÝƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ 0 0 0

ÇɁȶӸƺʍɨɨǉȶɽ�9ǉȶǉˎɽ�ÝƹȢȈǼƃɽȈɁȶ 43,673,657 43,673,657 0

Total provisions as at 30th June 2022 43,673,657 43,673,657 0

22) REVENUE RESERVE 
Retained earnings

Kshs

Balance as at July 1, 2020 93,786,218

ČʍɨɥȢʍɰӣAǉˎƺȈɽ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ 7,763,304

At June 30, 2021 101,549,522

Balance as at July 1, 2021 101,549,522

ČʍɨɥȢʍɰӣAǉˎƺȈɽ�ǹɁɨ�ɽȃǉ�ɥǉɨȈɁǁ 11,587,866

At June 30, 2022 113,137,388

23) PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
Description Period Ended June 

30th, 2022 їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Gratuity payable 0 19,714,509

Ýǹˎƺǉ�yʍɨȶȈɽʍɨǉ�ɥƃʰƃƹȢǉ 0 35,913,000

Pension Arrears 0 146,960

Total trade and other payables 0 55,774,469

24)  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Notes Period Ended 

June 30th, 2022 їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs 

Surplus for the year before tax 11,587,866 7,763,304

Add Back Adjusted for:

Depreciation for the year 9 6,189,390 5,419,282

Prior year depreciation/
Adjustments 0

Working Capital Adjustments

Decrease in Inventory 16 1,024,277 402,600

Decrease in payables 19 (2,448,006) 0

Increase in provisions 47,938,807

Increase in Receivables (1,876,284) (7,635,813)

Çǉɽ� ƺƃɰȃ� ːɁʥ� ǹɨɁȴ� ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈȶǼ�
activities 62,416,050 5,949,373
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25) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ƃƺɽȈʤȈɽȈǉɰ�ǉʯɥɁɰǉ�Ȉɽ�ɽɁ�ƃ�ʤƃɨȈǉɽʰ�Ɂǹ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨȈɰȟɰӗ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁȈȶǼ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ɨȈɰȟӗ�ƃȶǁ�
liquidity risk. The Service overall risk management Programme focuses on the unpredictability of the 
ǉƺɁȶɁȴʰ�ƃȶǁ�ɰǉǉȟɰ�ɽɁ�ȴȈȶȈȴȈ˃ǉ�ɥɁɽǉȶɽȈƃȢ�ƃǁʤǉɨɰǉ�ǉǹǹǉƺɽɰ�Ɂȶ�Ȉɽɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɥǉɨǹɁɨȴƃȶƺǉӝ

9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ� ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ɨǉǼʍȢƃɨȢʰ� ɨǉʤȈǉʥɰ� Ȉɽɰ� ɨȈɰȟ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ� ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ� ƃȶǁ� ɰʰɰɽǉȴɰ� ɽɁ� ɨǉːǉƺɽ�
changes and emerging best practices.  Risk management is carried out by the management under the 
supervision of the Board of Directors. 

ěȃǉ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɨȈɰȟ�ȴƃȶƃǼǉȴǉȶɽ�ɁƹȚǉƺɽȈʤǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɥɁȢȈƺȈǉɰ�ƃɨǉ�ǁǉɽƃȈȢǉǁ�ƹǉȢɁʥӢ

a) Credit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in 
ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ȢɁɰɰ�ɽɁ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉӝ��:ɨǉǁȈɽ�ɨȈɰȟ�ƃɨȈɰǉɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ƹƃȶȟ�ƹƃȢƃȶƺǉɰӗ�ɨǉƺǉȈʤƃƹȢǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰ�ǁʍǉ�ǹɨɁȴ�
related parties. Although this risk is unlikely to occur cash is placed with well-established institutions of 
high credit standing and also approved by the national Treasury.

9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǉʯɥɁɰʍɨǉ�ɽɁ�ƺɨǉǁȈɽ�ɨȈɰȟ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�Ȉɰ�ƹǉɰɽ�ɨǉɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�
by

їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs. Kshs.

Cash at Bank 67,677,383     53,179,634

 Prepaid Medical Insurance 7,531,795 5,805,862

 Prepaid Other Insurance Costs (WIBA) 388,255 236,191

Salary Advance 170,000

ICT Licences 1,422,047

 Prepaid Employer Contribution to Staff Pension Scheme 1,593,760

Total 77,189,480 60,815,447

b) Liquidity risk management
Business Registration Service Liquidity risk is as a result of funds availability to cover future commitments.
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Business Registration Service 
directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of 
the service short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. Business 
Registration Service manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash 
ːɁʥɰ

ěȃǉ�ƃȴɁʍȶɽɰ�ɽȃƃɽ�ƹǉɰɽ�ǁǉɰƺɨȈƹǉɰ�ɽȃǉ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉɰ�ǉʯɥɁɰʍɨǉ�ɽɁ�ȢȈɧʍȈǁȈɽʰ�ɨȈɰȟ�ƃɽ�ɽȃǉ�ǉȶǁ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ʰǉƃɨ�
Ȉɰ�ƃɰ�ǹɁȢȢɁʥɰӢ

26) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Nature of related party relationships
Business Registration service-related party includes those parties who have ability to exercise control 
Ɂɨ�ǉʯǉɨƺȈɰǉ�ɰȈǼȶȈˎƺƃȶɽ�Ȉȶːʍǉȶƺǉ�Ɂʤǉɨ�Ȉɽɰ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈȶǼ�ƃȶǁ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ǁǉƺȈɰȈɁȶɰӝ�ĄǉȢƃɽǉǁ�ɥƃɨɽȈǉɰ�ȈȶƺȢʍǁǉ�ɽȃǉ�
Government, Directors and key management personnel.

їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Transactions with related parties

a) Grants from the Government

Grants from National Govt 444,650,000 309,568,399

Total 444,650,000 309,568,399
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їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

b) Key management compensation

Directors’ emoluments 6,389,899 6,316,400

Compensation to the CEO 0 7,200,000

Compensation to key management 41,870,600 34,322,700

Total 48,260,499 47,839,100

27) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments їѕїіӸїѕїї їѕїѕӸїѕїі

Kshs Kshs

Development and commissioning of an Enterprise Resource 
Planning System

8,935,852  8,935,852

Development of Strategic Plan 0 2,100,000

Authorized and contracted for Alternative Cloud hosting 7,340,000

Refurbishment of Building 69,175,132

Total 78,110,894 18,375,852
 
Ԑt�Ӹ�  ƃȣǒȻƃǪ� ƟȀǳǳǒȻǳƭǵȻȮ� ƃȦƭ� ƟȀǳǳǒȻǳƭǵȻȮ� ȻȀ� ƞƭ� ƟƃȦȦǒƭƦ� ȀɃȻ� ǒǵ� ȻǍƭ� ǵƭɠȻ� ˴ǵƃǵƟǒƃǪ� ɡƭƃȦ� ƃǵƦ�
are disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been 
authorized by the board but at the end of the year had not been contracted or those already 
contracted for and ongoing)

28) EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

29) ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The Business Registration Service is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the State Law 
Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�Aǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�°ʍɰɽȈƺǉӝ��ɽɰ�ʍȢɽȈȴƃɽǉ�ɥƃɨǉȶɽ�Ȉɰ�ɽȃǉ�{Ɂʤǉɨȶȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�¶ǉȶʰƃӝ

30) CURRENCY

ěȃǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ɰɽƃɽǉȴǉȶɽɰ�ƃɨǉ�ɥɨǉɰǉȶɽǉǁ�Ȉȶ�¶ǉȶʰƃ�ČȃȈȢȢȈȶǼɰ�ӯ¶ɰȃɰӰӝ
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21. APPENDIX II: 
 PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY BUSINESS REGISTRATION SERVICE

Projects 
Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners

Project title Project 
Number Donor Period/ 

duration
Donor 
commitment

Separate 
donor 
reporting 
required 
as per the 
donor 
agreement 
(Yes/No)

Consolidated in 
ɽȃǉɰǉ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�
statements
(Yes/No)

Consultancy for 
capacity building 
and public 
awareness on 
Movable Security 

ԝyČČĀӣĀ�ĩ�ӣ
OAG&DOJ 
/35/2018-19

ԝ�y: ԝїѕїѕӣїѕїі 28,872,400 ԝÇɁ No

Kenya Investment 
Climate Project 
3 (Advisory 
Agreement) 

ԝћѕјїўѝ ԝ�y: ԝїѕїѕӣїѕїі 113,620,000 ԝÇɁ No

Status of Projects completion 
(Summaries the status of project completion at the end of each quarter, I e total costs incurred, 
stage which the project is etc.)

Pr
oj

ec
t

To
ta

l 
pr

oj
ec

t 
Co

st

To
ta

l e
xp

en
de

d 
to

 d
at

e

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

%
 to

 d
at

e

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l  

So
ur

ce
s 

of
 fu

nd
s

1 Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP)

8,935,852 0     90% 9,000,000 0 GOK
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�ĀĀKÇA�Ť����Ӗ��ÇěKĄӸKÇě�ěť�ěĄ�ÇČyKĄČ
ԝ ԝBUSINESS REGISTRATION SERVICE

ԝ 9ɨǉƃȟǁɁʥȶ�Ɂǹ�ěɨƃȶɰǹǉɨɰ�ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�Čɽƃɽǉ�¸ƃʥ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�Aǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�°ʍɰɽȈƺǉ�
ԝ

ԝ FY 2021/2022 ԝ ԝ ԝ

a. Recurrent Grants ԝ ԝ ԝ

ԝ
Reference 
number

Bank Statement Date Amount (Kshs) Indicate the FY to which the 
amounts relate

ԝ  043417 15/07/2021 105,087,500.00 ԝїѕїіӣїѕїї

ԝ ԝіњѝњѕљ 18/10/2021 105,087,500.00 ԝїѕїіӣїѕїї

 158558 15/02/2022 105,087,500.00  2021/2022

ԝ ԝіњѝћћљ 10/05/2022 24,300,000.00 ԝїѕїіӣїѕїї

15/05/2022 105,087,500.00 2021/2022

ԝ ԝ Total 444,650,000.00 ԝ

9ĄČ�ɨǉƺǉȈʤǉǁ�ƃ�ɽɁɽƃȢ�Ɂǹ�¶ɰȃɰӝ�љљљӗћњѕӗѕѕѕ�ƃɰ��ʍɽȃɁɨȈɽʰ� ɽɁ� �ȶƺʍɨ�KʯɥǉȶǁȈɽʍɨǉ� ӯ��KӰ� ǹɨɁȴ�ɽȃǉ�Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�
the Attorney General and Department of Justice. Receipt of the money has been acknowledged and 
reconciliation done.

Deputy Director Finance &Accounts   
Head of Accounting Unit

9ʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ĄǉǼȈɰɽɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� � � Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ��ɽɽɁɨȶǉʰ�{ǉȶǉɨƃȢ�������������

     

Sign -----------------------------------------------  Sign ---------------------------------------------------------

Date -----------------------------------------------                                               
03/02/2023
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CHAPTER 4

CHALLENGES & RECOMMENDATIONS

Challenges

Inherent weakness in Legal Framework
BRS administers various Act in discharging its mandate. The Acts establishes Company Registrar and 
Ýǹˎƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ÝǹˎƺȈƃȢ�ĄǉƺǉȈʤǉɨӝ�ěȃǉ��ƺɽɰ�ɥɨɁʤȈǁǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉɰɽƃƹȢȈɰȃ�ɰʍƺȃ�Ýǹˎƺǉɰ�ƃɰ�ǹʍȢȢʰ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶƃȢ�ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ�ʥȈɽȃ�
Ɂʥȶ�ɰǉƃȢ�ƃȶǁ�ɽȃǉ�ȃǉƃǁ�Ɂǹ� ɰʍƺȃ�ǉȶɽȈɽʰ�ƃɰ�ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�Ɂǹˎƺǉɨɰӝ�ěȃȈɰ�ƺɁȶːȈƺɽɰ�ʥȈɽȃ� ɽȃǉ�9ĄČ��ƺɽ�Ɂǹ�їѕіњ�
ʥȃǉɨǉ� ɰʍƺȃ� ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ� ƃɨǉ� ƃɰɰʍȴǉǁ� ɽɁ�ƹǉ�ǁǉɥƃɨɽȴǉȶɽɰ� Ɂǹ�9ĄČ� ƃȶǁ� ɽȃǉ� ƃƺƺɁʍȶɽȈȶǼ�Ýǹˎƺǉɨ� Ȉɰ� ɁȶȢʰ� ɽȃǉ�
Director General.
 
The Companies Act has approximately 235 offences that require prosecution and only upon successful 
conviction can the penalties be meted which are either monetary penalties or imprisonment terms or 
both depending on the offence in question. The Registrar of Companies does not have prosecutorial or 
ȈȶʤǉɰɽȈǼƃɽȈʤǉ�ɥɁʥǉɨɰ�ʍȶǁǉɨ�ɽȃǉ��ƺɽ�ȴƃȟȈȶǼ� Ȉɽ�ǁȈǹˎƺʍȢɽ�ɽɁ�ǉȶɰʍɨǉ�ƺɁȴɥȢȈƃȶƺǉ�ƃȶǁ�ǉȶǹɁɨƺǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�ɽȃǉ�
�ƺɽӝ�ĩȶǁǉɨ�Āƃɨɽ�ŤŤŤř���Ɂȶ�ԄÝǹǹǉȶƺǉɰ�ƃȶǁ�ȢǉǼƃȢ�ɥɨɁƺǉǉǁȈȶǼɰԅ�ĀɨɁɰǉƺʍɽȈɁȶ�ƺƃȶ�ɁȶȢʰ�ƹǉ�ȈȶɰɽȈǼƃɽǉǁ�ƹʰ�ɽȃǉ�
Attorney General, the Director of Public Prosecutions or the Inspector General of Police.

Inadequate Budgetary Allocation
ěȃǉ�ɥɨɁȶɁʍȶƺǉȴǉȶɽ�Ɂǹ�9ĄČ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ɰǉɥƃɨƃɽǉ�ƃȶǁ�ƃ�ǹʍȢȢʰӸːǉǁǼǉǁ�ƺɁɨɥɁɨƃɽȈɁȶ�ɨǉɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ɽȃƃɽ�9ĄČ�ƃƺɧʍȈɨǉɰ�
ƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ�Ȉȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉӗ�ɰɽƃǹǹ�ƃȶǁ�Ɂǹˎƺǉ�ȴƃɽǉɨȈƃȢɰ�ƃɰ�ʥǉȢȢ�ƃɰ�ƃ�ȶǉʥ�Ɂǹˎƺǉӝ��ȢȢ�ɽȃǉɰǉ�ɨǉɰɁʍɨƺǉɰ�ƃɨǉ�ƺƃɥȈɽƃȢ�
intensive, and the amount of budgetary allocation has not been adequate for BRS. As a result, the Service 
has not been able to operate optimally as required. This has hindered faster registration of business and 
foreign companies which would spur foreign direct investments, slowed credit through MPSR concept, 
ƃȶǁ� ȢȈȴȈɽǉǁ� ɽȃǉ� ƃƹȈȢȈɽʰ� Ɂǹ� ɽȃǉ� ČǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ɽɁ� ȃǉȢɥ� ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰǉɰ� ƃȶǁ�ȴǉɨƺȃƃȶɽɰ� ǹƃƺȈȶǼ� ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ� ǁȈɰɽɨǉɰɰ� ɽɁ�
come back to viability and in case of liquidation secure highest returns to creditors. Further, the sub-
optimal operation of the Service limits the revenue collected which would support implementation of 
government projects.

�ȶǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺȈǉɰ�Ȉȶ�¶ǉʰ�9ĄČ�ĀɨɁƺǉɰɰǉɰ
While BRS has made strides in automating its process some processes and activities are not automated 
ʥȃȈƺȃ�ƺɨǉƃɽǉɰ�ȈȶǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺȈǉɰ�Ȉȶ�ɽȃǉ�ɁɥǉɨƃɽȈɁȶɰ�ɰʍƺȃ�ƃɰ�Ȉɰɰʍƃȶƺǉ�Ɂǹ�ƺǉɨɽȈˎƺƃɽǉ�Ɂǹ�ƺɁȴɥȢȈƃȶƺǉ�ǹɁɨ�ƃɥɥȢȈƺƃɽȈɁȶ�
of bankruptcies and liquidations, applications and renewal of Insolvency Practitioners licenses.
 
Inadequate ICT Infrastructure
ěȃǉ� �:ě� Ȉȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉ� Ȉɰ� Ȉȶƃǁǉɧʍƃɽǉ� ɽɁ� ɰʍɥɥɁɨɽ� ǁȈǼȈɽƃȢ� ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӝ� ěȃȈɰ� ƃǹǹǉƺɽɰ� ɽȃǉ� ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ� Ɂǹ�
service delivery as it is characterized by slow service delivery, more labour, inherent human errors, time 
consuming activities among others.
 
Lack of Disaster Recovery and Continuity Plan
The Service does not have a disaster recovery site to secure or to guide recovery and ensure business 
continuation after a disaster. Posing a major risk on the data and the operations of the Service should 
there be a such event.
 
Recommendations

i. Review of the Legal Framework administered by BRS: The Service is continuously engaging the 
relevant stakeholders to review pieces of legislation to create harmonious legal framework and 
enhance its administration as well as make the environment conducive for business to thrive.

ii. Automation of BRS Processes to improve service delivery. The Service has mapped some of the 
process to be automated to improve service delivery. This however, requires resources to auto-
ȴƃɽǉ�ɽȃǉ�ȈǁǉȶɽȈˎǉǁ�ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰǉɰӝ

iii. �ȶʤǉɰɽ� Ȉȶ� �:ě�ǁȈǼȈɽƃȢ� Ȉȶǹɨƃɰɽɨʍƺɽʍɨǉ� ǹɁɨ� ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ� ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ� ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰӝ�Aʍǉ� ɽɁ� ɽȃǉ� ɽǉƺȃȶɁȢɁǼȈƺƃȢ� ƃǁ-
vancement in the business environment. The Service seeks to buy adequate ICT infrastructure 
ƃȶǁ�ȴɁǁǉɨȶ�ɽǉƺȃȶɁȢɁǼȈǉɰ�ɽɁ�ɰʍɥɥɁɨɽ�ɰǉɨʤȈƺǉ�ǁǉȢȈʤǉɨʰ�ʥȃȈƺȃ�ʥɁʍȢǁ�Ȉȶ�ɽʍɨȶ�ǉȶȃƃȶƺǉ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶƺʰ�
of service delivery.

iv. Establishment of a BRS disaster recovery solution. The Service seeks to develop a Busi-
ness

v. Continuation Plan and disaster recovery solutions to safeguard the Service against any even-
tuality in  future.
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CHAPTER 5

CONCLUSION
The role of the Service remains critical for the success of businesses and growth of the economy. The 
contribution of BRS in the economy is immense as it impacts directly and indirectly to the revenue and 
economic activities within the country in a number of ways including: collecting revenue on behalf of the 
government through the services offered, facilitating business start-ups. which in turn creates demand 
for goods and services, provides alternate means od accessing credit through movable properties, 
promoting foreign investment through registration of foreign companies, initiating legal and regulatory 
ƺȃƃȶǼǉɰ�ɽɁ�ƺɨǉƃɽǉ�ƺɁȶǁʍƺȈʤǉ�ƹʍɰȈȶǉɰɰ�ǉȶʤȈɨɁȶȴǉȶɽ�ƃȶǁ�ƹʰ�ǹƃƺȈȢȈɽƃɽȈȶǼ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ʥƃʰɰ�Ɂǹ�ȃǉȢɥȈȶǼ�ǉȶɽȈɽȈǉɰ�
Ȉȶ�ˎȶƃȶƺȈƃȢ�ǁȈɰɽɨǉɰɰ�ƃȶǁ�ɥɨɁɽǉƺɽȈȶǼ�ȈȶʤǉɰɽɁɨɰӝ
 
During the FY 2021/22, the Service made huge strides in implementing it strategic plan. The Service also 
performed well on its inaugural performance contract evaluation, relocated all units except companies’ 
ɨǉǼȈɰɽɨʰ�ɽɁ�јіћ�ĩɥɥǉɨ��ȈȢȢ�:ȃƃȴƹǉɨɰӗ�ƃƺɧʍȈɨǉǁ�ȴɁǁǉɨȶ�ƃȶǁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽ�ƺʍɰɽɁȴǉɨ�ƺƃɨǉ�ƺǉȶɽǉɨ�ɽɁ�ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽȢʰ�
respond to customer queries among other achievements.
 
Through the guidance of the Board the Service is institutionalizing risk management, compliance 
programme, adopting innovative ways of reaching customers, leveraging on technology, undertaking 
ɰʰɰɽǉȴ� ǉȶȃƃȶƺǉȴǉȶɽɰӗ� ƃʍɽɁȴƃɽȈɁȶ� ƃȶǁ� ɥɨɁƺǉɰɰ� ɨǉǹɁɨȴɰ� ɽɁ� ǉǹǹǉƺɽȈʤǉȢʰ� ƃȶǁ� ǉǹˎƺȈǉȶɽȢʰ� ǉʯǉƺʍɽǉ� Ȉɽɰ�
mandate.
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<ĞĞƉ�ŽƵƌ�ZŽĂĚƐ�^ĂĨĞ�

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AND SAFETY AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

ZŽĂĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�DĂŝŶƐƚƌĞĂŵŝŶŐ�

 
TThhiiss  iiss  ttoo  cceerrttiiffyy  tthhaatt  

  

BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  RREEGGIISSTTRRAATTIIOONN  SSEERRVVIICCEESS  

hhaass  aattttaaiinneedd  aa  ccoommppoossiittee  ssccoorree  ooff    

9900%%  

ffoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr  22002211//22002222  

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  GGrraaddee::  

VVEERRYY  GGOOOODD  

DDaattee  ooff  IIssssuuee::  2255TTHH  JJUULLYY  22002222  

NNTTSSAA//PPCC--1188//22002211//22002222  

  

  

GGEEOORRGGEE  NNJJAAOO,,  EEBBSS  

DDIIRREECCTTOORR  GGEENNEERRAALL  
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